Public Document Pack A

rgyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid L&
$Bute

Corporate Services

Director: Nigel Stewart COU NCIL

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

4 February 2010

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 11 FEBRUARY 2010 at 11:30 AM, which you are requested to
attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2, DEPUTATIONS
Consider requests for deputations to be heard in connection with item 5
(Corporate and Service Planning/Revenue Budget) of this Agenda and if so
resolved hear the deputations.

a) On behalf of the Learning Disability Alliance Scotland and;
b) On behalf of Neighbourhood Networks.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

4. MINUTES
Argyll and Bute Council 12 January 2010 (Pages 1 - 4)

5. CORPORATE AND SERVICE PLANNING/REVENUE BUDGET
To consider and approve Corporate and Service Plans, estimates of expenditure
and income, and fix the Council Tax for the year to 31 March 2011 and pass such
other resolutions as the Council considers appropriate in relation to the following:-

A Corporate Planning

1. Strategic Risk Register 2010 (Pack 2) (Pages 5-16 )



2. Corporate Plan 2010 — 13 and beyond (Pack 2) (Pages 17-34)

3.

Draft Area Plans 2010 — 13 for noting (Pack 2) (Pages 35-84)

B Financial Planning

1.

2.

3.

Revenue Budget Overview (Pack 1) Section 1 (Pages 1-30)
Reserves and Balances (Pack 2) (to follow)

Fees and Charges (Pack 2) (Pages 85-132)

C Service Plans, Service Reviews and Budgets 2010-13

1. Service Plans

1.

2.

5.

Chief Executive (Pack 1) Section 2 (Pages 103-132)
Community Services (Pack 1) Section 2 (Pages 133-222)
Corporate Services (Pack 1) Section 2 (Pages 223-274)
Development Services (Pack 1) Section 2 (Pages 275-318)

Please note that the following Pages in Pack 2 133 -142 replace Pages
285-294 of Pack 1 and Pages 143 -152 replace Pages 297-316 of Pack 1

Operational Services (Pack 1) Section 2 (Pages 319-364)

2. Service Reviews

1.

2.

Community Services — Education (Pack 1) Section 3 (Pages 367-410)

Corporate Services — Democratic Services and Governance (Pack 1)
Section 3 (Pages 411-420)

Corporate Services — Legal and Protective Services (Pack 1) Section 3
(Pages 421-435)

Development Services — Public Transport (Pack 1) Section 3 (Pages 437-
456)

Operational Services — Waste Management (Pack 1) Section 3 (Pages 457-
492)

Operational Services — Roads Operations (Pack 1) Section 3 (Pages 493-
615)

Note: The papers contained in Budget Pack 1 made available for the meeting of the
Executive on 28 January 2010 are relevant for consideration of the foregoing matters.
Please bring these papers with you to this meeting.



6. STRATEGIC HOUSING INVESTMENT PLAN - 2009
Extract from the Executive 27 January 2010 (Pages 153 - 154)
Report by the Director of Community Services previously circulated with the
Executive Agenda for 27 January 2010.
7. REVIEW OF COUNCILLORS CODE OF CONDUCT
Report by Director of Corporate Services (Pages 155 - 196)
COUNCIL

ALL MEMBERS

Contact: Sandra McGlynn Tel: 01546 604401



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES of MEETING of ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD
on THURSDAY, 21 JANUARY 2010

Present: Provost William Petrie (Chair)
Councillor Chalmers Councillor Mackay
Councillor Colville Councillor MacMillan
Councillor Dance Councillor McNaughton
Councillor Freeman Councillor McQueen
Councillor Hay Councillor Marshall
Councillor Horn Councillor Morton
Councillor Daniel Kelly Councillor Mulvaney
Councillor Donald Kelly Councillor Reay
Councillor MacAlister Councillor Robertson
Councillor McAlpine Councillor Scoullar
Councillor McCuish Councillor Semple
Councillor McIntosh Councillor Simon
Councillor D Maclintyre Councillor Strong
Councillor R Macintyre Councillor Walsh

Attending: Sally Loudon, Chief Executive

Nigel Stewart, Director of Corporate Services

Andy Law, Director of Operational Services

Susan Mair, Head of Legal and Protective Services
Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance

Jane Fowler, Head of Improvement and HR

The Provost ruled, and the Council agreed, that the business dealt with at item 11 of this
minute be taken as a matter of urgency by reason of the need for the Council to appoint a
Returning Officer before the forthcoming UK Parliamentary Election.
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were intimated from Councillors Currie, Kinniburgh, Macdonald,
Nisbet, Philand and Robb.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Ellen Morton declared a financial interest in relation to the report on Licensing
of Booking Offices for Taxi and Private Hire Car Firms: Civic Government (Scotland) Act
1982 which is dealt with at item 5 of this minute because her husband runs a taxi
business.
3. MINUTES
(@) 26 November 2009

The Council approved the Minutes of the Council Meeting of 26 November 2009
as a correct record.

(b) 22 December 2009

The Council approved the Minutes of the Council Meeting of 22 December 2009



Page 2

as a correct record.

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY

The Executive, at its meeting on 17 December 2009 had considered the new
Procurement Strategy to run from 2009 to 2012 and agreed to recommend to the
Council to approve the Strategy.

Decision
Approved the new Procurement Strategy to run from 2009 to 2012.

(Ref: Extract from the Executive of 17 December 2009 and report by Director of
Corporate Services dated 20 October 2009, submitted)

LICENSING OF BOOKING OFFICES FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE CAR FIRMS:
CIVIC GOVERNMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 1982

The Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee, at its meeting on 16
December 2009 had considered a report by the Head of Legal and Protective Services
which advised that a change in licensing regime now required taxi and private hire car
booking offices to be licensed. The Committee recommended to the Council to impose a
fee for applications for Licensing of Booking Offices.

Decision

Agreed that a fee of £100 be imposed in respect of applications for Licensing of Booking
Offices.

(Re;: Extract by the Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee of 16
December 2009 and report by the Head of Legal and Protective Services dated 16
December 2009, submitted)

CUSTODIAL SENTENCES AND WEAPONS (SCOTLAND) ACT 2007: LICENSING
OF KNIFE DEALERS

The Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee, at its meeting on 16
December 2009 considered a report by the Head of Legal and Protective Services
which advised that a change in licensing regime now required knife dealers to become
licensed. The Committee recommended that the Council impose a fee for an application
for a knife dealer licence.

Decision

Agreed that given the requirement to advertise applications for knife dealers licences,
the appropriate fee for an application of this type be set at £425 for a three year period.

(Ref: Extract by the Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee of 16
December 2009 and report by the Head of Legal and Protective Services dated 16
December 2009, submitted)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME CHANGES 2008/2009 - EMPLOYER
DISCRETIONS



10.

Page 3

The Council suspended Standing Order 16, and considered a report by the Chief
Executive regarding Local Government Pension Scheme changes.

Decision
1. Agreed the draft amended policy on discretions at Appendix One to the report,
the amendments to the flexible retirement procedure at Appendix Two and the

internal disputes resolution procedure at Appendix Three of the report.

2. Agreed that the application of discretions is monitored for equalities purposes
and reported on an annual basis.

(Ref: Report by the Chief Executive dated 21 January 2010, submitted)

VACANCY ON THE ECONOMY POLICY AND PERFORMANCE GROUP

Councillor Gary Mulvaney had tendered his resignation from the Economy Policy and
Performance Group.

Decision

Agreed to appoint Councillor Andrew Nisbet to fill the vacancy on the Economy Policy
and Performance Group.

(Ref: Report by Director of Corporate Services dated 18 December 2009, submitted)

VACANCY ON THE ARGYLL AND BUTE LICENSING BOARD

Councillor Rory Colville had tendered his resignation from the Argyll and Bute Licensing
Board. The vacancy required to be filled by a Member of the Regulatory Cohort.

Decision

Agreed to appoint Councillor Al Reay to fill the vacancy on the Argyll and Bute Licensing
Board.

(Ref: Report by the Director of Corporate Services dated 18 December 2009, submitted)

VACANCIES ON COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES

Councillor Douglas Philand had tendered his resignation from the Alliance of
Independent Councillors, from the Executive, as Depute Spokesperson for Arts and
Culture and as Chair of the Organisation Development Policy and Performance Group.

Decision

1. Agreed that Councillor Donald MacMillan be appointed as a Member of the
Executive.

2. On a vote between the nomination of Councillor Mackay and Councillor Nisbet,
Councillor Mackay was appointed by a substantial majority to be the Chair of the
Organisational Development Policy and Performance Group.

3. Agreed to appoint Councillor Mackay to be the Depute Spokesperson for Arts,
Culture and Leisure and to sit on the outside bodies as detailed within the report



11.

Page 4

with the exception of STRAMASH to which an appointment was made.
(Ref: Report by the Director of Corporate Services dated 8 December 2009, submitted)
REPRESENTATION OF THE PEOPLE ACT 1983 AS AMENDED - APPOINTMENT
OF RETURNING OFFICER
The Council considered a report which asked the Council to appoint with immediate
effect an Officer to be the Returning Officer in terms of Section 41 of the Representation
of the People Act 1983.

Decision

In terms of Section 41 of the Representation Act 1983 the Council appointed the Chief
Executive to be the Returning Officer.

(Ref: Report by Director of Corporate Services dated 15 January 2010, submitted)



Budget Pack

Budget Pack — Report On Strategic Risk Register — December 2009

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SRO01 | Staff Absence Level of staff absence results in reduced Addressed in Corporate Plan by outcome Likelihood (3)
ability to provide services to an acceptable | People management - Enabling the Impact (3)
standard, impact on budgets by having to | Council to have the right people with the
employ other staff/agencies to carry out right §k|lls in the right plgce at the right time
the work. Possible impact on reputation. to deliver excellent services Medium

Addressed by service outcomes in
Improvement and HR Service Plan.
Policies and procedures in place to manage
staff absence. Target set for staff absence
of 7.6 days monitored through performance
scorecards.
SR02 | Recruitment and Insufficient qualified/experienced staff Addressed in Corporate Plan by outcome Likelihood (3)

retention of high
quality staff

results in reduced ability to provide
services to an acceptable standard, impact
on budgets by having to employ other
staff/agencies to carry out the work.
Possible impact on reputation.

People management - Enabling the
Council to have the right people with the
right skills in the right place at the right time
to deliver excellent services.

Addressed by Service Outcomes in
Improvement and HR Service Plan.
Corporate approach being developed by
HR Board. Target set of 80% for staff to
have a PDR within the year. Staff turnover
and progress with PDR reported and
monitored through performance scorecards.

Impact (3)

Medium

G obed

G Wa)| epusby



Budget Pack

Ref

SR03

Risk name

Failure to implement
legislation in relation to
young and vulnerable

Consequences

Possibility of situation arising where due to
our failing to address this a ‘Baby P’
occurs. Major impacts on reputation,
people and possibly financial.

Position/Progress at December 2009

Addressed in Corporate Plan by outcomes
Education - making what's good, better
Curriculum development to enable all
young people to be:

e successful learners

¢ confident individuals

o effective contributors

e responsible citizens

Modernising social work

Modernisation of the social work service in
line with changing patterns of need to
ensure that services are directed at the
most vulnerable and needy members of our
community.

Housing - more homes, less
homelessness - Release of more land for
housing to create more affordable housing
and a reduction in homelessness

Also addressed by service outcomes in
Education Service Plan, Children and
Families Service Plan, Adult Services
Service Plan and Community Regeneration
Service Plan.

Success measures identified and monitored
through performance scorecards.

Vulnerable Adults Group established and
an updated procedure for identification of
posts and the processing of disclosure
checks has been approved.

Risk
assessment
rating

Likelihood (2)
Impact (4)

Medium

g obed



Budget Pack

Ref | Risk name

SR04 | Adverse media
coverage due to
ineffective and
inaccurate
communication by the
Council

Consequences

Possible impact on reputation, legal
implications and financial implications

Position/Progress at December 2009

Communications Strategy approved and
service plans now have a template to
demonstrate how services are
implementing the Communications
Strategy.

Risk

assessment

rating

Likelihood (3)
Impact (4)

Medium

SRO05 | Failure or loss of IT

Could lose information held within the

Each service has many applications with

Likelihood (3)

software and existing | Council or different departments leading to | daily back ups of information supported by | |mpact (4)
data impact on reputation, financial and the central IT. There are some programmes

breaches of statutory duty. Allow access to | used by Services which are not known to IT _

information by outsiders. and this may cause a higher level of impact. | Medium

SRO06 | Failure to provide Resulting in failure to clearly identify The Improvement Plan agreed in January Likelihood (2)
strong leadership and | overall strategic aims and objectives of the | 2009 has been delivered and the external Impact (2)
direction. council auditors endorsed the progress achieved by
the Council as part of Best Value follow up L
ow

review in October 2009. Development of
clear objectives in the Corporate and
Service Plans has been taken forward and
linked to the Improvement Plan. Current
budgetary process and ongoing
development of the Corporate Plan to
take account of financial pressures and
risks.

SRO07 | Failure to maximise
the benefits of best
value

Departments do not undertake necessary
changes to ensure compliance with the
best value review resulting in criticism form
Audit Scotland. Impact on reputation
possible legal challenge

PPMF in place and team acting to
ensure effectively implemented across
the Council. All action plans use the
PPMF format

Likelihood (2)
Impact (2)

Low

) abed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SRO08 | Failure to realise Fail to achieve efficiency savings in the Addressed by outcome in Corporate Likelihood (3)
efficiency gains medium to longer term resulting in impact Plan Process for Change - Impact (4)
on budget/finance, impact on service Transformation of key processes to deliver
provision and impact on people improved service and efficiency savings ,
Programme of service reviews Medium
underway for all services. Process For
Change projects moving to
implementation stage. Efficiency plan
due to be updated and reported to
Council. Progress with efficiency
savings tracked in performance
scorecards.
SRO9 | Failure to progress Lack of effective partner engagement Community Plan revised and new Likelihood (3)
CPP means that they become disengaged with | governance structures in place as Impact (3)
the process and the missed opportunity to | ggreed in Improvement Plan.
take this process forward. Possible impact | parformance scorecards for Community _
on reputation, finance and breach of Plan developed and performance Medium
statutory duty. scorecards for area and theme groups
being developed.
SR10 | Inefficient use of Financial consequences due to lack of Service asset management plans being | Likelihood (3)

Council Assets

development of Asset Management Plan

prepared. Performance measures for
assets developed as per Improvement
Plan. Suitability and condition of assets
tracked in performance scorecards.

Impact (3)

Medium

q obed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SR11 | Failure to meet Contributing to financial inefficiency of the | Revenue budget and capital budget Likelihood (3)
capital/revenue Council having an impact on service spending plans being revised as part of | Impact (4)
spending targets provision and budgets the planning and budget process.

Reporting and monitoring systems in Medi

: : edium
place. Also included in performance
scorecards.

SR12 | Failure of members to | Members breach code of conduct resulting | Regular training and advice to Likelihood (2)
maintain standards of | in decisions being open to legal challenge | members, monitoring of Members Impact (4)
conduct in public life and associated financial loss. Impact on Register of Interest by Corporate

reputation of Council Services .
Medium

SR13 | Failure to comply with | Resulting in breach of statutory duty, All proposed legislation passed to Likelihood (2)
new legislation, impact on service provision relevant departments for decision on Impact (4)
regulations or statutory requirement for a review of procedures
responsibilities

Medium

SR14 | Failure to implement Resulting in failure to achieve overall The SOA is built on corporate priorities and | Likelihood (2)
the Single Outcome strategic aims and objectives of the council | actions of all partners - so already planned | |mpact (3)
Agreement and its partners for and resourced by each partner as

required. Performance scorecards in place _
to monitor elements the SOA included in Medium
the Council’s plans and Community Plan.
SR15 | Financial Management | Contributing to financial inefficiency of the | Service Plans show revenue budget for | Likelihood (3)

processes need to be
aligned with structures
and council's
objectives

Council having an impact on service
provision and budgets

each service outcome and Corporate
Plan priority (Council objectives).

Impact (4)

Medium

6 obed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SR16 | Failure to have a Potential breach of statutory duty and lack | Covered by service outcome for internal | Likelihood (2)
robust internal control | of scrutiny of procedures being undertaken | audit in Strategic Finance service plans | Impact (4)
process and system | by departments and supported by annual audit plan and

range of KPIs on delivery of that plan. Medium

SR17 | Non recurring financial | Resulting in impact on service delivery, Annual planning and budgeting round Likelihood (4)
burdens and one off | budgets and financial problems allows potential burdens and financial | Impact (4)
financial crisis like the consequences to be identified and built
credit crunch into budgets and plans. Services have | .

. e igh
identified cost pressures and demand
pressure for funding. Systems in place

to monitor expenditure on revenue and

capital budgets.

SR18 | Failure to embed risk Consideration of risk is essential in many Current review of Strategic and Operational | Likelihood (2)
management into the | areas, failure to have a well used standard | Risk Registers to confirm links to the Impact (4)
organisation approach to its consideration will impact on | Corporate and Service Plans. Risks

service provision, budgets and the overall | monitored through Pyramid and reported in _
achievement of the Council’s objectives performance scorecards. Corporate wide Medium
Risk Management Group and risk
management framework in place.
SR19 | Failure to progress Unable to provide critical services following | Recovery plans in place for identified Likelihood (2)

Business Continuity
Programme within the
Council and failure to
comply with CCA

a disruption resulting in impact on finance,
reputation and people

critical activities

Impact (4)

Medium

0| abed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SR20 | Failure to ensure the Legal challenge to decisions made by Code of Corporate Governance Likelihood (2)
Council acts in Council, departments or officers impacting | approved and arrangements in place to Impact (4)
accordance with the on reputation, finance and people implement and monitor. Council
law elmd 'tSfOW” . constitution, scheme of delegation sets | \\ .
;igolufzti?ur)r/er’znm:r\:\;%rre down processes for decision making,

. overnance arrangements in place.
the efficient and g g P
effective operation of
the corporate body

SR21 | Failure to maintain and | Impact on reputation, scrutiny from Addressed in Corporate Plan by Likelihood (1)
improve attainment Scottish Government outcome Education - making what's Impact (3)
and achievement good, better - Curriculum development to
levels of school pupils enable all young people to be:

e successful learners Low
¢ confident individuals
¢ effective contributors
Also addressed by outcomes in
Education Service Plan.
Success measures identified and
monitored through performance
scorecards.
SR22 | Failure to agree and Impact on Finance, budgets, reputation Options appraisal for School Estate to be Likelihood (4)

implement the School
Estates Strategy

completed in near future.

Impact (4)

Medium

L | ebed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk
assessment
rating

SR23 | Demographic/Societal | Impact on service provision, budgets and | Annual planning and budgeting round Likelihood (3)
changes which people allows potential burdens and financial Impact (4)
increase demand for consequences to be identified and built
services beyond into budgets and plans. Services have Medium
existing/planned identified cost pressures and demand
budget levels pressure for funding. Systems in place

to monitor expenditure on revenue and
capital budgets and identify service
demands beyond budget.

SR24 | Changes to Scottish Impact on service provision, budgets and Reassessment of service provision in Likelihood (3)
Government Policy people light of any proposed changes in policy. | Impact (3)
which increase Annual planning and budgeting round
demand for services allows potential burdens and financial Medi
be.y?.”d/ anned consequences to be identified and built | o
Eﬁg‘ég?lgvirl‘:e into budgets and plans. Services have

identified cost pressures and demand
pressure for funding.
SR25 | Failure to comply Resulting in possible prosecutions, Addressed by service outcome for health Likelihood (3)

with H&S legislation

injury, loss of life, loss of staff
resources and damage to reputation

and safety in Improvement and HR Service
Plan. KPIs for health and safety operations
included in performance scorecards. Based
on employment of qualified staff, individual
RAs and safe working methods developed,
procedures established.

Impact (4)

Medium

Z| abed



Budget Pack

Ref

Risk name

Consequences

Position/Progress at December 2009

Risk

assessment

rating

SR26 | Failure to attract Leading to reduction in service outcomes, | Excellent knowledge of current priorities | Likelihood (3)
external funding to impact on finance and budgets, possible and programme scope. Staff in place to | Impact (4)
assist councils impact on reputation through failure to meet demand
strategic projects deliver flagship projects .
during current and Medium
future funding
programmes

SR27 | Failure to effectively Leading to adverse economic and Addressed in Corporate Plan by outcome Likelihood (1)
manage the CHORD environmental impact, impact on reputation | for Waterfront and town centre Impact (4)
programme regeneration - Growth in confidence in the

area and strengthened economy based on
rejuvenation of the main towns as key Low
centres for economic activity.

Addressed by separate service outcome in
Service Plan for Economic Development

and Transportation.

PRINCE 2 programme management
arrangements now up and running and
Programme Plan approved.

SR28 | No longer in use,
merged with SR20

SR29 | No longer in use -

operational risk only.

¢ abed



Budget Pack

Ref

SR30

Risk name

Failure to meet
recycling targets

Consequences

Impact on budgets, reputation and people

Position/Progress at December 2009

Addressed by outcome in Corporate Plan
Modernising waste management -
Reduced environmental impact by reducing
waste going to landfill and increasing
recycling rates.

Addressed by service outcome for Waste
Management in Facility Services Service
Plan.

Success measure identified and
monitored through performance
scorecards.

Risk
assessment
rating

Likelihood (2)
Impact (4)

Medium

SR31

Failure of lifeline
ferries/damage to
ferries/collapse of ferry
contractor

Impact on finance, people, reputation and
time

Provision made in budget for operation
and maintenance of ferries. Constant
monitoring of condition of ferries and
contract arrangements. Maintenance of
fleet/contract for back up vessels

Likelihood (2)
Impact (4)

Medium

SR32

Failure to maintain
Council Roads
Infrastructure

Impact on budget, people and reputation

The Corporate Plan refers to Transport -
improving access to/ within the area. There
are adequate arrangements for
maintenance through the Roads Asset
Management Plan. Monthly monitoring
of conditions and keeping members
aware of situation

Likelihood (3)
Impact (3)

Medium

10

| abed



Budget Pack

Ref Risk name Consequences Position/Progress at December 2009 Risk
assessment
rating

SR33 | Failure to achieve Impact and budget and service provision Revenue budget and capital budget Likelihood (2)
income targets spending plans being revised as part of | Impact (3)

the planning and budget process.
Reporting and monitoring systems in Medium
place.

SR34 | Failure to ingather Impact on budget, service provision Addressed by service outcomes in ICT | Likelihood (3)
Council Tax and Non and Financial Services Service Plan. Impact (3)
Domestic Rates Success measures identified and

monitored through performance Medium
scorecards.

Risks are assessed using a combination of impact and likelihood using the criteria below. All risks are then classified as high, medium or
low using a simple matrix to generate an overall assessment.

Likelihood
Likelihood of Score Description

occurrence

Almost certain 5 Will undoubtedly happen, possibly frequently
Likely 4 Will probably happen, but not a persistent issue
Possible 3 May happen occasionally

Unlikely 2 Not expected to happen, but is possible
Remote 1 Very unlikely this will ever happen

Impact

Impact of Score Description
occurrence

Impact on Financial Impact on people Impact on time Impact on reputation
service delivery impact

11

G| abed



Budget Pack

Catastrophic 5 Unable to function, | Severe loss | Death Serious — more than 2 Highly damaging, severe
inability to fulfil years to recover pre- loss of public confidence
obligations event position

Major 4 Significant impact Major loss Extensive injury, major Major — 1-2 years to Major adverse publicity,
on service provision permanent harm recover pre-event major loss of confidence
position
Moderate 3 Service objectives Significant Medical treatment Considerable — 6-12 Some adverse publicity,
partially achievable | loss required, semi months to recover pre- legal implications
permanent harm up to 1 | event position
year
Minor 2 Minor impact on Moderate First aid treatment non- | Some — 2-6 months to Some public
service objectives loss permanent harmupto 1 | recover embarrassment, no damage
month to reputation
None 1 Minimal impact, no | Minimal loss | No obvious harm/ injury | Minimal — up to 2 months | No interest to the press,
service disruption to recover internal only

Overall assessment

Likelihood

Impact

Moderate

Catastrophic

9] abed

Almost certain Medium
Likely

Possible

Medium Medium

Medium Medium

Unlikely Medium

Remote

12



Argyll and Bute Council PNl
Corporate Plan [=BiB1(s

2010 — 2013 and beyond COUNCIL

forward
looking

outstanding
environment

vibrant
communities




Argyll and Bute Council
Corporate Plan 2010-2013 and beyond

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

DRAFT

Contact: Brian Barker, Policy and Strategy Manager, brian.barker@argyll-bute.gov.uk 01546 604436

Front page photo of the Kilmartin Eye courtesy of Kilmartin House Museum by Aaron Watson. The Kilmartin Eye is a landscape installation created to celebrate the
10th Anniversary of Kilmartin House Museum and the Year of Highland Culture. It was grant aided by Highland 07, Argyll and Bute Council, Awards for All,
Highlands and Islands Enterprise - Argyll and the Isles, the Esme Fairbairn Foundation, the Forestry Commission, M&K MacLeod and the Scottish Museums
Council.

© 2010 Argyll and Bute Council

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

g| abed



Foreword

Argyll and Bute Council is undergoing a significant period of
change in order to build a positive future - focusing on shared
best practice, past successes and forthcoming challenges. We
began our journey of improvement in 2009 and we have come a
long way over the past year, having significantly improved our
best value arrangements, increased our pace of change and
improved our approach to corporate planning, strategic
management and performance management. The changes over
the last year have ensured that the right processes are in place
to enable us to deliver the best possible services to our
customers — laying the foundations for improved and more
customer-focused services in the future.

The year ahead will be exciting, yet challenging and will see the
next stage of our improvement journey progress as we transform
the organisation to take us to where we need to be. Our plans
over the coming year will be to improve services on the ground
by continually challenging ourselves and assessing our
performance in line with the views of our customers, our
communities and our partners.

Our key priorities will cover education, the protection of
vulnerable people, developing the economy, improving customer
service, developing communities and protecting and enhancing
the environment. In focusing on these priorities, we will offer Best
Value services that are well matched to the needs of our
customers. All of this however, will be done within the context of
a tough economic climate — and one that will be shared by all
public bodies in the coming years.

In order to ensure that we are well-placed to overcome such
challenges, we are implementing a senior management
restructure and this will also reshape the Council’s departments.

Our new organisational and management structure will lend itself
to a much more customer-focused way of working.

In 2010/2011, as a new and improved organisation, we aim to
work with our partners in a more integrated way and to involve
our stakeholders in further improving the way we work and the
services we deliver.

Argyll and Bute has a promising future and with common
purpose and productive partnerships, that future will be
challenging, satisfying and prosperous.

We will maximise the potential of our employees, our Council,
our partnerships, our communities and Argyll and Bute as a
whole in order to develop a bright and sustainable future and we
will work closely with the Scottish Government to contribute to
their vision for a more successful Scotland.

Working together with customers, communities and partners, we
look forward to creating a better place to live, work and visit.

m 13 \\\ == )/_7
Councillor Dick Walsh Sally Loudon

Chief Executive
Argyll and Bute Council

Council Leader
Argyll and Bute Council

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

6] abed



Our Area

Argyll and Bute is an area of outstanding beauty and enormous
variety. With the second largest geographical area of any
Scottish local authority, the 7,000 square kilometres of Argyll and
Bute extends from Helensburgh west to the Atlantic islands of
Tiree and Coll, and from the Mull of Kintyre north to the edge of
Glencoe. We are a land of contrast and diversity with six towns,
many remote rural communities and 25 inhabited islands.

Geography, a changing population of 92,000 people, the local
economy and diverse communities, bring challenges as well as
strengths. The natural environment is among the most unspoiled
in the UK with a rich biodiversity. The west coast location and
proximity to Scotland’s main urban centres highlight the area’s
strategic importance for renewable energy on land and at sea.

The Council is working with partners to realise the area’s
potential - investing in new technology to overcome problems of
distance and isolation and raising our profile in Scotland, Britain
and Europe. We work to provide opportunities for our diverse
communities to prosper and we protect our unique natural and
cultural heritage through sensitive and sustainable development.

The challenges and risks we face

There are a range of factors that create significant challenges for
Argyll and Bute. The local acceptance of these characteristics as
being a ‘normal’ part of life tends to underplay or hide the
difficulties of living and working in the area. These include:

= the changing population

= the fact that people ‘living on the fringe’ can be excluded or
experience deprivation that is not acknowledged in
conventional measures

= the unique geography of the area

= vulnerabilities in the local economy

Changing population

Remote rural and island areas often act as an early warning for
population changes that can affect other areas. Higher priced
housing, lack of available property and an aging population act to
drive young people away or discourage them from moving to the
area. Projections up to 2024 show possible changes that are a
concern for more fragile communities. Particular concerns are
the large increase in the older population, the significant drop in
the younger population and the decrease in working age people.

Projected % Change in population

2001-2015 2001-2024
Argyll and Bute -2% -4%
Bute and Cowal +4% +9%
North Kintyre and Mid-Argyll +6% +9%
Oban, Lorn and the Islands +3% +3%
Helensburgh and Lomond -10% -15%
South Kintyre and Islands -12% -25%

People on the fringe

| Life in rural and island areas often places
additional pressures on people, for example
dependence on the car, higher fuel costs and
the distance to basic services such as
hospitals, supermarkets and schools. There
can be very poor people living alongside
comparatively rich people — excluded or
deprived individuals and households are much
less visible in rural areas.

The Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD) and additional
local analysis related to the Fairer Scotland Fund reinforces the
picture of diverse needs across the area.

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

0z abed



Our geography

25 of the 95 inhabited islands in Scotland are located in Argyll
and Bute — 16% of the total Scottish island population lives in the
area. Approx 45% of the population lives in settlements of 5000
or more people and at the opposite extreme 1 in 5 people do not
live in a settlement (a settlement is 6 or more households).

Our Economy

Argyll and Bute’s economy is predominantly service-based with
over 85% of jobs provided in the service sector. The proportions
of people working in the agriculture, forestry and fishing sectors
and tourism-related activities are far higher than Scottish
averages — as expected, e.g. tourism-related activities account
for 15% of jobs in Argyll and Bute compared with the Scottish
average of 9%.

Unemployment rates are below the national average, but vary
according to the time of year because of the high levels of
seasonal and part-time employment. This reflects the importance
of tourism in the local economy.

The full impact of the economic downturn may not yet have been
felt within Argyll and Bute. We have the highest proportion in
Scotland of people working in the public sector and effects on
employment and the economy will soon start to be felt as the
most challenging cuts in public sector spending start to bite.
There is therefore a risk that as other parts of Scotland start to
recover as the private sector recovers, Argyll and Bute may
suffer further impacts on the economy.

GVA (Gross Value Added) figures show that our economy is
performing less strongly than the Scottish average. Average
earnings in Argyll and Bute are 4% lower than those in Scotland
as a whole. Levels of self-employment are highest in the Atlantic
islands, which could be due to the limited job prospects, the lack
of major employers and the tradition of crofting on some islands.

Strategic risks

The Council’s strategic risk register details the risks that face all
services or which are so significant for a specific service that
there is a Council wide risk. The risks are assessed as high,
medium or low and are reviewed each quarter. Each risk has
associated actions to control or mitigate the risk.

The Council is developing a risk management framework that
categorises each strategic risk to communicate more clearly the
areas where the Council needs to direct resources to reduce risk.

We deliver

Argyll and Bute Council has delivered on significant
commitments made in the corporate plan agreed in February
2009 and continues to progress the longer term changes outlined
in that plan. Service highlights from the past year include:

= The CHORD programme progressed well

= Partnership work to bring Welcon to Kintyre saved existing
jobs, with the potential for significant future growth

=  Work got underway to unlock the economic potential of the
proposed Campbeltown-Ballycastle route

= Local Plan was adopted after significant consultation

= Recycling scheme won awards with a 55% increase in
recycling in Helensburgh and Lomond

= Integrated care teams assisted with timelier discharge from
hospital for patients

= Business Gateway service was established to provide advice
to new and developing small businesses

= Best ever performance for reading, writing and maths in
primary schools and best ever Advanced Higher results

= Improved facilities at Port Askaig and Rothesay Harbour

= Improved choice of temporary housing for homeless people
and reduced number of people presenting as homeless

= Highest spend ever of £6M on road reconstruction and
maintenance in 2009/10

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

Lz abed



Robust performance management

The Council has a Planning and Performance Management
Framework (PPMF) that ensures that performance is integral to
the Council’s daily work. The PPMF specifies the structure and
processes for performance management at all levels. Plans are
developed to respond to service demand and risks. All plans
specify the outcomes to be achieved, success measures and
risks to be reduced.

All plans, from corporate to team plans, have a performance
scorecard that is reviewed on a regular basis. Summary reports
of action to be taken in response to the scorecard reviews are
formally reported to senior management and Members to ensure
that the Council continually improves its performance.

Our vision and values

The Council is moving through a significant period of change to
respond to external challenges and to draw upon untapped
potential in all areas of our work so that we can improve service
quality and efficiency.

The developing Council vision will focus on the theme realising
our potential, building on actions in the previous corporate plan
focused on improving how the Council works.

The Council has also reflected on the core values that describe
the standard of behaviours expected throughout the whole
organisation and these values will reflect the fact that we are
‘One Council’:

We value and listen to our stakeholders

We have mutual respect for one another

We have pride in our Council and its services
We are continually improving our standards
We are open, honest, fair and inclusive

We are proactive and challenging

Partnership links

There are important links between this Corporate Plan for the
Council, the Community Plan and the Single Outcome
Agreement (SOA) for Argyll and Bute. The Community Plan and
SOA set out the vision and outcomes agreed by the Argyll and
Bute Community Planning Partnership and how these contribute
to the Scottish Government’s 15 national outcomes.

The outcomes and success measures set out in this plan are
Council’s contribution to the SOA. Each outcome supports one or
more of the national outcomes. This demonstrates the important
contribution that Argyll and Bute Council has to make to the
future success of Scotland.

Community planning partners have contributed to the SOA on
the same basis so that the SOA gives a clear picture of the
important outcomes for Argyll and Bute and the partnership
action to make them happen.

The Council is also working with partners through the four Local
Area Community Planning Groups to ensure that service
planning and delivery at a more local level is focused on the
needs of the communities in those areas and coordinated to
ensure that we make best use of public resources.

Priorities for partnership development for the Council and CPP
are focused on:

= Improving community engagement so that we link with more
people and more groups in a way that reflects the diversity of
Argyll and Bute’s people and places

= More effective engagement with the third sector and
developing improved support for community based
organisations

= Finding opportunities to improve integration, service quality
and efficiency in local areas and Argyll and Bute wide

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

22 abed



Corporate Plan 2010-2013 and beyond

Leading Rural
Area

Outstanding
Environment

Vibrant
Communities

Forward
Looking

Council Strategic
Objectives

Environment — promoting
our cultural, social and
natural heritage and
protecting our unique area

Social Change — affecting
demographic change,
caring for vulnerable people
and lifelong learning

Economy — creating an
attractive, well connected,
modern economy

Organisational
Development — improving,
innovative, proactive and
successful

Strategic Outcomes

Tackling climate change

Modernising waste management
Sustainable growth — community benefits
from the environment

Education — making what’s good, better
Modernising social work
Housing — more homes, less homelessness

Transport — improving access to/within the
area
Waterfront and town centre regeneration

Qiinnartina ArnwinA hiicinaccac

People management

Working together in partnership
Improving the way we work
Involving our communities

Campaigning for Argyll and Bute

Infrastructure

= Roads network
= Renewables

= Broadband

Developing the economy
= Developing new opportunities
= Strengthening existing businesses

Remote and island communities
= Removing barriers to travel

= Opportunities for young people
= People ‘on the fringe’

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010



Outstanding Environment

Environment - promoting our cultural, social and natural heritage and protecting our unique area

Outcome

Source of Risks

Outcome

Success measures Additional Budget

(revenue capital’)

2010/11
£000s

2011/12
£000s

2012/13
£000s

of Argyll and Bute's
environmental assets

Renewables Action Plan agreed in
mid-2010

ABCO1 | Tackling climate Base 26,491 tonnes CO2 National
change Target 23,917 tonnes outcomes
Argyll and Bute Reduction 9.7% (2,574 tonnes) 2,121? 2,172 2,229 | 12,14
contributing to national tbc tbc tbe
action on climate
change
ABCO02 | Modernising waste Recycling rate greater than 40% National SR30 - failure
management (2007/8 baseline 35%) outcomes to meet
Reduced environmental | BMW? to landfill 12,14 recycling targets
impact by reducing = 2010/11 less than 24,560
waste going to landfill tonnes 10,308 10,785 11,267
and increasing recycling | = 2011/12 less than 21,500
rates tonnes
= 2012/13 less than 18,373
tonnes
ABCO03 | Sustainable growth - 20 producers using the Food From National
community benefits Argyll identity rising to 80 in outcomes
from the environment 2012/13 tbc when tbc when tbc when 2,12, 14
Economic growth built Success measures for renewables EDAP* EDAP EDAP
on the sustainable use development to be agreed once agreed agreed agreed

! Capital programme to be considered by March Council meeting
2 Includes property maintenance
® BMW — Biodegradable Municipal Waste

* EDAP — Economic Development Action Plan to be agreed in March 2010

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

{2 obed



Vibrant Communities
Social Change - affecting demographic change, caring for vulnerable people and lifelong learning
Ref Outcome Success measures Additional Budget

Source of Risks

Outcome

(revenue capital’)

2010/ 11
£000s

2011/12 2012/ 13
£000s £000s

ABCO04 | Education - making Maintain percentage of early years National SR03 - failure to
what's good, better children accessing the appropriate outcomes | implement
Curriculum development | entitled service at 100% 3,4,57, 8 | legislation in relation
to enable all young Raised attainment of Looked After to the young and
people to be: Children vulnerable
= successful learners | Improved primary attainment 85,377 81,740 83,247 SR21 — failure to
= confident individuals Improved SQA performance maintain and
= effective contributors improve attainment/
= responsible citizens achievement levels

of school pupils

ABCO05 | Modernising social Increase levels of community based National SRO03 — failure to
work support for children affected by 58,840 59,762 60,946 | outcomes | implement
Modernisation of the disability - target 80% - base 75% 5,6,7,8, |legislation in relation
social work service in Proportion of looked after and 9 to the young and

line with changing
patterns of need to
ensure that services are
directed at the most
vulnerable and needy
members of our
community.

accommodated children who are cared
for by a foster carer — target 52%

Shift balance of care for older people:

= target 65% cared for in care home

= target 35% receiving intensive
home care (10+ hours per week)

Home care adults waiting list less than
3 months

Residential care adults waiting list less
than 3 months

Number of delayed discharges zero

vulnerable

SR23 -
Demographic/
societal changes
which increase
demand for services
beyond existing /
planned budget
levels

° Capital programme to be considered by March Council meeting

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

Gz obed



Vibrant Communities
Social Change - affecting demographic change, caring for vulnerable people and lifelong learning
Ref Outcome Success measures Additional Budget Source of

(revenue capital’) Outcome
2010/11 2011/12 2012/ 13
£000s £000s £000s

Reduce resource centre placement for
learning disability clients by 20% per
annum for 2010-13 (balance shifts to
personalised packages)

ABCO06 | Housing - more 75 shared equity and social rented National SR03 - failure to
homes, less houses per year outcomes | implement
homelessness Proportion of households assessed as 7,10 legislation in relation
Release of more land for | homeless and as having a priority need 13292 1364 1407 to the young and

housing to create more for accommodation — 100% for 2012/13 vulnerable

affordable housing and a | Reduce repeat homelessness to 3.5%
reduction in and maintain level
homelessness

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010
10

9z obed



Vibrant Communities

Economy - creating an attractive, well connected, modern economy

Ref Outcome Success measures Additional Budget Source of Risks
Outcome

(revenue capital®)

2010/ 11
£000s

2011/12 2012/ 13
£000s £000s

ABCO07 | Transport - improving access Completed transport / National SR26 - failure to
to/ within the area infrastructure projects, outcomes | attract external
including: 2,10, 12, | funding to assist
= A83 south of Muasdale 14 Council’s strategic

= A819 north of Inveraray
= Asset sustainability
= Tayinloan Pier

Percentage of road network to
be considered for maintenance
(SRMCS’ survey results)

tbc

tbc

tbe

projects during
current and future
funding programmes
leading to reduction
in service outcomes
SR31 - Failure of
ferries/ damage to
ferries/ collapse of
ferry contractor
SR32 - Failure to
maintain roads
infrastructure

6 Capital programme to be considered by March Council meeting
" SRMCS — Scottish Road Maintenance Condition Survey

11

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

)2 9bed



Vibrant Communities

Economy - creating an attractive, well connected, modern economy

Ref Outcome Success measures Additional Budget Source of Risks

(revenue capital®) Outcome
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
£000s £000s £000s

ABCO08 | Waterfront and town centre Success measures for National SR26 - failure to
regeneration CHORD programme to be outcomes | attract external
Growth in confidence in the area | agreed once benefits 1, 2,9, 10, | funding to assist
and strengthened economy realisation analysis complete 11,12 Council’s strategic
based on rejuvenation of the in mid 2010 projects during
main towns as key centres for current and future
economic activity and sustainable funding programmes
economic growth 510 518 528 leading to reduction

tbc tbc tbc in service outcomes

SR27 — Failure to
implement agreed
CHORD programme
leading to adverse
economic and
environmental

impact
ABCOQ9 | Supporting growing Business start ups supported — National
businesses 135 in 2010/11 outcomes
Economic growth from new Existing businesses assisted — 334 340 346 2,3

businesses, expansion of existing | 200+ in 2010/11
businesses and improved long
term success

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010
12

Qz obed



Forward Looking

Organisational Development - continuous improvement, innovation and culture change

Ref

Outcome

People management

Success measures

Completed PDR rate greater than

Additional Budget
(revenue capital®)

2010/ 11
£000s

2011/12 2012/ 13
£000s

£000s

Source of Risks

Outcome

National

SRO01 - staff absence

bc¢ @btd

year NPV savings £2,206,000

Enabling the Council to 85% outcomes | SR02 — recruitment and
have the right people Staff absence rates stay within the top 1829 1865 1902 10, 15 retention of high quality
with the right skills in the | 5 for Scottish councils ’ ’ ’ staff
right place at the right Increase the percentage of employees SRO08 — failure to realise
time to deliver excellent | who feel happy in their job efficiency gains
services Process for Change Workforce

deployment 5 year NPV savings 743 710 712

£1,462,000 )

ABC11 | Working together in Outcomes on each theme from the National SRO09 — failure to progress
partnership community plan achieved outcomes | community planning
Developing effective Third Sector success measures to be 10, 11, 15 | partnership
working relationships to | agreed in mid 2010, once Interface 970 970 970
deliver integrated partnership agreement signed off
customer focused and
cost effective services
ABC12 | Improving the way we | Transformation Programme measures National

work to be confirmed once action plan outcomes
Transformation of the agreed in early 2010 345 352 358 | 10,15
organisation to ensure Proportion of services/teams
that Best Value services | completing a PSIF® self assessment
are delivered Process for Change Procurement 5 143 143 156

8 Capital programme to be considered by March Council meeting
° PSIF — Public Service Improvement Framework

13

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010



Forward Looking

Organisational Development - continuous improvement, innovation and culture change

Ref Outcome Success measures Additional Budget Source of Risks

(revenue capital®) Outcome
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
£000s £000s £000s

ABC13 | Involving our Communications — increase the National
communities proportion of people who feel outcomes
Ensuring that customer informed about public services by 15 10, 11, 15
and community needs percentage points by March 2013 646 658 671
are at the heart of Community Engagement — increase

Council service delivery | the proportion of people satisfied with
information about local area meetings
by 10 percentage points

Customer satisfaction — increase the
proportion of people satisfied with the
way the Council runs things by 15
percentage points ¢
Public Performance Reporting —
increase the proportion of people who
feel that the Council provides value for
money by 10 percentage points
Process for Change Customer
management 5 year NPV savings
£738,000

o¢ ebed

241 230 208
274 65 25

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010
14



Financial outlook

The 2010-11 financial settlement represents the most
challenging finance settlement for a number of years. Looking
forward to 2011-12 and 2012-13 the expectation is one of
significant constraint in funding for local government. This arises
from the overall need to contain public sector expenditure and
reduce public sector borrowing to stabilise the national economy.
Local government including Argyll & Bute Council will need to
play a part in this. Without doubt this will present a number of
substantial challenges for the council, the people of Argyll &
Bute, our partners, our staff and service users.

Given the scale of these challenges, a more corporate and
strategic approach to the budget was required and a three year
programme of service reviews has been established. This
programme will see a radical review of each service of the
Council over the next three years. An initial target for services to
identify options to reduce costs by 15% was set. The Council
recognised that this might be difficult to achieve in the first year
of the reviews and quick win savings have been identified from
the services that will not be reviewed in the first year of the
review programme.

The total funding from revenue support grant and council tax for
2010-11 is estimated at £264.7m. The draft budget amounts to
£264.4m assuming all cost pressures, demand pressures,
service review and quick win savings are approved. This leaves
a surplus balance of £0.4m to be dealt with as part of the budget
process.

The funding gap for 2011-12 and 2012-13 has been estimated at
£10.948m and £11.257m. The 2011-12 and 2012-13 forecast

allows no increase in funding. An allowance has been included
for demand growth of 2%, based on a general national
assumption around potential future growth in demand for local
government services over the next few years. This is mainly
influenced by demographic change. The assumption around a
constant level of funding may be too optimistic in the light of
projections of a real cut in spending power of 12% over 3 years.

Allowing for a 1% cash reduction in funding would increase the
funding gap by a further £2.650m each year. This may be offset
by lower assumptions around inflation and demand growth.

However it is probably reasonable to assume that the funding
gap will be in the order of £9m to £13m for 2011-12 and 2012-13.

The three year service review programme should identify savings
options of around £10-£11m per annum which together with the
savings remaining from the Year 1 reviews of £6m should be
sufficient to address the funding gap.

15

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

L¢ abed



Campaigning for Argyll and Bute

The campaigning topics detailed below reflect topics that are important to the future success of the area, but where the Council can make
a limited direct contribution. They are topics where the Council wants to influence others — specifically the Scottish Government, but also
UK government, partners and private sector investors and businesses.

Main

campaigning
theme
Infrastructure

Roads network

Outcome

Improve condition and extent of the trunk network to improve perceptions of the area
and ease access for businesses, residents and visitors

National
Outcome links

1,2,10

Capital investment to maintain and improve the road network (non-trunk roads) 2,10, 15
Renewables Enhanced grid capacity and support to enable growth for commercial and 2,11,12,13, 14
community benefit from renewables
Broadband Increased network speed and coverage to enable business growth, public access to
internet based services and more efficient delivery of public services
Developing the | Developing new Developing Argyll and Bute as a quality destination, creating higher quality jobs and | 1, 2, 12, 13, 14
economy opportunities extending the tourism season
Rejuvenation of the main towns to attract people and businesses to Argyll and Bute | 2, 9, 10, 11, 12
Bring high value jobs and careers to rural areas 1,2
Strengthening Support for agriculture, forestry, aquaculture and fishing as important sectors in the | 2, 12, 14
existing businesses local economy
Remote and Removing barriers to | Developing the Campbeltown-Ballycastle ferry service to bring economic benefitsto | 1, 2
island travel West Highlands and N Ireland
communities Supporting fast frequent services and inter-island links 2,5,7,10, 11
Support for an unrestricted vehicle and passenger town centre to town centre ferry 1,2,10
service between Gourock and Dunoon
Introduce a ferry discount scheme on all routes to improve access to islands and 2,5,10,12
viability of island communities
Opportunities for Development and support for vocational education so that young people can access | 3, 4, 10
young people training and employment without leaving the area
Investment in and access to affordable housing for young people and families 5,6,7,8,10,12
allowing them to move to or stay in communities across Argyll and Bute
People ‘on the fringe’ | Improved methods to identify and provide support for excluded or deprived groups 6,7,8,9 10, 11
Supersparsity and the cost of service delivery 4,7,10, 15

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010

16

25 abed



The Council carries out equalities impact assessments for policy

Sustainability and equa"ties and service development. There is a Sustainability Assessment
process to improve policies, projects and services.

The Council has also made specific commitments for sustainable
development and equal opportunities that guide the development Plana Gaidhlig 2008/09-2011/12
of the Council and delivery of its services. Gaelic Ianguage pIan 2008/09-2011/12

There are five guiding principles for sustainable development The Council aims to encourage people to use Gaelic by
that help to direct service improvements and developments expanding the range of Gaelic services and resources available.
towards the overall Council vision. They are The Council’s first Gaelic Language Plan has established a base

= developing, empowering and including our communities from which to develop.

= protecting, enhancing and managing natural resources and
environment

= developing the economy using innovative and creative
solutions

= taking an open, honest and accountable approach

= taking decisions that will maximise benefit and minimise
adverse impact across these areas

The Plan contributes to national aims to promote the use of
Gaelic in Scottish public life and to encourage increased use of
Gaelic in the home, community, places of learning and at work.

The Council’'s Gaelic Language Plan has the following aims:

= Identity — enhancing visibility of Gaelic, showing that the

The Council has a single Equality and Diversity Scheme that language is valued and giving it recognition ,
includes commitments to promote equality in terms of race, = Communications — increase the audible presence of Gaelic

disability and gender. The Scheme will be further developed and language by creating opportunities for the practical use of
has the key principles that: Gaelic in dealings with the Council

= Publications — making important information available in
Gaelic and enhancing the status of the language

= no-one is disadvantaged because of their race or ethnic . ' ) , :
= Staffing — developing language skills and job skills

origin, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation, or religion
and belief

= the differences between people are valued and good relations
between groups are promoted

= people are treated fairly and with equal respect

= informed assessments are made on the impact of policies
and services

= people are involved in the decisions that affect them and
encouraged to participate in public life

2010 revision v11 for Council 11 Feb 2010
17

c¢ abed



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35

juswebebuzg Aunwwios aAodalg

SOOINIBG

pue aJnjonsequ| Jodsuel| sAo8y

Anuapt Ajlunwiwon
Buoang aAey pue A)AIDY JILoU0d]
J0 saqjua) Buosg ale Yoiym umo |

uoisnjou|

[e100S pue Buiag JIopA ‘UlesH parcidu

saniunwwoy aJndag ‘buolis ‘ajeg

So)IUNWLIOY)

puE SUMO . INO U] 3plid DIAID paaoidul]

SaljLOLd Baly |emo) g aing

[n§ssa00NSs pue
aaoeoud ‘eaeaouu) ‘Buiaoidu
— Juswdojana( |euonesiuebin

Aulouo29 UIspoul ‘Pajoauuod ||om
‘aAoeIe ue Bunealto — Awouoosg

Buiuies)

Buojey| pue ajdoad ajqelauna
Joj Bunes ‘sbueys oiydesGowap
Bunosye — sbueyn |epog

eaJe anbjun uno Bunosyoid pue
abejuay [einjeu pue [e190S ‘[edn}no
Jno Bupowioud - JuswuosAUg

SOAN0a[qO o168)eng (1oUN0)

juswiuodiaug BuipueisinQ

ealy |einy Buipesn




Page 36

uoponpa eely
usuidojoasp eoly

SHSiY

pesry

se3ep
Aay

Samseal SS00sNng

poeoe Apdwoud pejyepdn E_wn!s_
peiinbes eoinoses yels Bulobuo Kopys|  Apsuenp Kem siy) Ul pesiyand sjueAs Jo iequinN| [ounod uo Areig sjueAd [esjue) sbied |BmMoD pue eng|
wnnd 80IAPR/UOHBULIOI
sus|y Yum popiacid S[BASS) PUE SIUSA® JO JequInN *S[BASS) PUE SJUSAS 10§ BUIPUN} [ELISIXS UO BJIAPY
LLIOLOZ| sjuene ease olbejens
U 1e6png [enyng Jo uononpey| uueDOW Jed sjueAe Aey 40 JequinN Aliiqeureisng 1o filounod woyy diysiosuods Jo [eAs] peutelsng
*Bunpiom diysieuped ybnoiyy Buipuny | X 1 oo Bu) | SJUBAS PUE S|BASS)
PeAjosSIp poejoep pue puny [epdeo ey} ‘sjuesb Justudoieaep eansie]| aisnu pue pooy} ‘Alesey ‘sHe ‘spods ‘Bupyiem ul ymoib
sdiysisuped ‘peonped jebpnq Juel) Aepys ybnouy) pepoddns sjeAl}sey pue sjtieAd Jo JequinN eyy Buibeinoous Aq pejediew s|eAlse pue sjueay
‘eele [EMOQ ¢ eing Ul seele Aejd
“sdiysusuped llounod 40 94,05 sjueseidel siy] ‘6002 Hueqpues *sefiunpoddo]
U0y 03 Jseseul Apunusuo) Jo yoe 119) uely pue Aeg )sepn 1o} pewiso diysieuped |euod Buipuny pue sdiysieuyred eese Aejd dojereq
‘podey sjuelnsuo) esn) pueT ey} Ui SUCRPUBILLICOS)
oty Bulpnjous "eesy ey} 0} sjueweAosdw [EJUBLILCHAUS
PlRUOQOW 010z sjuswenoidw 10 10 swwesbosd e eredesd ‘Buipuny jewe)xe
peanoes Jou Jefipng ug|ly| Jewwng|ewweibosd dojeaep o} Jeol0 uewdojereq edInIeS BUIUIB)GO O} MOIA © LM SBHIUNLUILLIOD YIm BuiIopm
pieuoqoe Seele Joy}0 0} pepusixe
uelly| Apeyeno Aeseyjoy pue Wiy U $s800Ns puejjoos Injineeg
preuogoe SV
ueyy| Apepenp| - weysks 1 \ PUE ypny 13 [200]
pleucgoepy
ue|ly| Ayepenp SWIO- WeysAS Buuoyuop Xepu) sseullues|d
Preuogoepy penss|
uely| Auepent $6UId 0 JOqUINN - BOIAISS JESIJO BUSOSISaNS
pleuogoepy
ue|y| Auepent penss| seuld Jo JequinN - Buinoy Bog
pleuogoeny ‘ausosieans Jo uojejueweldu Aq sebejia
ue|y| Aleyend sjure(dwod Jo Jequinn - Buinog foa| pue sumoy jo I pueAus |ensiA duy

LB cAGRIOR O SUSHIY

SOIIUNILIOD pue
SUMO) INo uf epud oIAD peraidu)

eeJe enbjun no Buposioid pue ebejpiey jeinjeu pue [e1vos ‘feinyno no Bunowold - JuewuolAug
wWuGHALT Buipuelsing

IAVMOD 2 3LN8 ¥0d NV1d VIV




Page 37

uoneisibe) ul ebuey) “pesoaid o}
[eanoeid) Sweyos exew Juelussesse

‘010z Aleniqed eje| peubisep aq o} pewwesboid
Seweyos | JeoA JO 1s]| 0} poppe useq sey esoeus|s)
k ypues pue peoy v
EmEemeom_usv:m:o:m_mawamsozum

=2

UORONGIEI LAY
jusudojenap

pory

Weueq Jso) “Ajuoud exe) seweyos 211102 [emoD) pue eing Inoybnoiy seinsesw
Jeyl0 "peonpe jebpnq jeyden| ey uely|  LL/0LOZ | Isisse o) 6002 a pejutodde sy ) d [ejseco pue poolj dojeAep pue ssessy
‘polejdwod eweyog
'Yd3S ‘sesseoaid |ebej ‘suopuoo
Jexew ‘Buipury ‘Jeyeem ‘snjesedde
Ay onignd punoiBiepun ‘suogipuco
punoiB ‘smoj Jo Juewebeuew
PpuB SMO} Jlife) ‘puB| 0} SS800Y| 0l pue 60 *PeSUSWILLIOD SHOM
0L0C ‘pejeiduioco eseyd ubiseq
LIS
4o0|INdoN “pejejduiod uojjuenesd pool4 uing UOHIN 6y JO ¢ )

YUY’

01/6002

sedies jexyleunsdns uiypm uonoes sujedid

BINSLIU SBFAONAZ

Kq peyoejod eq jiim Buipooy 0} elqns seely.

BHICHINO BABIYDE O} SUOHOY

) 1oy} ul 81noss
pue Buous ‘ejes |0ey ejdoed

swoNny  Jey

eate enbjun no Bujosjold pue ebejiey jeinjeu pue [eoos ‘feIn)nd Jno Buljowosd - ustuuoiAug

wpruoaLy Burpueising




Page 38

linqeanyg eslidiejus [B100S SB GORILLIOD enueA Ueouco pue Yods ‘uoljeesoel

e 6002 weweBeuet pe| Ayunwitiioo Jo [spows dojereq J00pyno se N Aessy)oy Jo a
inqun, (v1s)
urpepy ewesiBy joAsT solA1eS & Buldnpold
{Inqwn 1 pejeidwog Bujures}. ‘peinuep] SIS
upep pue seliiqisucdsey 18qusiy eapIUILIcD
linquing j neol 2 D
ue pue seoinog Buipun 4 [enuejod
finqun L
utpey udoddy Bun
Inquang | Buysiiqelse Aq cm_._&wi.w [e100s se mmEEES
e 6002 justeBeuews ps| Ayuniuwios jo jepowu dojered
sndwes jooyog Alewitd
Wior Jo uoisiroid yum Aliioe] Jo Juswdoieasp peduly
RERd
0102 [Aq diysteupred ur pepiaoid Ayjioey Buibueto peacidw|
pleuogoeyy BenueA Jsduod pue f_aw ‘u ljeelool
steuped Bulipm ue|ly 6002 N0 pouies seyold o} sjuewercidw) feydesd 100PJNO SE WN|Pe)S uooung Jo Juswidojeasq
finquin L
seynoyp Butpung e Kupoey jo uoisinoid
TInGuiny |
Jusuuonaue Buipuny Buibueyn Buipuny [euseixe sseooy|
60-08Q oeiby/|
s|ge|ieAs sesiwesd popwir| 60-000 pejeldwioo -sestweaid sjqepns Ayusp] JusuILOIAUS)
nquing @61 |oyoo|e pue Brup = uy sjdoed BunoA no 4oy peloid
sehe(d A0 JO JUSLNWWIOD PENURUCD e | 60 Ae poje|diuco -Uejd SSeUISN| 1SNGO) 80NPold|  AIBUCISISAIP PesBq SIS & JO uooun@ Ui juswdojeasd
Inquiny | pue Jesp sje| |ooyos
Uiely | [elouBUlg|  LWOI SWOOU| - SOINjIOB) [00YIS MBU JO 8N esesiou|
linquiny | pue Jeex 89| *$|00YOS MOU INC U} SeNjioe} 0} $$e30. Jo Alenbe

ep| [eoueuld| jo Jequinu fejo} -se

08} |O0LOS MOU JO 6SN 6sBSIOU]|  pUB esn AJUnWWco e|qepioye wnwixew ebeinoou3)

uoljonpes ealy

puAH euueor 1EMOD) 10§ Wee ) 6487 JYBILIeAQ Jo justudojereq
puAH euueor anued esed pelelbelu] Jo uolsiaold
PuAH euueo wes | ese) pelesbelu jo uonejuswusidiul Ny Augesip Aq peeye sellitie) Joj seflioe) peacdu|
founo ey} o} emnypuedxe
eseeou (Z Ajuenbesuod pue
tejsiBey uoosiold PIYD BY) Uo Jo
©1E9 U] USIP{IYD JO SISqUINU 8seeIou)
(1 Ut ynses Aew uelpiyd o|qeieuINA 1o} ‘mojeBunq ‘penoIdwl eJe uoisnjoul
selioe) ejenbepe eplacid 0} einjied [uesung uyop, )] di inosd puE e)is eyinjoung ey} Jo JuewdojeAspss pue ubisepey |etoos pue Buiedjiem ‘yjeeH

juswdo|eAsp Baly

sysIy peaq S3INSBOW $5800NG BWOIINO BASILDIE O} SUOHOY awo2No 1o

Buiee) Buojeyy pue eidoed eiqessulna 1oy Buues ‘ebueyd slydesowsp Buioeye - ebueyd eog
S} UNWIWOY JUBIQIA




Page 39

pejeidwiog pefoid

peouswwo) wefold

PopJEME pUB Pelopus) JPBUCD

peinoes Buipuny

uoNonNpal easy

sudojansp eesy

sounoses ooy pesnbes Burpung

weugeq
B|OOIN

600

6002 Jowwns pedojeasp Qid

SaINSEs $5099NG

weugeq ese) sseulsng pesijeuld Yym e
BlOoIN 1102 peelby pue pedojers ese) sseuisng esljeuld|  ul pejejdwod eanenut ebejusH edeosumo) Aeseyjoy
pejedwog psfoid
pesusuwo) pefold
pepiEME PUB PeIepus) JOBII0D
paunoss Buipuny
SOLUOOING J8A[SP O} POUIBJUIEtL 8] 0} weugeq Bse)) sseuisng pesifeul ym
popoou Supjiom diysieuped Buysixg BIOOIN 1102, pesiby pue pedojeaeq ese) sseuisng pesijeul ou| ul pejeiduod Juewdojeaepes uolined Aeseujoy
SOUWO0ING JOAIEP 0) PoulejuIew
eq 0} pepesu Buppom diysieuped poeToep |emoQ) pue uoounq
Buysixa  pedinbes Butpundy fepiys 010z | uerd uonoe dnoib WL euy woy suonoe o KieAleq uojeunseq, pueiq ey Bunowoiy pue Buidopaeq
US|SM ule] (U374 peje|dwioo siom JHOL
Ite} spiq Buipund|  ysjem uge 6002 pig uoeleueBey efues UMo)
uoneloosse| SUIOYSIA PUE SJuSpisel
pedinbes poe-tory jeoo| pue A Y uol] Joy eoueisedxe Buiddoys Ayfenb ybiy e epiacid o}
©0iNosel 80O ‘pelinbes Buipung Kelus 6002 uf ped sueyd AP pajieleq 1fejel 190nS KBy oy} Jo Jusuidojerspey
|euoyesedo
posToepy pue paeddinbe sped Aejd ‘NNYTD upm diysieuyred
peJinbey Buipuny S Lioz|w oo A 1S ) ped 40 Z eseyd Med Bums Aeg jsem ey o Jusuidojerepeyy
feuoliesedo pue pejejdwios Apjoey
Peiopus) PeNUOD
siiey pig Buipun g peanoes Bulpuny -sse001d
L1102 padojonap ese) sseuisng (N4 080 GHOHD ou} Jo ped se [ley sueeny ey} Jo
| —__peinbei| poeoepy 1 Aq eose ay) je Aok eansie|
00IN0se1 JS0WO  pesinbe Buipung Koys 0102 pedojersp Qid|  pue SiAI0 usALp sewnsuoo AYfenb yBiy e Jo uoisiclg
¥LIEL0Z leuoneledo pue psjejdwios Ayjoey
zL0g paiepus) oenuoy
site) pig Buipuny ZLi1102 peinoes Butpung
1102 pedojersp ese) sseuisng (N4
010C
Buuds 0102 Bundg pejejduwico ueld uonejuswsidw]

jJuospejeAr uooUN Jo Juswdojereq

SWIODINO BABIYDE O} SUONIY

Anuep! Ajpunwiwos Buois eaey
PUB APAGOE DILIOUOOS JO SB1UeD.
eJe yolym sumo) Buidojereg

swoong 194

Awouooe usepow ‘PejosuLIoo oM ‘eAdEINE Ue Buneeso - Awoucol
SONRIUNUIWOY JUBIGIA




Page 40

uoisinold
podsuely jeiny o) sjueweAoldw] J0 JSqunN

pedojereq ue|d UOHOY

uosdwig
temoy

0102

peusiiqe}sa dnoio

wniod Jodsuei 807 Jo JuswdoAreq

ueaey,4 eyisoddo Aeq Sunyied peoy |46y

ansst [euuo)
10} slepenbpeoR YIM -SUpD Bunys %

onss!
[BULO} 40§ SIBHBNDPBSH M -SUPD BUNYS
g UeARY, 4 ejisoddo Aeq Bubyed peoy ||KBay

posodoud so) Juewissesse olyyes Ul pepnioUl aq
0} -erug pue peoy YbiH

upjsojunq je sjuewdoleaep

$]88.4)S LOOUN( Ul POPNDIUI -BPISISBAL
oe1g UL JO OIS YHON epeled uuepy

10pIO sieens
uooung Ul PePNioUI -epeJed BULBY WY

19pIQ SjeBIlS uooung
ul pepnious -jees epAID /oY IIABIY

JI6pIO SJPORS Uooung Ul
pepniou] -peoY SUSeND / PEcy YoSJWoID

‘pepuswe sjesodosd ‘Bunsew
sseuisng je pejepdn -SNOLIBA §198.)g uooung

‘siepio oyjes) Aresodwie) [ewieixe pue
jebpng 310MjeN speoy uo spuedeq

ey uely

6002

-:$0LBUOS JusLeBRUBY dYjel ] JO MeINeY

Butobuo
0L0Z]

*JeeA JXeU 10§ JOJUOW puE BsEeq
se Jeek siy} esn * peseelou Jou JeBpng “Jeok eseq
woyy peasioe Buuesio gruos u) esesioul sbejusoled

*sejuedwoo Buiul| jo Aigereay
jebpnq oLy speos uo spuedeq

Lo uely|

BuioBuo
(4

“1eeA Jxeu 1o} 10JUoW pue eseq se
1eoA sy} osn * pesessoul Jou Jebpng “Jeek eseq woy
pensiyoe Buiuy eajoecid ui esesuoul ebejusaisd

psAcidu st yj1omau speol Jo Ajleges

sieuped 10pes
eyeAud/Apunwwoco Afuepl o} ejqeun

sepeig

oloe

syoefoud jo uoissesBoid ejepioed

se|Bnog

0loc

1sixe sepiunyioddo aseym Auepi o} Jpny/|

‘ewweiBoid sseooe
euuew ey) Jo uoiste)xs jo swiwelboid e b olid

sepe|g
se|bnog

Loz

0ld

1109 Y001 J2 SUOOJO 40 Ut

siouped

40 JusLupLWIOD ‘sitey pig Buipund

uoNioNpal ealy
Juawidojansp eely

sepelg

se|bnoq

0L02

JELOOUY J8 SUOOJUO JO UOISIAOIG

$8INSESW $$899NG

109 Yoo pue,

Jeyoolly Je suoojuod SSeaoe sulEw JO Juswdo|eAs!

BIOINO BABIYIE O} SUOIY

SO0IAIeS|
pue ainjonijseu) podsues)
N (e Jo asn eAnoeye Bunjowoly

swonnQ 194

ue Bupesss - Awoucoy

SaIUNWIWOD JULIGIA




Page 41

yononpel eely

juswidojensp eej'v

nnquing sloAe] |le & 1 suo d yoddns 0} spun; pue|
uep Hoddns 0} pPeiuWIOS pUE peyiuep! ele SeoInosey| Bulules) ‘'secinosel ‘e ‘Jels AJuepl seoiales flounod
nquiny Aleniposye|
uipepy ebebue 0} Ayoeded ey} oABY SEIUNWIIOD |  SERIUNWLIOS [e90] Y)Mm diom Buiping Ayoedes pueixg
inquuny JUSWOA|OAUL Juewebebue Apunwwoo
uiep 10 SjeAd] || 103 pelijuep! 8. SPoy; 11d) v [e1eyioes o HUYo8) pue spoyjew jo ebues e esiin
pesieuy eq 0} Spesu Inquin g

ABejess Juewebebus Ayunwwo)

uipen

pedy

uolid [eo0] peeibe saey SeIUNLILOY

sainsesw §$630Ng

senss|
PuUE Spesu AJUep 0} SBIIUNULLCD [B90] UM YNSUOD)|

BUIO3ING SASIYI O) SUOHIY

ebueyo aunyno pue L

SOJIILIOY BOIY BU} Ul [8A8] [£90]
© J2 POAJOAU] 8.8 SBIIUNWLIOD

SWIOANNG sy

! 0
Bupyoo] premiog4




Page 42

SUONONPAJ BDIAIBS BaJY

SPIq USLIdG[eAGD €aly

uonel1duoddy Arejabpng

Aewwng [e1dueuly 991AIS

EIE] 314 EIE] sSjudawwod 0003 0003 0003 Sjuswwod 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
zLoz LL/0L0Z 0116002 ZLitLoe LL/0L0Z  0L/6002 zLitoe LL/OL0Z  0L/600C 196pnq fenjoe
6/300Z 81,002

SjUBWWOD

$904N0Sd) UBRWNH lenden anusaay

VIdV TYMOD ANV 31N4d 304 NV1d VIV




Page 43

systy

E1E] a14 3id
ZLILL0Z  LLI0LOZ 0116002
(feuoippe) $821n0s81 URWINY

0003
2Lz

0003
LH010Z
10Bpnq |eude)

0003
01/6002

0003 P1q
(43131174

0003 P19 0003 P 0003
LLoLoZz  oLeooz 6/8002 ou

396png anusady

SWIOTIN0 BASIYDE 0} SUOHIY Jo1 enbiuf
spiq yuswidojonap ealy

V3NV TVMOD ANV 31N9 ¥04 NV1d VIV




Page 44

003 0003 0003
ENE J14 314 0003 0003 03 uonoNpal  uonONpal  uondNpal 0003
Loz 1110102 046002 [42E%%: 14 1110102 16002 FAZI 32174 L0102 0L/6002 01/6002 uononpal
SHSIY (uononpai) s92uN0SAI UeWwNg 196png jenden uoINPaI JoBPNY NUBAIY uoISIAGd 301AI8S UG Jorduwy 1O} uosSeas UONONPAL IAIBS BJe 9TIAI0S

uononpal easy

VIUV TVMOI ANV 31N4d ¥O4 NV1d Vv




Page 45

ueld juswabeuey
au07 [e}se0)) pejelbialu] suk4 Yoo ey Jo uonejusws|dw

soweuos
uoIos}0ld PoOl{  pue  |eiseod

‘siseq pasijuoud
2 U0 [2M0D) pue aing $s0J0e speol pajdopeun Jo juswaaoidw
ay) Bueyioe) diysisuped ul yJom o0} Buljim a1e SIsUMO SIBYAM

*speol pajdopeun
10 BuipesBdn 1o} Buipuny 10} JUSWUISA0S YSIN0IS 8y} upm ubredwer

‘speol
pajdopeun jo Buipesbidn uo Aojjod jouno) jo Juswdojeasp o} Jndu|

"INO paLLIED 8q 0) SHI0M JuswaAoidwi Joy Buipuny
Ul JOAS] O} pue ‘|eMoD) pue lng SS0Joe SABMO0) pue Speol
paldopeun jo Buipeibdn 10} swayos pasiuold e apiaosd o

‘uedsyul| wouj 9o1Aes Jabuassed pue ajoiyaA

Buiuuny Jojesado Au1a) Yum pasopus) Ajnjsseoons aq 0) SpPaau a)noy
Aiejuswiwo)

[BAMOQ) pue uooun(] 4oy

gny Jodsued) ulew ay) se uedsyul| Mau a8y} JO UOROWOId
oido) easy

led [BUOHEN ]sli4 SPUBlOOS
0} Aemoajes) auLe|y 8U) Se [emo)

pue uooun( JO Juswyslige}s3
aidoy

ainjongiseqjuj
sway) Bulubredwes utepy




Page 46

*SaIUNWIWOD ssaulsng Jueiqgia Bunelsusbal
Ul peaj 0} SUONRIDOSSE SSBUISN] JO UOIBULIO) 83U} 86einoous *SOIJIUNWIWIOD
0} puE ‘SJUBWIUOIIAUS [2[0JBWILLOD PUR [IB]e) [200] 8y} SAoIdWI ssauisng (e00| Jo uonessusbas ay) Buipes| sdiysieuped [emMoD %@ 8ing ul seniunpoddo

0} sdnoJb ssauisng pue suoiesiuebio [200] YIm HJom AjsAoeold DAIJO9)Jd BWO009q 0) suonedosse ssauisng  uoddng yuswdojenaq ssalboid| . Awiouoos w.r_u mc_no_w\,mn_
Alejuawwio) 21do} eaay oidol  away) buubiedwes urepy




Page 47

"sdnoib abe

1|2 40} MIoMm pue aA]| ‘UsiA 0} aoe|d poob e se ease ay) ajowoid pue
199)01d 0] BOIE D1UBDS AJijenb sjemoD pue 8jng adoueyud pue J08)0.1d
SSIUNWWIOI |[e

ul Buisnoy ajqepioye Ajjenb poob jo uoisiroid ajenbape ue ainsug

‘[EMOD) pUB 8lng 0} Sio}JOM Pa||Is pue A3y Jo uoielBiw piemul
Bunoeie jo pue ‘Aunwwos sy} ul abe Bupuom o sidosd Bujuieel jo
suesl e Se s10)09s |[e ssoloe sapiunpoddo qof jo uoisinoid sinsu]
‘Butuies) Buoj ayl) eAnosys Joj Ayunpoddo Buipirold

‘$10J09s uoleonps Jaybiy pue Alepuodes ‘Alewnd sy ut pabeuew ‘0202 Aq Gg Jano
pue papiaoid aie sapjioey uoljeonps Ajlfenb ybiy [eo0] jeyy ainsug oq |IIm oym uolje|ndod ay) jo abejuadlad sy} U asealoul

obie| pajoipaid sy obiyw o) Jepio ul ‘sdnoib ebe
SJOYSIA puB SJUSapISal 10} SSB20e a|qeploye ‘Alljenb poob ainsus 0} |le ssoioe peaisds olydelbowsp e Buissedwoous ‘lemos

Llop.0 Ul Bale sy} 0} sedIAas Ala) Ajllenb ybiy sdojaasp pue uigjuep pue sing ui uoneindod asioAp e dojsasp pue sjowold
Asejuswiwio) o1do} eauay

ealy 8y} Ul saljjwe pue
a|doad BunoA urejey pue ey
aidoj




Page 48

jueg pueT
pIBsjesis sy} uiyum paulejuos seale uo sjuswdojeAap Jo uoissaibold
‘Buisnoy

s|qepioye pue [eldos Jo} saiunuoddo BuiAiuspl Ui S, 1SY YIM MJOAA
29)ILLIWOD BalR YHOV 8U) Ul uojedioied aAoy

dnois Ayeoo yyesH julor ay Ul uoiedioiued sAoy

'SaNiUNWIWOD

|emoQ pue sjng sy JO SUORISS ||e JO SPaau auy] 188w

% ‘asodind 10} 3y @ sjeudoisdde ‘aaisuodsal g yoym seoiales
Buisnoy o AseAljap ainsus 0} J0j0as AIBJun|oA B 10}08s sjeAtd
8y} ‘spiojpue [erog passisiBay ypm diysisuipred ul Sopn

*SNIUNWILLIOD [BMOD pUE B)ng

BUj} JO SUOIIOBS ||e JO SPaau 3y} 398w pue o|qissod Jaasusym
Bumas [e00] & Ul paselsp ale ‘asodind Joj 3y pue sjeudosdde
‘aAIsuodsal a1e YoIym SaoIAISS 810 Y)eay 0 A1oAlep)
ainsus 0} 10}08s AIBJUN{OA pue J0Joss sjeAud By} soiAleg
sougnquie ysmoos oY) ‘puejydbiy SHN yim diysisuped ul yJopp

Aiejuawwon

o1do} eaay

AaAleQ pue ubisseq
80IAI9G U0 stouped Buluuelq
Ajunwwo) pue suojjesiuebio
KJIDAI|BP 80IAISS UM IO




Page 49

"salpedoid Bunsixe jo Buipesbdn uy s19Y Jo Buipoddng

Alejuswwio)

“Ausnod [sny aealpels 0} syiom pue ‘yoedul [BJUSWUOIIAUS
0] B sey paje[nsul [[am ‘Waiole Absous si yoiym Buisnoyfeoinleg

AanipQ pue ubiseq
uo sioupeq Buuueld

10 uoisiA0Ld 8Insud 0) J0)oas AIBJUN|OA pue JOoJBs djeAudiAyunwiio)  pue  suonesiuebio

BU) ‘splojpue] [eioog passlsiBoy yum diysiauped ul yiopllieaiep
o1do) eauy

9OIAIBS UM MIOM
oido}

away} m:_rm_maEmo ureiy




Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

aing pue ||ABIy ulypum
puowo pue ybingsuajaH jo uonesbajy) fInd ,
sabugjjeyn A19Ajjeq 991A198

sanss| Agjeg AJunwwo)) ssalppy
UOISIAOI d1e) Y)esH [e00] @dueyuq ,
S19PIACId 9D1AI9G19Y}0 yim Buibebug

2INS|97 SULE JO UOHOWOId ,
sawoy a|qepioye Jo Ayjiqejieny ,

ssauIsng snouabipul soueyus pue yoddng ,
9109 [IDJSWIWIOY PUB B1JUSY) UMO] ‘JUOILBIBAA
‘ealy Jsld Ybingsus|oH Ul JUSWISAAL]
Awouoo3 ayj Buidojaaa(g

PUBOOS JO }SaJ pue uoleqINUOo?
mobse|9) ‘ayng pue |ABJy Jo }sal
ay) yum syulj uonepodsuely buioueyus ,

ainjonsseyu| Buidojaasg

puowon
pue ybingsusjaH 40} Bujubiedwen

Sunjiom Jo sAem pue sanjea ano Aq pauurdispuny

|njsseo0ns
pue aAfjoe0.d ‘@AEBAOULL

JusWsaAU| Juswabeuepy Jossy ‘Buinosdwil — Juswdojanaqg
[euonesiuebip

ainjonisesyu] Jodsuel |

uonessuabay sasuan Awouoos uispow
abejliA pue anuad umoy ybingsuajey ‘Pe1O8BUU0D [[oMm ‘BAloEIE
ue Bupesso — Awouoog

Buiuses| Buogay)

pue ajdoad s|qeiau|nA 10}

SSlUNWWOY JueIqiA Buues ‘ebueys siydeibowsp
Bunosye — abueyn |e10osg

eaJe anbjun

ano Bupoajoid pue abejuay
|eanjeu pue [e1o0s ‘|einyno
Jno Bugowoid — Juswiuosaug

sjuswaAosdw] [eJuUsWUCIIAUT

AJaAlap - sauoLd ealy saA29lqo
puowoT pue ybingsusjoH o1bajen}s |19uno)

Buryoo
pJemio

SaNIUNWWOD
JURIQIA

JUSWUOIIAUT
BuipueisinQ

ealy jeuny
Buipea




Page 52

ueid y08foid Ui psumno [y

Qld Ui PaUIRNO

pI04 UBIBH

Sloc
pue o
L0Z/LL/LO

SL0T
pue o
LOZ/LLILO

SL02
pue Q
L0Z/LL/L0

SlLoz
pue 0
LoZ/LL/10

— puE Q|

LOZ/LL/LO

“polS[dwod
Buisq syIom Jo sueekh G - ¢ uiyum Apjendsoy pue
101 Ul A3 PUB XF US3MIS] JO JUBWISOAUI JOBINY

‘paigjdwon Bulaq siom juswaaosdw

wieat a1qnd sy} Jo s1edA G - € UM (2002 AInr Jo
poday YO $191|0D UO peseq) ZWOOSE Pue ZWO0E
u9aM}a(q Jo aoeds AJ|eldsoy pue [[Bjal MaU JoRINY.

'PaJe|dWod bulaq SHIOM wieal agnd

ay) Jo sieak G - € Ulyum YAS Ajfendsoy pue jejel
[enuue uy aseasoul (aunby payewnss s,71Q) %G1
pue (|eunBy pajewnss 1sjusbo))) %9 usamiaq 8.

"SHIOM
wieas 21qnd 3y} JO SIBSA G - € UIYIM %A puB 9,X;
uaamjaq Aq abexes| ainjipuadxa pooj uou aNpaYe

SHI0M Wesa ignd 8y} JO SIBBA G - € UIYEM %A pue
%X usamiaq Aq sbexes| ainypuadxs pooj aonpaye.

Ueld J90[01d ut paUIINo jiy

Qid Ul pauipno |y

sysry

piod usjeH

pea

5102
pue o
LOZ/LLILO

GLog
pue o
L0Z/LL/L0

5102
pue o
LOZ/LLILO

510z
pue o
LOZ/LLILO

S10Z
pueQ
LOZ/LL/LO

510z
pue o
LOZ/LL/LO

G10¢
pue o
L0Z/11/10

S10Z
pue o
LOZ/LLILO

Mels 8)iS apeue|dsg Aeg ISapn $0 Juswdojarepay

aseg ssauisng (N4 o ubis pseog surweiboid osloid

OUBUSS
uBjsap pausayaid anosdde pseog swwesbold /108l0id

pajejdwod g 0} | sabejs ue|d Josloid [enu|

600z 1snbBny pajsidwod uawnoog uonemu; 10afoid

speueldss Aeg 1sop padojoaspay

UMO} Ul DUDJEd JO 9SED JO Suondadiad aAcIdUW] «

6002
Yole JO HodaY JINr 39S "%EL pue || usemiaq
Apuawng 9,06 Aq Bunyred [eBa)) Jo S|oAS] 80RPaY

*21JUSD UMO}
ayj ul uonsabuod oyjes jo suondaosad aroiduwy «

‘pajeldwod Buteq syiom wiess aljgnd ay} Jo sieak
G - £ ulynm Aq puads pajeloosse Jjay} pue 9,x Aq
ybinqsusa|oH 0} SI0YSIA ABp JO JOGUINU B} 9SBBIOU| «

*0}8 ADUBIGIA 'SSOUBAIORIE
‘flajes 'Ba Juopslem 13UBD UMO) BY) JO uondsosad
SIORSIA PUE SORIUNWIOD [E90] 3y} dAcdW| «

paje|dwod buisq
S}Iom JO SIBaA G - £ uiypm Aendsoy pue Buieyas
ul A3 pue X3 USaMIa( O JUSW)SBAUL JOBINY «

‘pajojdwod Busag syiom uawarocidwi

wieas algnd ay yo sieak G - ¢ ulyum (£00z AInr Jo
H09Y YO SI8)J|0D UO Paseq) ZWOOSE Pue ZWO00s
uaamiaq Jo aoeds Ayjendsoy pue ((B)jel Mau JoRINY -

‘pala|dwod bulsq }om wieas dignd

8y} Jo sueaf G - ¢ ulyum YAD Ayrexdsoy pue jiejel
fenuue u) sseasoul (aunby psiewnss s,71a) %Sl

pue (aunby pajewnss isjusbuo)) %9 usemlaq 9938 «

SYIOM Wieas 2)|gNd U} JO SIBSA G - € UIYNM %A pUB X
uaamiaq Aq ebeyes) amppuadxe pooj UoU aoNpaYy «

paje|dwos buiaq

S}IOM wieal olignd ay) Jo sIeak G - ¢ uyIMm %A pue
X usamjaq Aq abexes| ainypuadxa pooy 8onpay

S3INSEaW SS3IING

paje|dwos swsydg Juawabeueyy ouel)

Jels ayg aweyog Juswabeuey owes|

ase) ssaursng |In4 yo ubis pieog swweiboig fosfoiq

oLeuads
ubisep pauajeid anoidde pieog swuesbold / josloid

paje|dwos g 0} | sabels ue|d Jsloid feniu}

600z 1snfiny psjejdwod jJuawinoog uonenu| 1sfold

SWOo2IN0 BABIYIE 0} SUOIY

SjusWaACIdWI adeosisang
pue uswsbeuely Jyel} anus)
umo ybingsusiaH pauuojsuel |

awodinQ

Auouoss uIBpoW ‘pajORULD [[eM ‘DARORIE U Bunesss - Awouodg
SOIUNWIWOY) JURIGIA

AONOWOT ANV HOUNASNITIH 04 NV1d VIV




Page 53

‘uoneoldde

sysiy

pea

S3INSEIW $S3IING

SWODIN0 BABIYIE O} SUOHOY

JROIAIN 102 ssajawoy jny 0} passaiboud jou ji sAep gz Jaye
paunuspi oq 0} BIlON -6002 Pas0|o aJe Sased se sieaue u| A|yuow papoday
JROINON L0z uonejussasd |ny 0} pessoud jou spasu Jenoited ypm SSBUSSa|BWOY
paynuspi 8q 0} BION -600Z| OP Yolym sase) a0IApY pPUB LUONBULIojU| JO JequinN |  3SOU) PUe Sployasnoy Ssajawoy 104 suoldo paaocidu) Ul UOONPAI/UCHUSASIY
leJauall Ul SUOIIPUOD X00}S
Apisans gg YHOV ulInd "OHSd 1e21A0 v10Z (SOHS) pepurlg 'sueld SOHS 1SY Janidp pue ‘900z 1V {puepjoog)|  pancidw pue BuisnoH piepuels
1o} Buiousy Buu Jo sso| peu uogonpay eliop] -600Z| Aurenp BuisnoH ysinoos - Hunasw ¥20)s ISY 40 % BuisnoH sad se Jususlelg z/ uonoes Juswajdw) 9|qeJS|0] MOJD] U] UORONPaY
ditsieumo swoy pastpisgns
pauLyuod 8q 0} JEDINON 102 ‘dIHS Ul N0 jas se swweibosd PUE JUSJ [BI00S 10} SBWOY
OHSd Pue dHY |enuue jo uoodold BHOW -600Z dIHS ut pauyep se uopadwos [enuuy JuswiseAu; BuISNOH a|qepIoYY [B20] JOAISC
JEOINOW ssaooud
ue|d 999G Ul Jou se pasinbal Jabpng pleuoq| oL-tepy 196pnq | 1/010Z Ul painoas Buipuny sjusag ealy
JISNw pue pooy ‘ainyno ‘spe
196pnq ‘spods Buipnjoul sjusas ul ymoib Sutbeinosus pue eaJe O] SIOUSIA
11/010Z uypm sjuesd dojaaeq ainsie| siwg uuk|  oL-ren '|BJ0} SJUIAS JO JSQWINN|  JUBSWSAOAUI AJUNLLLLIOD S2UBYUS 0} PajOyIBW SJUBAT |pasealou] pue apud JIAID paaoidw)
“SouUNp0ddo 9JJUSO UMO) Ul Sapiunpioddo
%00]10d SSOUISNQ S)USD UMO) SJBID 0} SA)IS SUJUBD UMO), wowdo[eAsp JIWOU0S BoUBYUS
paynuapl 8q 0 uagoy| 01-09Q|J0 ases|ey ed Ssauisng 0} SSaUISNG JO U0y Jied ssauisng uleibio) Jo Juswdojersq| o} asn pue| ssauisng esifeuoney
“eale puowoT pue ybingsusjoq ‘Penuod Aemojes) ssauisng puouto] pue ybingsuajey
psuynuspiaqol| sumoguiel| gL-tew AU UIYUM PALE]S SISSAUISN MBL JO JqUINN yBnouy) sainses|y poddng ssauisng Jo Aisaljeq@|ul  AWAloR  sseuisng  paseasou)
L1-1elN s|esodoid ue|d uooy
| j-uep paje|dwos ppny
9dov1
‘sanuad abe|a u) suyosp Jsypuny « Jo yed se sued
“UBld UOROY DOV Ul Papnjoul Jou «| BI||IwS UUAT 0l-Jep UEB|d UOROY DOV T'8H Ul papniou)| [euoljeN Uimno sabefiia ul kpny AJunwiuiod ayeuspun sanuay abejiA pasiiepnay
‘pajeidwoo Buleq sxtom wieas oygnd sy jo siesk
510z G - € UIyum Aq puads pajeloosse Jleu pue %x Aq
pue o ybungsualeH o} siolSIA Aep J0 Jaquinu By} SSeaIoule
L0Z/LLILO
2]9 AJUBIQIA ‘SSOUSAIIORINE 'Al9jes
5102 ‘69 Juoupiajem pue a1uad umoy ay o uondaosed
pue o SIO)SIA pUB SSIUNWWOD [20[ay} sAcidw|.
ueld josfosd ul pauipno |Iy|  piod usisH| Loz/LL/LO pajadwod speue|ds3 Aeg 1sop 4o Juswdojarspsy

SalIUNWIWO?) JUBIGIA




4
T souapuadaput
uafpejoey so|doad Bululelurew jo sasodind ypm saoIMISS YoM sdnoub syua)o
(O] payuap! aq 0} uey| Buiob uo ‘papesul aq o) sjebie) asinag| [eloos Buuinbay synpe jo sjuswssasse Alpwy ‘eA0sYyg paynuapI 1o} UoISIACId paaoidu
(@) HOM [€190S
© ssao0.d 196pnqg 11/010Z Keid oy aoe|d ajes ‘Buragiom
DI ulyum sjqelieAe 1o6png Jo [aaa| AYdiniy woj |gy-osq suonoadsul Juawsbeuew Apybiunioy %001 | e pue ejgissadoe sq o} saoe; Agid ,SUSIPIYD UlBlUIRW pue yjesy suazpjiyo paaosdul
60/8/0T J0
vodal sANDSXT Sy} UIYNM PaUNO sB
awayos ay} ul suazed jo Juswabebua ‘papssul aq 0} s)abie) soinusg
puE [epow 3y} J0 AJ|IQEIA [elouBUl dojun@| pauuyuod ‘spaau x3jdwod ypm ualpiyo S30IAISS SPasu Xa|dWod Y)m uaIp|iyd 10}
ay; Buunsua punole auad SHSIY albnoQ aq 0} 10} S30IA19S  aJeD) ajdsay Jo uoisiaolg pue Ayjioe) a4es syidsas dojoasp o} jsnd ). Injpay Joddng| seointes aie) eydssy poaosduwl
Jobeuep u
onetausbay juswdojanap |e1os pue [euosiad
Aunwwo) spoddns ey Buiues)| Buissaodoe (sieah Gz
psynuspr oq 0} eaty| 0L-99Q| 03 g) s|doad Bunok yum s3oejU0D JO JequInN sydoad BunoA 104 saiunpoddo Buipirosd
1obeuepy u
onesouabay
Apunwwo) ssnunpoddo Bujwes;
paynuspr aq 0} ealy| Qi-09Q| npe Buisseooe sdnoib pajabie} ul synpe o, synpe Jo4 Ayunuoddo Buipincid
Ryunwwiod yyesy uswAodws
‘Apaioe a1ou00s ‘Buiies) ur sis
Jobeuepy u pue asusplucd Buidojaasp Aq
onessusbey pansiyoe ‘ajdoad BunoA pue synpe
Aunwwon yum Buipiing Ayoedes Ayunwwiod
paynuapt 8q o} ealy[ 0oL-09Q| 410399s payyAnunwwod o} yoddns Jo (AT Ayoeded Ayunwwios Joy seunuoddo Buipiaoig pue Jusludojaaap [euosiad

Sainseswu $$329Ng BWOIIN0 JAIIYIE 0] SUoIIY awodNo

Buiwies| Buojayy pue sjdosd ajqessuina oy Buues ‘sbueyo slydesbowsp Bundsye - abuey?) 21908

SaIUNWIWO? JULIGIA




Page 55

Fsu
30 Juswssasse sapinold ss)siBey ysiy

Aydiny woy| 1i/oL0z

SIBYJO pUe died UojSpiy Jo juswdojsasq

sp|ey BuiAeld pue sease Aejd panosdu|

psuesul aq o) sjebie) asiAIeg

sjure|dwod paonpay

19WO0JSND aBBUBW YOIYM PIEPURS BOIAISS PasIolqnd

plepuels uolesyioads aoueuLiopad aoas panoiddy

pajuswaldw) ueld Juswabeuepy Jossy Spunois

aoeds
uado j0 asn JBPIAA O} JuswaAciduw|

3SU JO Juswissasse sapirold
Jols1Bay sty mainay aifaleng

ealy
v pue

widojanop
|3y

woRINPol

xSy

Aydunpy wo g L1-teN

Aapenb o, Aq |Iypue|
Ul pesodsip pue psjos)joo a)sem [ediunw jo Junowe
3} sonpay %A Aq Bunsodwod paseasouj

‘llyPUE| WO POUBAIP PUE Pajokoal Sijeys
Pa}0a||00 8)SEM [BdIDIUNLI JO JUNOWE BU} 9SESIOU|

SBOINIBS
suonoal|0o Bulpkoal pue ssnyal ‘a)sem pooy paaociduw|

uebbeep
Apueg| gl-02Q

pest

lIYPUE] JUSWWISACSD) YSIF0OS SABIYDE 0} |IDUN0D
oy} Aq panrosdde ABsjens Juswabeuepy aisep

SDIASTHUE SSIDON

PUE 3]SEM JO [BAS| 9oNpal O} 3)Sem

MIINSY Juswsbeuey sjsep aibeoiens

JWOTINO IAAYDE OF SUGHOY

ledidiUN( JO UOISISAP pasessou|

WONNO Jr

eale anbjun Jno Bunosjoid pue abejuay [ejeu pue [eloos ‘[eInyn ano Bupowold - JusWUoIAUS

JupwuoHAug Buipueising




Page 56

peoy yuni] pajs|dwos suonoadsul Jo 9, sdwe yeq

padinbai palinbai se
196png awwelboid [eyded pasealdu| pspaqoy wnjed LL0L0Z 18U Ogy paje|dwod suonosadsul Jo o, sdwe) yueq! Buyged pue uone|eisul Bugybi| Juswaoe|dal exeuspun| spsepuels Bupybil yoalis paaoidwi
sjurejdwo Jo Jaquinu paonpay
S0UBUSJUIBW 10§ PaJapISU0D 3 plnoys
JeU} SpeOJ PalISSEIoUN JO 9% uopipuo) Aemabelued
SOUBUSJUIEW IO} PaIapISUOD
aq pINoYS Jey) Speol O Jo 9% uoipuoy) AemabeLue)
SOUBUSIUIEW 10} PaIopISUOd
aq pINoYs Jey} speol g Jo % uoipuo) Aemabelued
pasnbas SOUBUD)UIEL 10} PRISPISUCD
10Bpng awweibosd jended paseasou) Loy uey LuoLoz] 89 PINoys ey} Speod v 30 9 Uolpuo?) Aemebelsen uayepapun swweibold aoueusjuleW peos spomiau peod Buysixe paaosdw)
s||lessed
paynuapl aq o] uyop| L1/010Z papasul aq o} sjeblie) aoiAleg siomjau Bunsixa Jo aoUBUSIUIRKY
uopEqUING puB} SeInoJ pajeubisap Yum uonoesies
llejuoyg [ended wg L 3salssed uyop| LL/0L0Z "818SN Jo Jaquinu paseasou]|  ybungsuejeH usemiaq yjed ajoho mau JO UOONISUCD 1811949 pue uewsapad parosdwy
sAep 2 ul pajojdwoa siedas by oygel} Jo %
pasinbau Jswabeuew
166png swweiboid [epden paseasou)joqoy wWned| LL/OL0Z sinoy g ul paya|dios suredaa b1 oy} Jo % s|eubis oyjeJ} JO paulB)uieW PasEaIoU] uelsapad pue oies) Jajes
SUJed}oo; mau paydopeE JO Jequunu paldope aq 0} SU3edjoo} mau Jo
Syredyjoo} papelbdn Jo Jaqunu SUIedjO0] pajdopeun [EUOIHPPE JO UONONISU0oad
paunbai
1e6png swweiboid |eyde) paseaiou] uay uelyi  L1L/0LOZ syjediooy pajdope Jo JsGuinu paseaoul syjedjooy pajoniisuod Algeyns jo uondope Kyayes uewysapad parosdw|
Sjurejdwod JO Jaquinu paonpay
panssi saul Bupped Jo sequinu paonpay
suonejs Aem
Jies Buipunouns pue ybingsusisH
1dS wouy pasnbai 386png [enueisqng usy uey|  L1/0L0Z apu pue yed Jo ssn pasealou| 3 9puU pUE YJed |euonippe JO UOJoNIISUo) e s e OpIy pue ded
pi0o31 Ajsjes pue yjeay pascidu
SUOISSIWS UOQJEeD paonpal
$)509 uonesado paosnpal
90IAI9S Jawo)snd paaosdwiy
Jels jo awdojsaap sjeudosddy
SAINYS UIyim pajos)jal aq 0} saoines|  pebbejoepy (dWVS)
Ing pue sapadoid ysiy ybiH Apueg| 0l-08Q 90I0PHOM 10} JUBWUOIIAUS Buppom paacsdul sue|d swabeueyy 19ssy 821G 40 Juswdojarsg asodind 10} )y sjels3 jouno)
B JO 55N AJJUNLULIOD Paseaioul
SJUSLWILIEJE UOIBONDS Pasealou|
usApedop s|ooyos
swwelboid [exde) uo suoneywi wijosjepy 09(Q| S}ORJUOD pue JuswaAcidl [BNPIAIPUL JO UOHB|dWOD swweiboid a3e1s3 |00ydS Wwewaldw|| ul juswuonaus Buiies| paoueyug
gL-unp 196pNnQg uIyEM pue swit UO JjINg B3O [IOUNOD MBN selpadosd Juesea jo Bunaxiely pue uolonIIsuoD
(yuawainooid
L1-92Q awoaul [esodsip Apadoud Jo uonesiuixe pue ubisep pajielep) ase) ssauisng |INd ayepapun
pebbejoepy ajua) uoneonpy
19)sibay ysiy 280 fpues| 0L-98Q Aunwwo) apA|D JauLioy §o asn sjqeldesdy @ 9be)g 1B MAIASY 1507 108[01d SXEHapUN JEYIIOR] JIAID YIIM 9310 [I5UNOD MBN
yebbejoepy 396pnq uyym pue awn uo Ying ‘pesH Jald UO UooNISUod 10§ suondo Juswainoosd Ayjoeq

Jogs169y ysiy D80 Apueg

sysiy  pea

01-98Q

B4 2INSIS7 pue [ood Bulwims mau pasueyus

saINseaw $s990ng

lenuajod 10881 0} DEO PISIASY xEUapUn

JWODING JABJYIR 0} SUOHOY

abueyo ainyno pue uoneaouul ‘uawaacidul SNONURU0D - Juswidojaasq (euolesiuebio
Bupjoo] premio

ainsia pue [ood Buiwimg msN

awonNQO




Page 57

psuodal syiney 1Bl 19815

syspy

pesT

sAep 2 ul paysjdwioo suredal yney 16y Jeens

Salnsesut ssa00Ng

JWOIIN0 BABIYOE O} SUOHDY awonnQ FEN|
abueyo ainynd pue uoneouu] ‘usuaAcidLl SNONURUCD - Juswdojeas( [euonesiuebin
bungoo] premio4




Page 58

SUOIONPaJ DIIAIBS BAIY

SPIq JueWdO[eASp B3l

uonerjiouodey Aiejebpng

Alewiwng [eioueuly 3DIAIRS

SjusWWon ETE) aLd ETE
ZLLLOZ  LLIOLOZ  OL/600Z

$32IN0Sa) uewWNY

SJUBWIWO D

0003
[A%19%174

lended

0003
LLoLoz

0003
01/6002

SjusWWOY

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

ZLLL0Z  LLI0LOZ  0L/6002 196pnq lemoe
6/8002 8/4002

anuanay

VIHV ANOWOT ANV HOUNGSNITIH HO4 NV1d VIUVY




Page 59

systy

ERE]
Zioz

3ld
LLI0L0Z

ALd
0116002

{(feuoippe) $921N0$31 URWINY

0003
(4% 44114

0003
L0102
196pnq jended

0003
0116002

0003 P
CLLoz

0003 Piq
L0102

0003 Pt
01/6002

396pnq snuanay

0003
6/8002

ou
BWODINO JABILOE 0} SUOIIY a1 enbiun

spiq Juswdoarap ealy

AONOWOT ANV HOMNGSNIT13H VIV 404 NV1d Vadv




Page 60

syst

0003
ERE] 314 EIE] 0003 0003 0003 uononpai
2L L0102 01/6002 ZLioz L1102 0116002 Zuiioe
(u0nONPYI) $32N0SAI UBWINY 196pnq |epden

0003 0003

uouONPal  LORONPaL 0003
110102 0416002 0416002 uononpal
uononpad Jobpng anusaey uoIstA0Ld 921A19s U0 Joedwy 103 UOSEdI uonONPYI 8IIAISS eale 901198

uononpal easy

VIUV ANOWOT ANV HOMNGSNIT3H ¥O4 NV1d VIuv




Page 61

sladojaasp Buousnjjul pue d4iHS Bunuswsidw|

Saloy a|geploye Jo AJljIge|IeAY -

sisuped Buiuueld Aunwwo) yum Bupjiom pue diHS Bunuswsidw)

*sdnoJb Jualfo Jenoiued
o} Buisnoy a}A1say| ‘sawioy psjuay [B100S Ul JUSWIISIAU] «

saunyoddo meN

_.._

“asudialug Ysi;oog woly spung uoneieusbay
[2007 JO UOnEeDO|e Jle} B 10} JUBWUIBAOS) YSII0OS pue yi1S0D £qqoT

syuswdojeAsp Jaid pue eunew ajeudoidde uoddng

"selpoq o1ignd

|sssuisng

snousbipur  soueyus pue uoddng .
3INSI97 SULE JO UOIoWOoLd »
8100 [BIDJOWWOY puB S1jUdYD

UMO] ‘Juoipialepn ‘eale Jald YbBingsusieH Ul JuswisaAu| .

Ayaoe Bunsixa Buusybusng

payjo pue seniunwwod [eooj ‘sassauisng Y diysieuped uy BuiyJOp
|

Baly apA|D JamoT ay)
pue mobsejs) usamaq syull Jeal dojaAsp 0} JUBLILLIBAOS) YSI00S pue | dS Aqao

s8N0y opAlD suel) spoddng .

Jsld uebbauopy 1e Bunyied Jeg pue yyd ssoipie)
30 uoisuedxa pue aply pue jied ueiopuabies)) oy Buipuny 1o} | 43 AGqoT

V3 ‘leissoi) mobselo HyoO eoineg ybinquipg o) ybungsusieH pesodoud
syyuswaidwi 0] puenoog podsuel| pue JUSWILLIBAOS) Usoog Buikqqon

SPEe0J JunJ) 8say} o} sjuswaAcsduw
puswe|dwi 0) puepods Jodsuel] pue JUBSWUIBAOL) ysijioos Buikqqo]

saljljided apiy pue X.ed splrold »
sao1A1es podsued) olignd saoudwy «
spodie J18y) pue mofise|s) pue
ubinquipg yum ybingsusjoH usamiaq syull jied aaolduw) .
€8V pue ggy jo apesbdn .

3I0MIBU (2] pUB Speoy

Aieyuawwion

o1do) easy

oidoy

Auiouoos ayy Buidojanaq

alnjonJsesju|
aweay) Butubiedwes urep




Page 62

92IA19G doUBINGUIY YSI100S

8y pue [edsoH USAS7 JO B]_A BUJ J0} 81NN} S|qEeUIR)SNS BY) Sk
yons SaIAIBS Y)esH AJUNIWod pue [es0] Jo AUsAljep oy} woddng «
‘leyidsoH usA9T JO 8jeA 8U) Jo} aInjny sjqeulelsns e poddng .

‘uoIsinold aJe)) YjeaH [eoo| souryus]

‘Baly [louno) sing pue ||ABi1y Jo asoy)
LjiMm salepunog Japiaoid 8o1AI9s |B0]09]s JO AJIsnoulw.s}-00 woddng

ssaullejun jo suondaoiad ssalppy
Aejuswiwio)

|ngw
[1A6Jy uiypm puowo pue ybingsusjoH jo uonelbsyul [Ing

21do) easy

KIoAIIBP 991AIBS JO ADUB)SISUOD vm ALl s

aido]  ewsay) Bulubledwes uiepy




Page 63

juswabebug Ajunwwo) sAoay]

sease BulApno o) sseooe aAocdw)

3om pue

BAl| ‘YisIA 0] 8oe|d aAfloeME Bl0W B Breysupiy o3ep
3JOM pUB BAl|

‘USIA 0} 8oeld sAROERIE BJ0W B uMoljaqdwed) axepy

31A)Ury YINOg Ul SJUSPISa JO UleaH sAosdiu]

SWBYDS UDjUBARIY POO] umoyaqdwen

B3JE UIIMINO WO

ajdoad o} ebejuay pue ainnd Jo dINsodxs aseaiou]
abejuay pue ainyno

UMO JIaU} 8Je.iga|89-0} Saniuntuwo) usybuang
Aepn 814Uy 8y} Jo AjjigeIA O1WoU0Ds aAcIdw|

Sajlioud ealy IMVYIN

INJSS800NS pue aAnoeosd
‘aAeaouu ‘Buircidu —
wawdojprs( feuonesiuebio

Awouooa uispoul
‘PSIOBUUOD {jloMm ‘BAnoRIe
ue Buneso — Awouoo]

Bujuses| Buojay))

pue ojdoad s|qessuinA 1oy
Bunes ‘abueys oiydeiSowsp
Bunoaye — abueys |ewog

eale anbjun

ano Buposyoud pue abejusy
leinjeu pue |e1o0s ‘|einyno
Jno Bunowoid — jJuswuosaug

S9AI09[qO
olB6sjens |1ouno)

Buiyoo
pJemio4

saljuNwwo?

JUeIgIA

JUSWUOJIAUT
Buipueisinp

ealy |einy
Buipesan




Page 64

Jawin] Sd4 Jo uoneyuswa|du umoypqdwe)

Hemals Bulpooy} jo sjuapioul paonpay pue Buipuny ansind 0} 80IN0sal Yeig 10} uonuanald pooyj aAdBLT

wawsalbe CETIETS eale

V1S Jo uoisiaoid| uueDop YsIjoog Lsqie] ‘[eAl}sad disnpy alAjupg sjuens eaJe 2ibolel)s Jjo[ypmino woly aidoad o) aebejusy

196pnq {esnuas oN jed| OL-eW|Jo [INW -oul :sjuaas sy jo Ajjigeulelsng| jounod wod) diysiosuods Jo [9A9] paulelsng [pue ainyno jo ainsodxe peseasou|

(o|qejene abejusy

Y M123 xoidde) syuels) Juswdojpasq pue a1n}ind uMo JiY} d)elge|ed

1bpng aoiniss 03I Ayoled|  eo-unp papoddns sjusas Jo Joquinu uielsNg|  aInsieT] ealy YBNO.Y} SIUSAS ISISSE JUBIS) 0} saljlunwwod usyibuang
2INs0J0 82O W oLren JsBeuew ajnoi Joj adeds 301J0 JO UOISIACIY

0TOZ Ul 000"V 03 BUISM 800Z Ul 000‘T 03 Aep
a4hqury ay3 Buisn siajem Jo JaquINU aseatdu|

" " sjuswwsaibe Jaumopue] Buneyijioe

slapinoid
N «|  OL-IB| uonEpowscIde Wolj 3oeqpas) sARISOd 8)N0. JO UoKOWOIY

TT0T |4dy Ag sjuans |epads
pue sajes |le3aJ ‘diysssquiaw Jo UoIeUIqUIOD
€ WOJ4 3NUSASL [BRUUER ZEEYTT JO WNWIULA

doueusiuRW ‘Buneyiew ‘uswsbeuew
poddns| 1eBuno eale ul 1oy }

:ueld ssauisnq Joj abeyoed Buipun Kem a1k
Jauped ‘Buipung uoslly| oQL-lep ol pajelsush puads [ejo) pasessouy| _ 1snq 10} i Ipun} 312023

Jo Ajjigeln oiwouoose parosdu

easy
M4

uawdopoasp
easy

uogonpai

sySY S3INSLAW $$990Ng SWIODINO BABILOR O] SUOHOY aWoMNNO FENY)

esJe anbiun ino Bunosjoid pue abejay [einjeu pue [eioos ‘enynd Jno Bunowoid - JUSWIUOIIAUT

juswuoliaug buipue)sing




Page 65

uopINpaI

jJudwdojorsp

E(0JIN

80-AON

sqol 314 L€ [euoHPPY

Sainseaw s$sSad0Ng

sapejg| Aenuue
sejbnod| 60 AoN 991A9s Buisn s1aquinu Ul aseaIU|
sope|g 1110116002
selbnog| 60-AoN| Bupesado Ausy seBussed s|qeuteisng | Ausag Jsbuasseqd einr oy paulejal Apisang
sisAeue juspiooe
10 SISEq U0 19S 8q 0}
sanuoud spim [IPUNOD uf OL-lew UORONP3I JUBPINDY
“awoono
asjuesent o) jusdns|  umosg sbeubisibupeunsal pue
jou sjebpng speoy 1eN|  oL~en X3pUi UONIPUCD peos parcidwyl  Buissalp adeUNg ‘£gY 0} SjuswaAcsdw| sease Bukpno o} sseooe aacidw|
ss800€ uewsepad
uen parcsdw] pue suoneAouss Juoydoys Jo ueid uonoe Bunsixa ym ssaibosd SHOM PUB 9AI| ‘YISIA 0} 3oeld
Aaspny JoquINN *AJAOE [BI0JSLILIOD PaSEaIoU] Sle}Io8] 0} P3JEd0||Ee S04N0Sa) JEIS PAIOBINE alow € Bieysuply axejpy
Jabunop
uosily|  OL~ten PRI YiInog Jo uogeindodap asiaelS
Relnpy
snbia4| s0-uer sbuipying eBejusH Jo asn paacidw]
|nyssaoons
aq jou Aew piq Z sbeis
IH1Avslosd oY) ul ped
aye) 0} Aypige s,3idosd|  Aeunpy
Buonpas younuo ypa1n) snbisg|  go-uep SUOHEAOUSS Juodoys JO JaGUINN 108f0id |HL / SHVD
weugag S3s59UISNY "OUI
BIOOIN| B0-G9d4| S1USD UMO} BAROE JO JUBWIYSIIGE}ST UONEWIUY SJUID UMO .
weugaq aleys joxiew sseanul umoyeqdwe)
eloaN|  60-1ep 0} SNUSASJ WSUNO} Paseasou| uotsuedx3 euuep
SHHOM
weugaqg INOQUEH 0} SS8208 PaAcJdWIpajesio PUE 3A) ‘YSIA 0} 80€(d BAnoeIe

uonessuaboy peoy Yoojury

3WOoIINO0 3A3IYIE 0} SU0ioY

a10W e umoyaqdwe) axep

AWOU009 WIPOW ‘PajosULOS ([8Mm ‘aAndese ue Bupeso - Awouods

SaNIUNUWILIOD JURIIA

pielss [ooyds ui shefeq

uonoNpaA

sayoyd
40 uopesiuoudsy

SySIy

®
Apegoepn
wijooep

peaq

painoas abeyoed Buipung

S3INSL3W S$S300NG

“youd JayIEaM (|8 JO LoNDNISUD
pue Buipuny ansind 0) 30IN0sal YEIS

3W02IN0 3A31YOE O} SUONdY

aifyup] yinos
40 Sjuapisal Jo pjesy psacsdw)

swoong JEN)

Bujuwes) Buojay) pue ajdosd siqessuina Joj Bules ‘ebueyo sydesBowsp Bunoeye - abuey) [e100s

SaRIUNUILIOY JURIGIA




Page 66

uononpai

juswidojoaap

EN $s900id Juswabebus
Ayole4 uoddns 0} s824n0sas SaYIUSPI |10UNOY
AloM S[oA9] jle Je wswebebus wewabebus Ajunwwiod ajeyioe; o)
Ayolie4 Joj} payuapl ale spoyjew ajeudoiddy| senbjuyos) pue spoyjew Jo abuel e asiinn
Al[oy sapuoud sonss| pue spasu

Ajuapt 0} saUNWIWID [e90] Ypm Jnsuo)| Juswebebug Aunwwos sAndayg

Aoty |E20| peaibe 8ARY SBRIUNWILLOD

ealy

SaInsealu $$900Ng BWIODINO JABIYOE 0} SUOIOY awognNo FE3Y

abueyo .nYnd pue uoleAouul ‘JusBACIdW] SNONURUOD - Juswidojeaaq feuonesiueblo

Bunjoo] piemioy




Page 67

0 0 0 0000 0000 0060
SUORINPDI SJIAISS Baly

SPIq JUSWIJOIBASP Ealy

00 Aep BUIPUIM pue BuoT|0000L 0000L 00001
uoneliduody Lejebpng

Aewwing |eidueuly 821198

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

ckiLioe LL/OLOZ  0L/6002 1e6png lenjoe
6/8002 8/2002

Sjuswwo) 0003 0003 0003 Ssuswwod
cLiioe 140102 0116002

sjusWIWo) aid ald 314

Loz LLoLoz 0L/6002
anuandy

$90IN0SdJ URWINH lenden
SANVISI 3HL ANV JYALNIM “TTADYY AIN ¥04 NV1d VIUVY




Page 68

00004 000014 00003
0D A_p DUIPUIA pUE buoT ay)

000F 0003 0003 PA 0003 P 0003 PW 0003

N_‘:_‘cw rv\owcu 0 \moom S&cm LLoLoZ  0L/6002  ZLIEL0Z LLOLOZ  01/6002 6/8002 ou

196png snusasy SWO2IN0 DASIYOE 0} SUOKHOY Jai anbiuf

SYSIY  (Jeuonippe) $221n0Sal uBWINg 16pngq jenden
spIq yusurdojaAsp ealy

SANVISI IHL ANV FHALND “TTADYUV dIN ¥04 NV1d VIuV




Page 69

0003 0003 0003
EIE] ENE] EIE] 0003 0003 0003 uonoInpal  uoyInpal  VonoNpas 0003

(4% 3314 LHOLOZ 0116002 ZHEL0Z L1002 0116002 [AR 34174 LLoLoe 01/6002 0116002 uoysnpal
systy  {uonINpal) $90N0$aI uBLINY 19bpnq jenden uoIINPaL 186pNY anuaAsy woISIA0G 321A19S U0 Joedwy 10} UOSEd

uoHINPI IVIAISG raIR IDNAIIG
uopanpai gasy

SANVTISI 3HL ANV JHALNIM “TIADYV AIN 04 NV1d VIuV




Page 70

uonanpas ealy

piq justudojonep eosy

uone}Nsuon

abuog) uiep |esiesdde suondp  Anal Jeqojuijeq

/ yoieosay
juswsnnbai
aanesiba
uojoedsuy
MOIADY

anjea iseg
JUSWISSOSSY
1oeduwy

| ueld ajesodion

£,3WOodIN0

awon3no
SIY} JO 804N0S Y3 S1 JeYM

sajep sainseauwl anaiyor
Koy $$900Ng 0} SUOlOY awomng - Auoud valy  joy

eaJe anbiun uno Bundsiold pue ebejusy [einjeu pue [e1oos ‘[einynd o Bunowo.d - JUswuoJIAUg

jJuswuodiAug Buipueisino




Page 71
uofonpal easy

uoljonpal ealy

pig Juswdojanap ealy

piq JuswdojaAap eary

ue Asipny 60-go4 Jpny aoedsusaln
é saoedg 2l|gnd

umolg |1IeN 0L-Jey alowmog

umolig |1eN 60~ umojjaqdwen Juswebeuew oyjel |

uole}nsuo?)
| youeasay
jJuswaiinbai
aAne|sibo
uoloadsu|
anjep jsag
JUBWISSOSSY
yordw)

|/ ueld ajeaodion

£9Wo93No

awoo)no
SIY} JO 924N0S 3} SI JeYMA

saJnseaw aAajyor
$5995N¢g 0} suonoy awoong Auoud ealy oy

Awouooe usspow ‘pajosuUod [[am ‘sAloeIe e Buleslo - Awouod]

sapIUNWWO?) JueIqIpn
puSYINOS awiayds Jodsquel) Ajunwiwo))
olepeuied sswsyos podsues) Apunwiwos
odl Uolid JOUIEaM IV SJowmog

uebbejoey Apueg

uolnje)nsuo)
] youeasay
judwalinbai
aAanejsibon
uoljoadsuj
anjep 1sog
JUBISSASSY
joedw)

/ uejd @jesodion

£,9WooIno

awoo3no
SIY} JO 32IN0S 3y} SI Jeym

sajep sainsesw anaIyoe
Koy $S990Ng 0} suonay awooinQ  Auoud ealy joy

Buiuses| Buojay pue s|doad ajqesaulna Joy Bulies ‘ebueyd oydesBowep Buiosye - abueyy [e10os

senIuUNWIWo Jueiqip




Page 72

uoljonpal easy

piq judwdojoaap ealy

uone}Nsuo)

] yoleosay
juswaiinbau
annjejsiba]
uojoadsuj
anjeA jsog
JUSWISSASSY
Jordw]

£,9WO023N0
SIY} JO 924N0S 3y} SI JeyM

uebbejoew Apues
Hebbejoew Apueg

1 uej4 aerodion

uonesijeuones a0 umoljeqdwer
uonesijeuoliel 821y peayd|ibyoo

swoono
sojep sainseauwl ansiyor

Aoy $5900Nng 0} suonoOy awoong  AMuoud easy oy

abueyo ainynd pue uoyeaouul ‘JuswaAcidu snonURUOD - Juswdojeas( jeuonesiuebiQ

Bupjoo7 piemioy

uiey Aalpny ue|d Uonoy Aelessay|




Page 73

wswdojaaap Ajunwwos 1oy yoddng

wJe awoH Alowiy

saiunpoddo maN

Auanoe Bunsixe Buiusyibusing)|

Awouoda a:w m:_g.o_w>on_

ABo)ens uonuanald pooj4 ul Ajualind BuiyoN

‘181d
U0} 8Inin} 8indas O} oAlenul [eoo] poddng Jald 1se3] uaque )
wajqoud Jo 2d09os 40 ainjeu Uo |ie}ep ouU — uonuaAaid

poo|d Yaque|

so|gemausl
uo asjjeydes o} pub 1emod

BreysupJy je abpuq [eued ‘ssuug je Buiuspipp

sjuswanoidw| €9y

"2202 0} 2107 swwelboid jeyded ainny ay)
J0 malney Jodsuel] ysioos Buipuadwi ayy
UO passNo0j 8q 0} SpasuU UOHUS)Y "PuUB)jo9S
podsuel] pue JuswuIdsA09) Ysinoog BuliAqqoT
Arejuawwon

£8Y Jo Bupjuniy
o1do) eauy

}lomieu speoy

ainjonaisenu|
sway) buiubredwes uiey




Page 74

ysiubiel) ui uoisiaoid buisnoy sjqepioyy

dIHS au} ul sI 8)is Yaqle] ainsug

"Payoepe Ajljiqepioye %62 e oAy Mou
yaqJe] ul suopeoossy BuisnoH 18Yjo g ay)
Jey) @)oN ‘HWaque] ul syun Buisnoy a|qeploye
09 — 0¥ 10} s|qedojsAsp yYQd Buunsuz

BuisnoH
ysiubiei) pue uaqie |

sauUNWWoo|

ajowal pue puejsi

‘0] eA0W 1o ‘Ul Aejs 0} ojdoad|
BunoA ajqeus 0} seiunuoddQ

S90IAJ8S O1U0dI/AY 10} Yoddns
pue S92IAISS 0} SS820Y

108(01d seo1M8g Ay ||ABIY 0} syul| — eunp

10} jojid Bunsixa ay} Jo $$900NS 8Y) JOJIUOW O |

SQOINIBS

Kejs| pue umoyeqdwen e paoueyug

einf pue Ae|s| 0} slaquinu dVSY einf pue

JojisIA uo spoedw |enusjod ainsesw pue | Jy|Aejsj 0} peadde oq

0) 13 Jo} ubledwen

80 Bny sJs)siuiy 0} OVIS

Aiay
alnysiAy/oiseoh|eg

(ewwesbousd
Jeyides ul uiejas) Ausy ujjoa Jo Juswaoejday

AL} Jebusassed

(0L — 80) Jeak ¢ 1o} aoe|d Ul Buipuny Ajuaiing

Aus4 einp

Buligelswinf
pue sajnoJ ‘|epueul|
— |9ARJ} 0} siauleq Buinoway




Page 75

SaAlelIu|
pun4 puejoos Jalle4
jo Ajqeureisng

2buuy ayy uo, sidoad|

ealJe |ed0| Jno wol) Ajjeuoneu

papinoid aq 0} sadiAes 1o} Ajlunpoddo

dn Bujuado pue AjAOsUUO0D Ino Buipie

siy} yum djay pinoys umoysqdwe) o) 108foid
YUON Japulyied sy} jo juswdojorsp sayund

Aysiedsiadng

uonelbajul eo1AI8s Jlgnd|s




Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



s)inejap Jojoeuo) 9l-tep pa3odwod uoon)suo)
Gl-uer PaOUBWIOD UOKONISUOD
oJeWI}Se SPesIXs JOpUa | pl-deg palapus) penuo)
pl-lep padojaaap ases ssauisng (N4
STTEg|
piq Buipung “paynuspi aq 0} Buipun yL-Inp painoas Bulpuny
N
N~
) 0OdO aiinbai (M cLor Anue pue| ulelqO
(@®)) O} HNS Aq SU0RJSIqGO JUSUHLIBA
© Usmoos Aq ur pajjes aq Aep “(pebueyo|  ysongon (e [BNP
DI sey wajsAs Buluue|d) uogsanb nyuy Auenb ybiy oy peol yoesy s|buls Bugsixe Buipeibdn) ainoruisesul
Japun uoneoiidde Bunsixa jo Aupiea| /piep Jaled oLine leacidde Butuueld ueyqo peoy Aounaqo] - usjes gygy O} Sjuawwsaosdu) uogepodsuel) 0} sjuswaaoldu
eale sais| 9y} pue woT Aemajen sssuisng $9iS| 8U} pue woT ‘ueqO
paynuepi 8q 01 [ Jeseijajed| oLseW| ‘UBGQ BUY UIYNM pPBpEIS SISSBUISNG MBU JO JaquInN ybnouy) sasnsesw poddns ssauisng jo Ataalisg B SSOUISNG PISBaIOU|
Slineysp JojoeijuoD 910z PaJo|dWod UONONIISU0D
L0z POOUBUILOD UORONIISUOD)
S9)eI)SD SPISIXd JapuUs | 10z palspus) oenuo)
ey 102
piq Buipun4 “paynuspi aq 03 Buipuny £102 painoas Buspuny
€1-AON pspluqgns ases ssauisng (N4
0d9 annbai i €190 Aus pue) ulelgo
JUSLWILIBAOS) USII00S
Aq u1 ||es Jo [eaoudde uie)qo o} ainjiey
10 1102 |udy Aq Bwgns o} ainpie 11190 |eacidde Bujuued uie)qO
YO0IINDON spues| pue spuejybiy
nypy peoy juswidojprsg ueqo JSOAN U} Joj aujuaD (euoibal auyy
pasnbas aoinosas JedyO| /piem Ieled|  go-unp pasosdde qid 8y} JO uooNISUO3 3y} 40 Juswainsoid pue ubisaq| se sjo1 s)l [Y)ny 0} ueqo Buidojensq

sysiy S9INSeaW $5900Ng 3WO2)NO AABIYIR 0} SUOHOY aWwodINQ 10

AWou029 WISPOW ‘Pajo3UUOD (|9 ‘BAIDEINE U Bulessd - Awouoog
SNIUNWIWIOY JURIGIA

S$31SI IHL ANV NHO1 ‘NVEO0 ¥0d4 NV1d VIV




Page 78

>
b=
©
o
-
[
a.
<
[
o
o
=

juswdojanap easy

sysiy pea $9JNSPAW $5320NG SWOIIN0 IAJIYOR O3 SUOHOY awoong JEN
eo| Buojeyl| pue ajdoad ajqeseuina 1o} Buues ‘ebueyd oiydesBowsp Bunoaye - abueyy fewog
SoRIUNWWOY JuBIGIA




Page 79

|esiesdde suondo

0L~y

sulely Aeg ueqQ wouyy sjesodoid pasiney

g4 ul paulpnQ

60-99@

papiwagng 584

uoponpad

oy

Py Jue
wdojensp

eauy

panoiddy qid

SBINSLIU S8800NGT

ealy JnogueH
pue Aeg ueqQ 4o [egusiod ey} |yin

eulew ysues e jo Juswdojersg

BWOIINO SABIYDE O SUCHIY

awasnNg FEY]

eale anbiun uno Buiosjoid pue abejusy [einjeu pue [eRos ‘feinynd no Bugowod - JuswuolAug

JustuuosAug Buipuesing




Page 80

M3

easy
uawdojonrap

uoionpal

S9|0H
eluueap

ealy

swsiy  pean

s|oAg| ||e Je Juswabebua Ayunwwos
poddns 0) pe)IUWIOD PUE PLYHUSP] DI SSN0STY

sassaooud Juswabebus poddns 0} spung pue
Buiures) ‘saoinosal ‘ewl ‘YeIs Anuspl S8IAISS JIoUNcy

Ajeaoaye abebus o) Auoedes ayy aney saplunwwo)

SONIUNWLIOD [B30] Yym oM Bulpjing Ayoedes pusixg

3O S[9A8] Jje Jo) payluap) ase spoyjew aeudoiddy

JUSUIBA|OAU] 10} SPOYIOW }Sq U} INC pui

sanuoud jeoo| paasbe aaey seUNWWOD

sainseauw $s$300ng

Ul pajsaiayul
JSOW BJe SAPUNWWOD S30a[gNs 12YM N0 pulq

Q9RIUWOY BaIY B} Ut [9AS) |BD0)

3WO2IN0 AABIYOE O} SU0IOY awosNp JEN
8DUBYO 21N}NO pUB UOHEBAOUUI JUsWaAcIdWI SNONUIUOD - JuaLidojaAs( [euolesiuBbIO

Bunjoo piemio




Page 81

SUONONPA BJIAISS Baly

SPIq JUSWACEASP Boly

uofjel|1suoddy Alejebpng

0003 0003 0003 0003 Arewwng [e1oueuld 91198

SjusWIWo? ETE aid ald sjuslIWoy
ZLLLOZ  LLIOLOZ  0L/600Z

$92UN0Sa1 UBWNYH

0003
Ziioe

lended

0003
i4joLoz

0003
0116002

SJUBWWOY

0003

2oz L1010z 06002 196png jenjoe

6/8002 812002
anuanay

VUV STTSI IHL ANV N¥OT ‘NVEO0 HO4 NV1d VIV




Page 82

systy

EVE] 314 314
ez LLoLoe 0116002
(jeuonippe) sedinosal tewny

0007
14331174

0003
L1/0L0Z
10b6pnq jendes

0007
01/6002

0003 P1q
(4711414

0003 P9 0003 P 0003
LLOLoZ 0116002 6/8002 ou
306pnq onuoaay BUWODINO JABIYIE O} SUOIIY 431 onbiun

spiq juswdojarap ealy

VUV S317S1 IHL ANV NYOT ‘NVEO0 HOd NV1d VIV




Page 83

0003 0003 0003
3id 314 EIE] 0003 0003 0003 uondNPAA  UuoBONpas  UoRINPaI 0003

474774 1110102 0416002 ZHLL0Z L1/0102 0L/6002 2uioe LL/0L02 01/6002 01/6002 uonoNpaI
SHSIY  {U01ONPaL) SIINOSII UBWINY 196pnq jende) UoINPaI 136PNQ INUDAIY uo1siaoLd 391A108 UG JPRdwy 40} uosean UOIIONP31 801AI08 B3I BJINIDS

uononpal ealy

VAUV SITSI FJHL ANV N¥OT ‘NVEO0 304 NV1d VIIY




Page 84

"salpedosd Bunsixe Jo Buipelbdn ul 518y Jo Bunioddng

Alejuswwio)

‘Auenod [any a)esipels 0) SyIom pue Joedull [2JuswWUoIAUS
0] B sey pajeinsul [|pm ‘Jualole ABiaus s| yoiym Buisnoyleoinieg

AsnleQ pue ubiseq
uo sieuped Buuuelq

10 UoIsiA0Id 8insud 0} J0joas Alejunjoa pue 10joas sjeaudiiunwwoy  pue

o} ‘spiojpueT [2100g paselsiBoy yim diyssauped ur suopKisalep
oido) easy

80IAI8S

suonesiuebio

yym

Yomp
oidoy

_sobuslieyo Aiepljep eoinies
aweay) Buubledwes ulep




Page 85

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL COUNCIL
STRATEGIC FINANCE 11 FEBRUARY 2010

FEES AND CHARGES

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

INTRODUCTION

This report summarises the key issues in relation to fees and charges
for the 2010-11 budget.

RECOMMENDATION
The proposed levels of fees and charges are approved.
DETAIL

The Council raises fees and charges for a number of services it
delivers. The Council reviews the levels of fees and charges each year.

In general it is proposed to increase fees and charge by 1.5% for 2010-
11. In some cases fees and charges are rounded up or down and that
gives a variation from the simple 1.5%. However the overall increase is
based on 1.5% with a few exceptions. The main exceptions to this are:

e Commercial refuse collection — Increased in line with landfill tax.

e Hire of sports pitches (Operational Services) increased to reflect

actual cost of service provision.
e No increase for school meals and car parking fees.

Appendix 1 contains the full list of fees and charges for each
department.

As most inflationary provisions in the budget have been removed the
draft budget has been prepared generally without any increase in
income for fees and charges. This means the proposed fees and
charges will yield £140,000 of additional income that is not built into the
budget for 2010-11. The Council will need to decide how to utilise this
income as part of the budget deliberations on the 11 February.

There are 2 areas where a change in the approach to charging is
proposed. Both relate to car parking. It is proposed to introduce new
chargeable car parks in both Rothesay and Tobermory. It is estimated
this will yield an additional £20,000 of income. It is also proposed to
remove the seasonality and have full year charging in Inveraray and
Luss. It is estimated this will yield an additional £22,000 of income. Both
these proposals are laid out in page 356 of the service plans pack.



Page 86

3.6 The charging policy for Adult Services is currently being subject to a
wholesale review and a further report will be brought to the Executive in
due course. No budgetary implications have been identified in relation
to this at this stage.

4 CONCLUSION

4.1 The proposal is to increase fees and charges by 1.5% within the main
exceptions noted in paragraph 3.2. The increase will yield an additional
£140,000 not built into the budget. The proposals for new charges are
summarised in paragraph 3.5 and further detail is provided on page 356
of the main budget pack.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy — Sets levels of fees and charges for 2010-11
Financial - Sets levels of fees and charges for 2010-11
Legal — None

Personnel — None

Equal Opportunities — None

Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance
3 February 2010



Page 87
APPENDIX 1

FEES AND CHARGES
2010-2011

DEPARTMENT PAGE
Community Services 3-8
Corporate Services 9-11
Operational Services 13-45




Page 88



Page 89

juswiow ay)

Je 9)qe)leAeun uoljye|ndjed Joj palinbal|(%00°001) G G6" GT'S6 (981D Apjaam) 66 - 6T
S91EY 90UMO] Y JUSWUISA0D YS1]100S
juswow ay3

Je d)qe)leAeun uolyeindjed Joj palinbal|(%00°001) 0€°GG)- 0£°GS51 (984D A29M) 09 19A0
S9)ey 9OUBMO]Y JUSWUISA0L YS113006

:931dsay

o ol . . . asueyd Apeam (a1e)

57} 1ddf%157) 00°% 00°0v6 00°9¢6 >u_.C:EEOUv UOLSIAOId 9Je)) Jeljuaplsay >u._._0r_u:< ]jed307

%G1 1dY|%ES 1 050 0L €€ 09°2¢ $951N0) UNOH (7 1RUOLIEI0A-UON

%G1 1dY|%ES 1 00°} 0799 0Z7°59 $3954N0) INOH (7 1UOLIEIOA

%G"1 Idd $994 954n07) uoryesdnp3 }Npy

%G1 1dY|%8y" L 0.0 00°8% o€ Ly (woou Buisueyd Jnoym) J Aiosare)

%S° L 1d¥|%6v°T 0L') 00°0Z 0£°89 (woou Butdueyd ym) o Aiosare)

%G1 1dY|%6S" | 0Z°0 08°7) 09°Z) (woou Sutsueyd Jnoyiim) g Aiosare)

%G" 1 1dY(%67° 1 0€°0 05°€2 07°€2 (woou utdueyd yum) g Aiosaied

%G°1 Idd lnoy Jad sa8iey) Su133a yoiid

%G1 1dY|%67°1 0€°0 0S°€ 0T°€T 3 Ki08a1e)

%G1 Idd|%61 "L 010 068 or'8 q A1oBaie)

%G1 1dd anoy Jad saguey) Su133a jooyds

%G1 1dY|%EP"1 09°0 09°Z¥ 00°Z¥ Aep 1o

%G1 1dY|%EP"1 0€°0 0€°1T 00°12 sinoy # 03 dn

9JIH sng lulw

% 3
Juswiwo) asea.du| asea.du| 1102-0L0Z 010Z-6002 98.ey) Jo uondiidsaqg

S9DIAISS AJlUnwiwo)

sagJey) pue saa4

1 1L0Z-0107 uonjesedaud 398png |1douno?) aing pue |)|AS1y




Page 90

juswiow ayj}

Je S)qe)leAeun uolje|ndjed Joj palinbal|(%00°001) G’ G6" GT'S6 66 - G
S931eY 9OUBMO]Y JUSWUISAOD USI3300§
juswow 3y}

je d)qe)leAeun uolye|ndjed Joj palinbal|(%00°001) 0€°GG1- 0€°5G1 09 49A0
S9)ey 9OUBMO]Y JUSWUISA0L YS11300§

:9udsay

%G"1 1dY|%LS"L 099 09 ¥ 00°8€Y Aniqesiqg Sututean

V1502 Aq paw.ijuod a9 03 1S L1/01|%00°0 000 0L°0vS 0L°0¥S JuswaaIse y50) Jad se ‘a3el Aj1api3

:9J4e) SulsunN

%G1 1d¥|%08G" L 0z's 0Z°16¢ 00°9%¢€ Aniqesiqg Sututean

V150D Aq pawiyuod 5q 03 N1S L1/01{(%00°001) 00°00S- 00°006 ( eL2LD D1Y13ds) ajey JerIusplsSay psdueyu

V1502 Aq pawjuod a9 03 1S L1/0L|(%00°001) 98" ¥9%- 98°'9% juswaaise y150) Jad se ‘a3ed Auap)3

194e) jenryuapisay

SI9PLAOId 9)eALld 10} sjey A]Ya9M paroiddy

%G1 1dY¥|%0G" L 00°0} 00°£L9 00°£99 (954eYd A29M) UeYDRUOY

%G"1 1dY(%8Y" L 00°€l 00°768 00°6/8 (951eYd Apj2am) Jamo] pay

sjuawystjqeisy pajuswajddng
juswiow oy}

Je 9)qe)leARUN UOLIRINDIRD J0) Pallnbal|(%00°001) 06°18- 06°18 (981D Apjaam) 7 - 81
S93eY 9OUBMO]Y JUSWUISA0D YSI1300§

% 3
Juswiwo) asea.du| asea.du| 1102-0L0Z 010Z-6002 98.ey) Jo uondiidsaqg

S9DIAISS AJlUnwiwo)

sagJey) pue saa4

1 10Z-0107 uonjeledald 395png |1ouno) aing pue |)As1y




Page 91

%€ smd %G1 1d¥[%0S "t 161 7lGe 19°€€ %99Mm Jad 351ey) SDIAISS SJURUS ] SSI)SWOH

:8ulsnoH

%G1 1dY]%9S° L 00°¢ 00'o¢l 00°8¢1 AuQ malray spaaN

%G1 1dY]%08° L TN GC6GE 00°058¢€ Auo juawssassy spasN 11N

%G1 1dY]%CS" L 00°L 00°89% 00°L9¥ uoL1e]INSUOD / JUSWSSISSY a4e) AJlunwiwo) Jad

:S9J1IAISS |BUOLSSD)0.1d JO UOISIAOIg

%G1 1dY|%ES" L 0L°C 0L°6/1 00°ZL1 UOL3e}INSUOD / JUSWISSISSE 19

:uonyeynsuo) Adeuay] jeuorjedndd( Jo uOISIAOId

%€0" L1 Gyl 091 GLgl 93el Aunoy - djaH swioH

siedA 7 snotaaud Joy asealdul oN|%00°S 0Z°0 YA 4 00'¥ }oaMm Jad - swuely Alunwwo)

%00°0 00°0 00°¢C 00 a5peq Jad - sagpeg amg

%G1 1dY]%08° L G0°0 TARY 0T’¢ Jeaw Jad - sqn)) youn

%G1 1d¥[%05° ) 600 ov€ GE'€E Jeaw Jad - S]99YM Uo Sjeaw

S9JIAISS |eIIUSPISIY-UON
juswiow oy}

Je 3\qejteAeuN UoLeINDRD 04 paJinbal|(%00°001) 06°18- 06°18 ¥ -8l
S93eY 9OUBMO]Y JUSWUISA0D YSI1300§

% 3
Juswiwo) asea.du| asea.du| 1102-0L0Z 010Z-6002 98.ey) Jo uondiidsaqg

sagJey) pue saa4

SaJIAISS AJlUnwiwo) 110Z-0107 uoneaedaud 328png |1ouno) aing pue |)AS1y




Page 92

%0G" | 110 [44 L. (994J02 YIm 8s1n0d 7) Youn
%0G" | £0°0 69'v N4 sayolmpues pue dnos
%06° 1 ¥0°0 8¢€°C et S}INDSLg pue 93}j0)/ea|
:8uli93ed - sadiey) Atewlild AeielaAu| B 193SOH
%0G" L vL0 166V AN 4 Aep n\nd
%081 0 €L°LT TANA4 Aep j1eH
uonjesiuesio 1ayjo Auy
%0S" L¥°0 €L°1T [APA4 Aep 11n4
%0G" | TAL) 991 6€£°91 Aep j1eH
:8uLleaH s,uaJpiy) / 11duno) aing B 1ALy
341y woou - sagiey) Alewlid AeleldAu| B |91SOH
%0G" | TA4 GT'Tal 00°0S1 Aep 1in4
%0G" L €Ll €1°9L 00°GL Aep jeH
1S9DIAISS AJlUNWIWOo) YIMIno
1341y Woo. - S33eSaYM ‘wooy Sululed] SaI1AI9S AJlunwwo?)
MILADY 9D1AISS UOLIRDONPT ULYIM
uoydo ue si slyy dduls SseaJdul ON|%00°0 00°0 00°GE6°LE 00°GE6°LE Spuepjied
:wnuue 1ad sa8Jey) €7 uodas
MILADY 9D1AISS UOLIRDONPT ULYIM
uonndo ue sI Sly} 9duls seasdul oN|%00°0 00°0 68l [of-M Jeaw 4ad - sjidngd 03 sjeaw jo ajes
%00°0 10°0 ¥G'0 €6°0 (sawreuaql) 199ys Jad ‘SulALlaIY
%00°0 00°0 G0°0 G0°0 J133jea13y) spuodas () Jad sje.
%00°0 00°0 [4400) o (Spuodas | ueyj ssa) a8.Jeyd> wnwiuiy
xe4
%00°0 00°0 [4A0) o apis Jad (pauno)od) py
%00°0 00°0 010 010 apls Jad (911ym B oeIq) Y
SsuiAdooojoyd
% 3
JUsWWO) asea.du| 9sea.du| PERRREL saBley) as.iey) Jo uondridsaq
LL/0L0T 010Z-6007

SADIAY3S ALINNWWOD




Page 93

:saLtelqL]

M3IASY 9DIAISS UOLIRINPT ULYIIM

uorldo ue si Siyy} 9ouls aseaudul ON|%00°0 00°0 00°6Z1 00°6Z) wnuue J3d - safiey) uol}dniisu| |ejuswWnIIsu|
%0G" | 88°96¢ 79°658°9¢ v/ 8579 (1239503 pade|d s3ulqLs) UJPILYD € - DI9YMIS)d
%05° 1 19°161 (0] 244N 114 €L vr8°61 (4ay33803 paseid sBunqLs) UBIPIIYD T - 249YMas)a
%0G" | vi°861 86" LTV CL vG 67T€l PIIYd | - 919Yymasid
puel00S uLtyim
:SsjusWAdR|{ aJe) Ajlwe4 9INHISqNS ANLIOYINY-193u|
%06 | 0769 €E9LLY €9°9%9y suotydopy A13unod-Jau|
isadJey) JayiQ - saljlwe B ualpjiyd
%00°0 00°0 TIN TIN 9)dsay
awodul Ajtwey [ swodul Ajtwey
19U JO %G°T 19U JO %G°C Swoy je uaJp)iyd Juspuadap Jayjo YIMm Ssjuaied
awoodul Ajtwey | swodut AjLwey
19U JO %G 19U JO %4 3oddns swodul Jo 3d1adaJ ul Jou Ssjudied
%00°0 00°0 1IN 1IN 10ddns swoobul jo 1diadau ut sjuaded
:SUOLINGLIIUOY) |RJUSIRY D4R |RIIUSPLSDY - SaljlWe] B USIP|LY)
3502 JlUn pa3a3pnq|(%89°| 00°¥C 00°96¥°1 00°Z€¥°) (984D APj9am) ydingsus)aH
1502 J1UN P9195pNq|%S6°0 00°Z1 00°£08°} 00°06. L (981Yd A1¥99M) M3IA Yoe1ays
150 JLUN Pa3d5PNY|%0L°T 00°8¢€ 00°91¥°L 00°80%°1L (981eyd App2am) eyinpung
:UOISIAOUd 3.') Jeljusplsay Ajioyiny |ed0T - sdljiwed B uaJipjiyd
%0S" | 99°0 VAN 44 LL ey pJeog 11n4
%0G" | yAY] 18°8¢ ¥T'8¢ pieog jieH
%061 L0 €L°LT TANVA4 isepyealg pue pag
sdnouo 13y30
%0G" | yAN] 18°8¢ ¥T'8¢ pleog jieH
%061 0 €L°LT TANYA4 isepyealg pue pag
]1ouno?) aing pue |)AS1y
:uoljepowiwiodde - sds.iey?) 19ISoH
% 3
JUsWWO) asea.du| 9sea.du| PERRREL saBley) as.iey) Jo uondridsaq
LL/0L0T 010Z-6007

SADIAY3S ALINNWWOD




Page 94

%08°C €0°0 (0] L0°L uoLSS9OU0D
%0G" L €00 GL'C (44 3npe
:pJed diysiaquaw pastiaindwod Jo sso

juswade)das | juswadeidal

MN-104-331 | S%N-104-3)]
10 3503 11N} 40 3503 11N} )D03s pagewep Jo 3507

asejsod agejsod
J0 350D SISA0D | JO 3SOD SIDA0D
Jamouloq Jamo.loq sueo) Aseiql) Ja1u
%00°0 10°0 8¢°0 L£°0 uoLSS9OU0D
%00°0 10°0 GL°0 vL0 nnpe
191313 Jad sysanbay
%00°0 00°0 LT0 LT0 uoLSS9OU0D
%00°0 10°0 ¥G 0 €5°0 nnpe
:S92130U SNPISAQ
%00°0 00°0 90°0 90°0 uoLSS9OU0D
%00°0 00°0 €10 €10 nnpe
:(saLseuql) a)1qow Joy eyes-oud) Aep uad ‘wall Jad - a8ieyd anpiaAQ
% 3
Juswwo) asealdu| 9sea.Idu| peEEille sadleys as8.Jey) Jo uondudsaqg
LL/0L0T 010Z-6007

SADIAY3S ALINNWWOD




Page 95

%S'T L€9F 8E'TEVF 00'SZv3 92U 1UBWUIRLIIUT Jl|gNd|  S9I1AIDS d1es0dio)

%S'T T1°¢3 CTEVTT 00'TVT3 JeaA Jad uana auo 3uipjoy uonesiuedio
S32IAIDS 91e40du0)

a|geleyd/Aielun|on - JojelsadQ 194e A
%S'T LE9F 8E'TEVF 00'scvF 90U3217 JojesadQ 194eN S92IAIDS 91e40d40)
%S'T 80°'TF 80°€LF 0023 Asesodwa] /Auey) - Joped] 19941S5|  S9IIAISS 91e40du0)
%S'T 0g€F 0c'eced 00°0¢cF 90UdJIT JopeJ] 19341S|  SIJIAISS 31es0di0)
%S'T 0t'e? 0g'eces 00°0¢¢3 90UddI7 2JIH 1eOg|  SIIAIRS d)es0di0)
%S'T LE9F 8E'TEVF 00'S¢v3 90UDI7 43[eaQ |BIBIN|  SIIIAIDS d)es0dio)
%S'T LE9F 8E'TEVF 00'S¢v3 90Ud0I7 J3|e3Q JOJ0|A PUBH PUOIS|  $IIAIDS d1e0dIo)
%S'T €9°G3 VSvLEF 00'69¢€37 90Ud0I7 J3|edQ PUBH PUOIAS|  SIJIAISS 31eJ0di0)
%S'T 8E'T3 8E'€63 00'¢63 9JUIDIT JBALQ JBD BJIH dJBALd/IXE] | SIIIAISS 31es0dio)
%S'T €9°93 YSvLET 00°69¢F 92UdI7 Je) dJIH 91eAlld S32IAIDS 91e40du0)
%S'T €9°G3 VSvLEF 00'69¢€37 d0uddITJeD IXe]|  SIIIAIDS d1el0dI0)
%S'T [AN(E; LT'8F S0°'83 uoI1eJ15183J 01 JUSWPUSWE - SUOSIOd|  SIIIAISS dlesoduo)
%S'T v 03 70913 08'STF uolle1si8al-al - suoslod S321AJIDS 91e40du0)
%S'T Sv'03 St'oes 00°0€3 uoI1eJ1SISal - SUOSIOd|  S9IIAILS d1ed0duo)

%0 0 00'vEF 00'veF saAIso|dxa Suidaay| Joy uoliedsi3au
JO 32Ud21| JO JUBWAde|daJ JO J3jsued] ‘UoilelIB\|  SIDIAIDS 1el0duo)

%0 0 00193 00153 S9AISO|dxa Su1daay 40 uollel1SI3ad JO) |[EMIUDY
S92IAIDS 91e40d40)
%0 0 00°€0TF 00°€0T3 sanIso|dxa Suidaay| Joj uones1siday|  S921AI9S 91es0duo)
%0 0 00'287 00'¢83 9JUDJ|| 94035 SAAISO|AX3 JO [eMaudy| S9IIAIDS 21es0dio)
%0 0 00'S.LTF 00°'S/T3 9JUdDI| 3403S SOAISO|dXD JO dNSS||  SDIIAIDS d1es0dio)
%0 0 %08'T %08'T syuswAed pJed HpaJd 19uJd1Ul J0) S98URYD)|  SOIIAISS 91es0du0)
%0 0 %681 %SE'C juswAed pJed }ipaJd Joj sa8Jey)|  S9IAIBS 3el0duo)
%0 0 00'T3 00'T3 w1l Jad a84eyd Suijpuey uswisally|  S921AIDS d1esodio)
%0 0 %0S°C %05 SUOIIONPIP UOIUN SPEJ] UO UOISSILIWO)|  SIIIAIDS 91e40d10)
%0 0 06'S3 06'S3 V1S J49d 984eyd 3un 393} U0I193||0) J31BAN YSI100S s921A13S 212100107
%0 0007 00°0¢T3 00°'0¢T3 $91e2141149) Auinbu3j Aluadoud sJ10md1j0S|  S921AI9S 91esoduo)

aseasou| %

aseasu|

adJ4eyd TT-0TOT

a8J4eyd 0T-600C

984ey) Jo uondusaqg

uawpedaqg

139aN9 TT/0T0¢ Y04 SIDYVHDI IINOINI 40 1SIT SIDIAYIS ILVHOdHOD




Page 96

%S'T SLEF SL'€ESCT 00°05¢3 92UDIT O dUQ dnudA panosddy|  $2IAIBS d)elodio)
%S'T q8'¢F G8'C6TF 000613 wdg Jayye sduluans ‘sadueyd ujwpy|  S9IIAILS 91e40du0)
%S'T ov'¢3 0v'Z913 000913 Aepunies anuan panosdde ‘sa8ieyd ulwpy|  SIDIAISS dlesodio)
%S'T [8'TF 88°9¢T3 00°GCT3 Aepyaam anuan panoidde ‘sadieyd ulwpy| S9IIAIDS dles0dio)
%0 00°03 00°0S3 00°0S3 uollesiuwa|os diysiaupied |IAI)|  S9I1AIRS 91e40du0)
%0 0003 00°'8¢3F 00°'8¢F (uosiad 49d) soo130N 28ende|n|  S921AILS 21es0di0)
%S'T L8'TF 88'9¢13 00'SCT3 Aepinies - Suippam 599INI3S 31240410
921440 SJeJ15139Y - SWOdU| [BIUDY SJeals|Zay
%S'T v6'03 S6°€93 00°€93 Suippam s301MI3S 212100109
921440 SJeJ1S139Y - SWOdU| [eIUDY SJeals|SaYy
%0 0007 00°0TF 00°0TF yaJeas |esauan - A30|03uan 13 Yd4eas Ssiedlsi3ay s99113S 21210010)
%0 0003 00's3 00°'S3 yaJeas Jejndiued - A30joauan g ydaeas siellsi3ay seoInIBS 212100109
%0 0007 00'63 0063 sagueyd pue s994 suedysi8ay|  S9IIAIDS dles0dio)
%0 0007 00053 00°0S3 sadieyoay |eusawpedaq - 1S WOJ4 SWOIU||  SIIIAIDS 91e40dio)
%S'T YR 09913 SE9TF 934ey) 3uipueH - 219 syueg 01 oju| S32IAJDS 31e40du0)
%S'T 8013 80°¢€LF 00¢LF 49315139y JUBWUIBA0D JIAID) Jo Ado)|  S9IIAIDS 91es0du0)
%S'T 6€'03 6€9¢3 00'9¢3 1935189y JUBWIUIBA0D JIAID JO JOBIIXT|  SIDIAIDS d3esodio)
%S'T 9t'03 LYV'TEF 00'TEF a1e[d Jed aJiy a1eAlid/Ixe] JO anssI-ay S92IAIDS 31e40du0)
%S'T 9t'0F LV'TEF 00°TEF 93peq e jJo anss|-ay S32IAIDS 91e40dU0)
%S'T 9¥'0F LV'TET 00°1EF 90UdJI| e Jo AdOD palila)|  SIIAILS 91e40du0)
%S'T 9,03 LLTST 00°TS3 shep g s3oInIBS 212100109
UIYLM - (341Y 33eALId /1XE]) B[D1YSA JO UOIINIASANS
%S'T 80'T3 80°€LF 00'¢L3 Aep $301AI9S 93e40d10)
awles - (aJ1y a1eAlid/ixel) s|21yaA Jo uo1NUISGNS
%S'T €913 €G°E0TF 00°¢0TF 92UdDI| OH 031 JUBWPUBWY|  SIIIAIDS 91el10du0)
%S'T 0€'¢T3 0€'CeBF 00'0¢87 SuosJad QT uey3l 40w YHM sasiwald - QINH|  S92IAISS d1edodio)
%S'T 6663 66'G/9F 009993 suosJad QT 03 dn jo sasiwald - QINH|  S©21A19S 21es0di0)
%S'T 0c'e? 0g'eces 00°0¢c3 90UDIT J2UBS|D MOPUIM | SIDIAIDS d1elodio)
%S'T LE9F 8E'TEVF 00'S¢v3 90Ud2|| Suldled SINOY d3e]|  SIINIBS dlelodio)
%S'T LL'TT LL6TTF 00'8TT3 90u32I7 Adesodwial JUswWUIEIUT Dl lqNd|  SIIIAIBS 1el0duo)

139aN9 TT/0T0¢ Y04 SIDYVHDI IINOINI 40 1SIT SIDIAYIS ILVHOdHOD

10



Page 97

%S'T 0S'LF 0S°£0S3 00°'00S3 90UdII JBSA 33JYL SNUDA UleI] /1ROg|  SIIIAIDS d)es0dI0)
%S'T 0093 00'90v3 00'00v3 90UDDIT JJO BUQ dNUBA uled]/ie0g|  SIDIAISS d1elodio)
%S'T 057 0S°L0S3 00°00S3 90UDII7 Je3A 924y anudA panosddy|  S221AIS d1ed0di0)

139aN9 TT/0T0¢ Y04 SIDYVHDI IINOINI 40 1SIT SIDIAYIS ILVHOdHOD

11



Page 98

12



Page 99

0102/20/€0 Wuold sXTVYNI L 1-0102 sebieyD pue sea - Jeig - SO

01L0¢/¥/l 9314V 319vOI1ddV STOHVHO ‘310N

1VNId - S3OdVHO L1/01L0¢C

S3JIAA3S TVNOILV™EEdO

L1/0102 SIDOUVHI S3AJIAYTS TVNOILVIIHO

13



Page 100

0102/20/€0 SNIAHYM D0Q TOHYLNOD LS3d SIXTVNIL |1-040 Sebieyd pue sea4 - yeid - SO

"ybnoo |[suusy 1o} paje[nooul die Asyy %S’ L 050 0S've (VLS 9¢'6¢C 00'vE  |90°'S ¥6'8C 894 UoneNOoU| [suud)y
yey) sbop Aelis Jo souejdasoe uo siojelado [suusy Jo jJuswalinbay
%60 0L0 00°LL  [00°0 0601 06°0L 000 0601 994 Buipieog Ajleg
‘sjouuay ay} wouy Bop Jidy} 109)|02 0} JOUMO 8}
MoOJ[e 0} panssi aq usy} ||im }disdal i “opew s JuswAed usym soo %00 000 00'GZ (000 00'sC 00'GZ |00°0 00'sC (994 Aiojnje)g) 884 prepuels
ealy Je ‘UMOYS 8 }shw A}juapl JO Jooid "doUBAPE Ul JuswAed s90d
%L'€ 6L1L 6L°€c (000 6l'€e 00CcE |00°0 00ce sejnuIw Oz Jad juswyeal | juenbasqgng
%8¢ A% Ly'vS (000 LV vS 00'€S |00°0 00°'€S ssjnuiw Qg 0} dn juswiesl | Joj/pue ASAINg
‘pappe Buiag ] WA OU Ylim Ing SISWO)SNO [BIOISWWOD Se sajel abieyoay |eutalu| - s}sad 109sU| JO SJUSpOY JO Uoledipel]
awes ay} Je 921AIas Yoeas 1oy pablieyd aq pinoys sjuswieds( [1ouno)
uojjenobaN Ag uonenobaN Ag |eloIaWwwo) - Juswaalby [enuuy
%L L 00¢C 00°ZLL [e¥'ZL  [1G'66 00'GLL |ELZL 18'16 8]edliie) |0Jju0) JUspoY Jo 8nss|
%E" L 050 00'6€ 186 6lL°€E 0S8 |€LS 112¢ sejnuIw Oz Jad juswyesd | jusnbasgng
%' 0S'L 00v9  [€G°6 Ly ¥S 0529 1€6 61°€S s8jnuiw og 0} dn juawieal | Joj/pue AeAIng
|eI213WWOY - S}S8d 109SU| 10 JUSpOY JO uoneodipel]
"JaWOISNO 8y} 0} apew
g |IIM (1WA J0 dAISN|oUl) 00 03 4O punyal e palinbai s| Juswieal) ou §|
80UBAPY Ul 9pew oq | SN JudwAhed - 100 Aeains %9°C 0s’L 0009 6'8 90'LS 0G'8S 12’8 6.6 ‘SpJojpueT]
a|qepunyal uou (1WA JO dAISN|oUI) 00°0Z3F Sepnjoul abieyd plepuels 9)JeAlId/SpJojpuET [e100S/Suole00sSY BulsnoH woJy pajual
Jo ajeaud Jayye sasiwaid Buljjomp |je sieno0d siy] sesiwaid
Buijjemp an3sawoq - s}sad }0asu| Jo Juspoy JO uoljedipes]
TOYLNOD 1s3d
% (3) SSO¥O 13N [sso¥o 13N
asealou| | aseasou] |LL/0L0Z| LVA L1/0L0Z |0L/6002 1VA 01/6002 SN3IAQYVM 90d/TOHLNOD 1S3d

11/0102 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYYILO

14



Page 101

0102/20/€0 SLITIOL d3IMS ISN4TY SIXTYNIL |1-0L0Z sebrey) pue se94 - yeiq - SO

aelg esue| je jdey s| Aiddns v "seoy0 eauy je peseyoind|  [%0°0 000 00 000 00°€ 00°€ 000 00°€ ske tepey
%0°0 000 020 000 0Z°0 020 000 020 (pey} BsuIn} 1eyM) 894 BoUBAHUT
SIONIINIANOD dI1and
%2} 0v'0 00°GE lz's 6,62 09'¥€ SL'S S¥'62C (yoes) sAgjjoJ} Joxewadng Jo uinjey
‘sSlap|oyasnoy 0} s|qe|ieAe
‘sjuswabuelle ol10ads Jo pasiApe aq 0} 8AeY Aew SIBWO0}SNI SS8d0e AluQ "sulwpg Jayuny Aians 00'G63 (‘sulwg o3 dn 00 0613
JINOLYIP YiM SPUBS] BWOS 10} Jnq 309 Je 818y Ajdde o} sasey Aued %0°L v0'sl 0000z |00°0 0000z |o6'981 000 96'981 ab1eyo wnwjuiw) UoRo8||02 JUBWSD SO}SBgSY Jap|oyasnoy
"Jodap 03 uinjal jun jodap Buines)
a[o1yaA wouy pableyd aq 0} swi] (S8uuo} G'Q JO Peo| pawnsse) *ajed sy} je pabieys ag p|noys suoljerdossy
(LVA X2 21°9€3) 0523 J0 ab.1eyo [esodsip pue yijdn oy (LA Buisnoy (4noy | ebieyn
X8 16°8¥3) 0G°/G3 U0 peseq Jnoy Jad (1vA 9ul) 00°00L3 St 86:eyd|  |%bzl  Joo'LL 00001 68yl [L1G8 0068 9z'€l v1°GL wnwiulN- JnoH Jed 8bJeyd) yidn [eroeds |erosewwod)
%87CLL [oes 0001 000 000} 0LY 000 0L ab.1eyd wnwuiw Jano senuiw o}, Jad pebieyo ‘ebieyd enx3g
paaibe aq 0] }S00 pue B} pajewi}sa Ue Mojje 0}
pabue.se JSIA 8)IS B pue pawliojul 89 P|NOYs Jadlyo asnoy je sejnujw us} 0} dn
UE UBy} SUIW (], UBy} a10w axe} o} Buiob yidn J| S[0IYSA pUB USW OM] JO YIOM SISA0D abieyD wnwiuly)
(suiwg}) "abieys wnwiuiw oy asueape ul yuswhed| |%zoz  |vo's 00°0S 000 00°0€ 9672 0070 962 (964ey0 WiNWIUIW) UORIB|0D asNjey [e10adS JapjoyasnoH
%5t Joos ooere  [60Ls  [1616z  Joo'gee  |ve0s 99182 suig 247 08z} Aluo asn [erJawwio)
%G'L 00°G ooeee  |ogey  [oresz  |oo'sze  |sssy G1'6.2 suig a7 001 | AluQ asn [erosswwod
asn ployssnoy|  |%S') 00y 00'7.2 1gor  |6L'eez Jooolz 1Z'0v 61622 suig aar1 099 Ajuo asn [erdIawLI0Y
10} s80UBSWNOIID [euoldeoxe Ul plos aq Ajuo|  |%6°L  Jooz 0080, |60°9L [I6'L6 0090} |64°GL 1Z°06 suig a1 09¢ Aluo asn [edewW0]
PINOYS pUE 8SN [e[0JBWIWOD J0j Bl Sulq 08Z1-098|  |%b'L 00} 00'v. 201l [s6z9 00°€L 1801 €129 suig a1 0y Aluo esn [erIawuI0)
Sulq 213SOWOP || 10} 9OUBAPE Ul PaAISJal 9 jshw juswied %02 810 0062 000 0052 512 000 AR A suig a7 0tz Aluo asn ausawoq
"Aluo @sn opysewop Joj plos 89 0} UIq OvL|  |%02 870 0062 000 0062 51 000 zs've suig a1 0y} Aluo @sn onsewog
(901d aseya.nd s,j1ouno) o} joalgns) suig 1198y JO 9jeS
“(9oueApE Ul JuswiAed) seoyo ealy Je paseyoind|  |%e'ee  [sz0 00'} si0 |sgo 6.0 010 590 (0g 49d) sbeg [lyoy - sdoodg dood
Buinssi 1oy Ajuo yejs Aluswy pue speoy Aq 1dey aq pjnoys syoes 400 4ad $X0€S g JO WnWuI v
lenuapyuog “(sabreyo feiajul uo jea ou) Auo lewssiul| %6t |ozo 0041 000 [00'LL 080} 000 0801 esodsip pue Buippa.ys “Hiidn sepnjoul - SYOES [eRuapyYUeD
‘wJo} a1e9 Jo Alnp e jo uons|dwos Aq paluedwoooe
8 0} Spaau os|y ‘(adueApe ul JuswAed) ssoyO ealY JB paseyoind %9’} 00'¢ 00981 0.2z  |oggsk  |ooesl 9z’ /2 ¥1°GS1 (06 40 yoed) asn |elosawWoY Joj sHoeg Jo Aiddng
3N°610°pUB|J0OSIEMES}SEM MMM JO 9G/0 suig j}sodwo) jo Alddng
/10 G¥#80 Buiuoyd Aq 10811p J9PIO UBD SIBP|OYSSNOH "JUSWUIBA0D)
ysi)0os Ag pasipisgns awayos [euoljeu e Aq papasiadng
sitejeq JuswiAed % @ SSONO 1aN | ssouo 13N
@sealoujj asealoul | 1100z | LVA | LL/0LOZ | 0L/6002 1VA 01/6002 ONIdIIMS L3FYLS/NOILDTTI0D SN

L1/010Z STDOUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHIHO

15



Page 102

0102/20/€0 01'60 AYVININNS ISNIATY TVIOHIWNOD SIXTYNIA | 1-0102 sebieyDd pue see - yeiq - SO

‘A|Buiploooe sjuswainseaw

ulg paj@aym 1o Junod peol isnipe o} Jybu
ay) seAlasal |Iouno) sy aysem Bunoedwod
aJe sasiwald a1aym saoueIsSWwNaIID U]

"9]0N Jajsuel |
a1se)\\ B se pasn os|e S| Juswaalby ay |
"aseqe]ep [eJjusd ay) uo jdey uonew.ojul

8y} UO paseq aelg asuel) Wolj 108.1p

JUss ale sjusWaslby asnjay [eloJsWWOD

16°090°L  [96°4G1 19206 11 08¢l
6ELL6 ¥,.'GEL S9'GL. 110011
€9'9%S Lv'L8 [A4°1°14 41 099
10°G8¢ I &4% 19¢¥C 4 0%E
feem e 85uo payidn Xey |jypue| 82°10C 86'6C 0eLLL 1 0¥2/0% L
pue uonoa||09o o} abieys uiq a4yl 0FZ 8y} 01 JusjeAinby (@eam Jad yijdn | uo paseq)
SSOY9O 13N
"(ss019) 8271023 - 01/6002 10} 961eYD WNWIUIA 01/6002 LVA 01/6002
sulg pajasaym
9¥'6.v'6lL [02°106°C [92'825°9) 091-9G1 162296 |6€Ly¥'L  [25°9€2'8 08-9.
l¥'998'8l [68°608°C 259509l SGL-1GL /8%90°6 [60°0G€°)L [82¥L.Z GSl-L.
L¥'GG2'8l [688LL°C |25 9€S'GL 0SL-9v1L G8'2G¥'8 [€6'8G¢°'L [L6°€6L°L 0.-99
1€2v9°LL (69229 [821L0°SL 14 M54" €8°0¥8°L [82/91°)L [#0'€299 G9-19
0£'820°LL [€1°9€5C [LL26¥'VL ovL-9€L 8/°/22'. |[8¥°9.0°L [0€1S1°9 09-96
82°9L¥'9lL [86'v¥¥'C [0€L16°EL Gel-LElL v, ¥719'9 [11°G86 16°629'S GG-1G
92 ¥08'GlL [€8'€5€C [ev'0S¥'EL 0€1L-921 9/.'¥00'9 [€€¥68 €V 0LL'S 06-9%
22’1616l [¢6292'c [02'826CL scl-ici 2.16€'G  [20'€08 0.°88S'Y Sh-Ly
1188yl [¢z'12L'c [96°90%'C) 0CL-9L1 §9 /..y [/S°1L2 60°990'% 0y-9¢
G1'996'€l [20°080°C [60°988°L1 SLi-LLL €969y [L¥029 2T'S¥S'e GE-1¢€
GlL'6se'€l [20686°L [6099€°L1 0LL-901 19°€GS'e  |9¢°62S G20 0€-9¢
LL'grvl'cl 19272681 |SE V80l G0L-10L 1S°0v6'C  [96'2E¥ 192052 GgZ-l¢
106212l [9¥'908°L [19'¢zE0L 001-96 05'92€'C  [059vE 00°086°} 02-91
20'9lS°LL [SL'SLLL  |/8°008'6 G6-16 8¥'vlLL'L [5€'65¢ €1°651') SL-LL
862060l [58'€29'L [€1'6.26 06-98 9¥'20L‘L  [0Z'+9L 92'8€6 0L-9
861620l [58'2€S'L [€1'66.°8 G8-18 L1681 68°CL ¢S 9ly S-l
SSONO 13N SSOYO 13N
01/6002 1VA 0L/6002 spueg 01/6002 1VA 01/6002 spueg
NOILO3T10D 3ASN43d TVIOUINWINOD NOILD3TT0D ISN43Y TVIOHIININOD

13

0102 S3OYVHI STIJIAUTS TVNOILVHEIdO

16



Page 103

‘AjBuiploooe sjuswainseaw

ulg paj@aym Jo Junod peoj jsnipe o} Jybu
8y} SoAJasal [IoUN0) 8y} sysem Bunoedwod
aJe sasiwald aiaym S8OUBISWNID U|

"8JON
Jajsuel] 8)se)\ B SE pasn Ose S| Juawealby
8yl ‘eseqejep [e)usd 8y} uo jday uojewoul
8y} UO peseq eeig 8SUB|A WO} J08.Ip

JUSS aJe SjusWwaaIby 8sNeY [BI0IaWW0)

0102/20/€0 L1°0L AYVININNS ISNAFY TVIOEIWNOD SIXTYNIL LL-0102 sebleyD pue ssad - yeiq - SO

ﬁ,
<
/U v %E L vl 00'8EL L [6V'691L 15'896 11 082}
%E L 19'99 00826  |99'Gvl vE'ZE8 11 00L)
%V L 1E0V 00°/85 cv'/8 1566V 11 099
%E L €602 0090€  |/S'S¥ c'092 1] 0vE
%E L Lyl 00912 |/LzE £8'€8l 1 0v2/0vL
}oam e 9ouo paylidn Xe) |Ipue| pue uofoaj|02 10} 8b1eyd uig a1}l 0¥Z 8y} 0} JusjeAinby (oam Jad Jjijdn | Uo paseq)
% (3) SSOYO 13N
*(ss049) 00°9123 - 1 1/010Z 104 86184 WnwiuIN asealou| | asealou] | LL/0LOZ 1VA 11/01L02
suig pejeaym
%E"L vS'1zy'L J00°106°02 [16ZLLE  [60°88.1) 091-951 %E L 60°90/ 00¥8€0L |GS'9vGL [S¥/€88 08-9.
%E"L 65 //E1 |00¥v2'0Z [90°GLOE  |v6'822L) GS1-1S1L %EL €1°299 00/2.6 |0.8v¥L  |0£'8/28 Sl-1L
%E"L 65CSE€’L  |00°88G'6L |9 /162 |#9°0/99) 0S1-9v1 %E L GL'/L9 00°0/06 |S8°0SEL |SL6LLL 0/-99
%E L £9'/82°) |00°0€6'8L |9£6L82 [¥9°0LL9) Svl-LylL %E "L 11T.S 00°€L¥'8 |00°€SZL  |00°091Z G9-19
%E"L 0Lzve’L 007128l |Lz'lelz  |61°6¥SS) orL-9cl %EL 22125 00°65/°. |00°GSLL  |00°0099 09-9S
%E L z2'86L°L 0061972l [16€292 |6V L66YL sel-lel %E L 9z€sy  |00'860°2 |SL'2S0L  [S8°0%09 651§
%E L v/'€51°L  |00°856°9L |99'G2SZ  |vEZEYPL 0€L-9Z1 %E L ¥Z8Sy  |00'EY¥'9  |09'656 0¥’ €8¥S 05-9%
%E"L 8/°80L°L |00°00€9L |99°'/2¥Z |v€Z/8EL GzZ1-1zl %E L 9Z'€6€ 00'68/'G 09198 0¥’ €26V Sh-Ly
%E"L £8'€90') |00Zv9'GL |99'62EC |vEZLEEL 0zL-9L1 %E L GE'8vE 009ZL'G |SP'E9L GS29EY 0¥-9¢
%E"L G8'6L0°L |00°986'7L |96'L€22  |vOVS.LZ) SLILLL %E"L 1€ ¥0€ 00°0.F'v |v2'G99 92 ¥08E GE-LE
%E L G8'¥/6  |00°0sEVL |9z vEle  [vLG6LTL 0L1-901 %E L 6E°65¢C 00€18°c 68295 L1'6vee 0£-92
%E L 68626  |00Z/9°€L |92°9€0Z  |v2'GEILL S01-101 %E"L sryie 00'GSL'E 68697 11°6892 Gz-12Z
%E"L 6788  |007LO'CL |92°8€6L |v2'G/0LL 001-96 %E L 05691 0096¥2 |vL'L/E 9z vzlZ 0Z-91
%E L 86°0v8  |00°/G€ZL |0F0¥8L 099150} G6-16 %E L Z5°Szl 000v8') |vOvlZz  |96°G9GL Sl-Ll
%E"L 2096, |00°669°LL |O¥'ZviL  |09°9S66 06-98 %EL ¥5°08 00°€8L’L  |6L°9/1 18'9001 01-9
%E L z0'1G.  |ooev0'LL [02¥¥9L  |0£'86E6 S8-18 %E L 65'SE 00625 |6L'8L 18'9vY Gl
% 3 SSOuo 13N % @ SSOuo 13N
aseasou] | aseasou] | L1/0L0Z LVA LLI0LOZ | spueg aseasou| | aseasou] | L1/010Z LVA LL/0L0Z | spueg
NOILLO3 1709 3SN43Y TVIOUINNOD NOILO3 71109 3SN43Y TVIOHIWNOD

11/0102 STOUVHI S3AJIAYIS TVNOILVHILO

17



Page 104

0102/20/€0 SIOUVYHO ONITOADTY SIX VNI L1-010Z S8b1eyd pue seed - yeid - SO

07119 00+x000L04V| L |%Z'L 00°€ 00221 9€'9¢2 9051 00'vLL 16'GC 60871 ulq a1 099
S0UBApPE Ul 9pewW 8q 0} JuswAed 0119 00:000L0LV| L [%9'L 00'L 0059 896 2€°6S 00'v9 €56 LY'¥S ulq 8| 0vC
(28411 pue I\ ‘euo)] ‘einp ‘Ae|s| JO So|s| U0 AjUO B|ge|ieAe 82IAI9S)
(e91n19s AjybBiuliog) paxi - uonO3||0) SSE|D
07119 00«x000L04V| L %L} 00°€ 00°2Z1 9€'9¢ 79051 00'¥LL 0,22 0g'LSL MM X | Ulq 84311 0821L/00L L
07119 00«x000L04V| L %4} 00 00°ZL1L ev'Ll 1566 00'GLL cLlL 1816 AM X | uig 8431 099
01119 00x000L04V| L [%Z2'L 00°L 0069 6.8 1208 00°8S 98 9g'6¥ M X | ulg 843 09€/0EE
07119 00.x000L0LV| L [%6'L 080 0S'ey 8’9 20°Le 0L¢y 9€9 y€°9¢ AM X L/ulg 84| 0¥
ajng jo
9)s] 8 I1AB1y puejuiew uo ajqejieAe pajebaibag - uol}29||0) SSe|D
60229 00:x000L0LV| L |%lC S0°0 Sv'e 9€°0 60°C ov'e 9€'0 ¥0'C dall] @ euoj
‘lINN (Jaurejuod 114Z/0g 12d) uonoajjo) 110 Bujood
11229 00:x000L02V| L [%¥'L [0)40] 00°0€ yAA4 €6°6C 09'6¢ (3744 61'SC ddoueApe
ul apew aq }snw JuswAed pJed Jad adld - pJed yound jo aseyaind
sapi1oe BuipoAaay/Ajlusawy 21A19 03 Jybnolag ajsepp alqedhoay
11229 00xx000L04V| L (%00 000 00’} Sl°0 G680 00} SL0 S8°0 oes
‘paje|dwod 8 jshw wio4 ale) jo Ainqg paje|dwod y ‘uooun ‘@snoH UOHIN
wioJ} siawojsno [emo) "Aesayloy ea.4s ybiH pue umoyaqdwe) ‘Buipjing youing ul
S901JJ0 SOOIAISS |euonesadQ wouy (soueApe ul JuswAed) paseyoind ag ued syoes
(saun)n4 auk4 Aq paoinias [EMOD JO seale pue ajng (UagJe] oul) ‘aihjury| Ul a|qe|ieAe 89iAIaS)
9)SeM\ 9|qe[9A29Yy 10} S)oeg [elosawwo)
09119 00+x000L04V| L |%V'L 00t 0062 6Ly 12062 00°062 6lLey 18°9¥C uig oot |
09119 00+x000L04V| L |%Z'L 00°€ 00221 9€'9¢2 79051 00'vLL 16'GC 60871 uig 11099
09119 00+x000L04V| L %L} 00'}L 0026 0L€l 0€'82 00°L6 SGel SvLL uig 1ioye
09119 00«x000L02V| L %9} 00’} 00'59 89'6 Al 00'v9 €56 LY'¥S (lersewwo)) sulg Hovz
(90130 B8IE [ED0] UM O8O ‘SEBIE |[B Ul S|CE|IEAE JOU 8DIAIDS)
(eb1eYyd UO0N9||09 Jo Jed se [Ipuno) Aq papiroid uig)
Z x ajel Apybiupoy je ABuipioooe pabieyo aq [|eys saoinIas Ao
(AnyBiupioy) uonoajjon pieoqpie) pue saded
09119 00.x000L0LV| L [%0C 00C 00701 617Gl 1688 0020k 6L°GlL 18'98 M x | /beg abie
junowy
Jaded 99130
1aded - apo9 JuN02dy/a13ud) 3s0)| 8D % (3 SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N
LvA | aseasou) | aseasour | 100z | 1va | 1uowoz | oweooz | 1va | owsooz SIOUVHI ONIMOAIIY

(ss019) 00'G93 SI BuloAoal sselb pue pieoqpued Joy abieyd wnwiulp - L 1-010Z

(s01n48s JO Weys 0} Joud panss| 8oueping) “Juswalinbai [eBa| S,J10UNOY By} PUB “J1BY) }98W 0} 06 | 10V UON08)0.d [BJUSLIUOIIAUT 8y} Jopun ajeayia) ale) Jo AinQg e yim papiaoid 8q pinoys Says Jno Jo siasn

200z Adeniga4 wouy asn ojul Jybnoiq wayshs psed yound pied-aid e usaq sey aiay) j0adsal sy} uj “xe} |ypue| Buipnjoxa abieyo

|lesods|p 8y} 0} JusjeAinba ‘ajel ajeldoldde ayy Jo JuswAed ayj Joj uinjal ul pamojje ag AJUO p|NoYs (SUOIIPUOD BSUBDI| BY} 8} AQ papiwlad Ji) 10}08s [elolawwod sy} Aq asn ‘sajg Buljphoay/Aluswy J1A1D pue sa)ig |esodsiq aise M IV

-abieyo ay} 0} paidde Buleq JuswAed xe) |[IJpuE| OU JO U] By} YIIM INg ‘|esodsip JO UONO8||00 8SNJaJ [BUWLIOU SE SISE] SWES U} UO J0}08S [BI0I8WWOD 8y} U0 PaIAs] 8q [eJauab ul pjnoys juswiesal) Jo suooa|jod Bulohosl Joy sebieyn

S3AOUVHI ONITOADTY
11/0102 S3OYVHI S3DIAYIS TVNOILYHEIdO

18



Page 105

0102/20/€0 134 sIXTYNI L1-0102 sebieyD pue sea - Jeig - SO

"Juswaalby Juswabeuely a1seAM ddd @Y1 Bunosjjal ‘1ounod ayy Aq Ajpoadip pabieyo ale suiq 734 ma) e AluQ
SJBWO]SND [BUIB)XS JO [BUIBIUI IO} %7 + }SOO Je pabieyo-al ag 0} |9A9] SIY} 9A0ge syueys Ag abieyo Auy

19

%E"L 0026 002GEL  SE€9/L 96890k 007092k  GEPIL 96°890°L Ayeam ao1m) payiidn/eane 21qng Jed
%E"L 00'8. 00GYLL  SE6VL G9'G66 00°290°L  ZL'6EL €8'/26 Ajaem so1m) paulidn / pJeA 21gno Jad
|erysnpuj/jerdiawwo?)
% (3 SSO¥9 13N SSO¥O 13N
aseasou| | eseasou| | LL/0LOZ 1VA LL/oLoZ | 01/6002 1VA 01/6002 SNIg ¥3avO1 aN3 LNOdH




Page 106

0L0Z/20/€0 SdIMS SIXT¥NIL L 1-0102 sebiey) pue sea - yeid - SO

‘paaibe awi [eulbuo ay) uey) aiow 4oy painbas
s1 diys JI JuswAed Jayuny ayew pue noA Ayjou o} wayy
)SE pue sjuswalinbal 8say} JO JSWOISND Y} WIOU|

‘panowal aq pjnoys dpjs ay} Aep

1500 e pabieyoal aq ||Im a1y diys yim panjoul sableyd sy Auy

‘auuo} Jad 00’683 Ajjuaun) ‘sabieyo ayy jo abed |esodsiq a)sep) a3 uo saoud ay) Jad se pabieyd aq pjnoys juswsale abieyd

Buiddi] ayy ebpuqybiom e aney says |upue (JIn) wiobuajs pue (Aejs|) doaiques sy -|Iny pue Aejs| - sabieys Buiddi)

(JyBram abelaAR) SBUUO} /7 UO paseq dadl] - sabiey) Buiddi]

8} 9JEJS PINOYS Panss| UoNONASUI BYL "PaAISdaI(%] g 002 00'96 oevlL 018 00'v6 00V 00'08 (dixys 1ad ab1eyo [euonippe) sajsem ysid
st juawAed siy} [pun ays uo nd aq jou pinoys diis 8YL|%8'L 00¢ 00°GLL cL'LL /816 00°€Ll €891 1196 Mmo|aq ajou 9ag - AjuQ aau1L(aAnoeU|) X [|pueT Buipnjoul ‘8d1A1eg Jad abieyD Buiddi
"afeuuo) pue seoIAISS JO JaqUINU PJeWIISS dU} PUe(%G el 0092 0081 a2 LD 00261 09'82 0’9l mojaq ajou a3g - AjuQ dau1L (aA1dY) Xe | [IypueT Buipnjoul eoines Jad ebieyd buiddi|
paily aq ||im dis 8y} sAep Jo Jaquinu au} JO JaWOISND( %1 g 002 00'66 vLyL  |92'¥8 0026 Sy'vL G5'Z8 juiod [esodsip wol) Aem suo ‘[oAel) S9|IWIOZ JOAQ - dIS JO ddIAI8S
oy} Aq ejewse ue uo paseq si jusAed siy] [%EL 00'L 00’62 LUV [€TL9 00'82 29°LL 8€'99 juiod |esodsip woyy Aem suo ‘[9Ae} SBIIWQZ 0} N - dINS JO OIS
@oueApe ul pajsanbal aq pjnoys juswAed ‘siahed peq(y,9 | 00'L 0029 cZ'6 11°2S 00°19 606 16°1S juiod |esodsip wouy Aem auo ‘[aAed} sajiwQ | 0} dn - diYS Jo d2IAI8S
umouy| aJe J0 ‘eale 8y} SpISINo woly swly Aq padiy |erosawwo)
10 ‘SUOISEDD0 JJO BUO, 10} BlE SaUIY dI¥S BIBYM|%L T 0L'0 08’y 120 |60Y 0Ly 0,0 00'% sinoy ¢ 4o} sdiiS Jo aiH
$Y.L30 INJWAYd SYNVHS OL G3103¥1a 38 OL SVINV ¥3HLO
SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N TV NI SY3IINOLSND "F3YIL ANV TININ ‘AVISI NO 378V 1IVAY ATNO 3DIAY3S SIHL

% oseasou| | (3) aseasoul | 1LL/0L0Z | LVA | LL/0LOZ 01/6002 LVA 01/6002 SdIMS

L1/0L0Z STDUVHI SADIAYIAS TVNOILYYILO

20



Page 107

0102/20/€0 SHYO dVHOS SIXT¥NId L1-0L0Z sebieyd pue sead - Jeid - SO

UOI}IPUOD O UONEDO| S} 0}

anp (s)ajo1yaA jewou Aq papiidn Jo passadoe aq Jouued Jed alaym sjuawabuelle o1j10ads Jo PasIApe 8q 0} dABY ABW SIBWO0ISNYD "SSSII. JNJIIP UYHIM SPUB|SI SWOS Joj }s00 je aiay Ajdde o} sale) Alia4

‘lesodsip| %S| 00'C 00°2€L or'0c  [09'9L1 00°GEL Loz |68 vLL 'G00Z/1/.T $0 98RIWWO) Ad1j0d d16ejens

pue |[earowas 0} Jod paAIas 84 }snw Jed 8y} Uo 891j0u Jnoy g v 0} $921M8S |euofjeladQ ul sabieyd uo podal jo () 2 'v'¢

0} J9§a1) 9|2IYdA pauopuege Yons Jo [erowal ay} Buionusul

0} Joud Jaumopue| 8y} wolj soueApe uj JuaswAed e asinbal

0} UOI}210SIp By} 9ARY ||eys J0j0allq 82IAI8S 8y padel}

aq jouued Jadasy paltssiBai ise| sy} aloym‘punoib 10j0as

o1jgnd Jayjo Jo ‘ajeAud uo juswabuelie AQ Jed Jo [eAOWwaY

‘PepPpPE|%0°0 000 00°00€ 000 00°00€ 00°00€ 000 00°00€ padel} 8q UBD JSUMO dJdyMm Jed pauopueqe JO [eAOWdY
aq pjnoys Aep Jad abieyo abelols Jad 0z3 |euonippe ue jodaQq
j1oUNoY Ul (paxe} ||i3s “6°8) uolIPUOD S} O} BNP PaIo]s aq 0} Sey Jeo |

‘JuswAed pue(%g'| 0o'¢c 00°L€L ovr'0c  [09'9LL 00°GEL Loz |68vLL SJap|oyasnoy WoJ} [esodsIp PUe [EAODY
sanbai [erowal yym Buipeaocoud aiojeq ‘usalboiny pue yoeqgayeue)
9’| SOWBYDS }OBgSYE) [BUOIJEU JO PASIAPE 8¢ P|NOYS SI19p|oyasnoH
‘lesodsip uo UaAIb 8q ued adIApE aJaym
puowoT] pue ybingsus|sH Ul S|ge|IBA. JOU S| SBDIAISS JOYINOA 8y

"1opjoyasnoH Aq sy [esodsip syueys Jo [1ounog sjendoidde| %z L 00'L 00°€8 9€eclL  [¥9'0L 00°C8 lgel 16469 Jed Jad - JayonoA ysodaq Jed delog
0} Uaye) 84 JSnw JeD "panss| 8g UeDd JaydNoA 81048 dIYsIaumo Jo
jooud se jJuswnoop uones)siBas moys pue 89} Aed ysnw JapjoyasnoH

% 3 SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N
9sealou| | asealou] | L1/0L0C 1VA L1/0L0C | 01/6002 1VA [0L/6002 SHVO dVids

SJoJUBLWISIP 8[2IYdA

ajeudoidde yym spuswebuelie umo Jiay) axew pjnoys pue
80IMBS SIUY} Ul papn[oul JoU aie SasiWald [e1osuWwo)
Kjuo spjoyasnoy wouy |esodsiq pue jeaowdy Je) deiog

L1/0102 STOUVHOI SIAJIAYIS TVNOILVYILO

21



Page 108

0102/20/€0 T¥SOdSIA ILSYM SIXT¥NI4 |1-0L0Z sebieyD pue see - yeid - SO

%E €L 00°0€ 00652 86, |C0°LlT 00°G22 1G'€€ 67161 sauuo} g (sauuoy G*/ Uey) Ssa pue sauuo}

%E €L 00°C)L 00201 6LGl |1898 0006 or'El 0992 Sduu0} 7'}

%E €L 00°8 0089 €10l |8/ 0009 68 90°LS $8uUU0} 8°0
%E €L 00y 00 V€ [90°S 682 00°0€ vy €39°6C $8uu0} ¥°0 (9215 p0os3) dn yoid/ueA lews
“Kjuo says @au1] ‘Aeg 1309 pue ybingsusjeH | poelg] adAj a]91yaA 1ad speo| pawnssy!

*sawnjoA onseld ab.e| ‘6°3 ||ypue| 1oy a|qeynsun
a)sem JINduYIp asnyal 0} Jybu ay) sey pue a)sep snopaezeH|%6 | 00°C 00801 |60°9L 1616 00901 6L°G1 1206 %E €L 000G 00'G/2'L |68'68L [LL'G80°L |oO'SZL'L GG /91 G¥'LG6 $8UU0} G| $8UU0} 92 J1BAO
lenisnpuy/eiosswwo) 3dadde o} Jou Jybu ayy sey |19unod[%9°| 0v') 0798 18721 |€5€L 00°58 99°CL ve'TL %E €L 00°021 00°020°L [L6'LGL |60'898  [00°006 0 vEL 96'G9L S8uu0} Z| $8UU0} 92 - S8UUO} /|
92130 a1y ay3 je pred aud aue siaydnoA Buiddy 11v|% 1L L 09°0 09°LS 858 20’6y 00°2S 678 1687 %E €} 0008 00089 8210} (22’85  |00°009 9€'68 901G seuuo} g S8UUO} /| - S8UU0} G°/
so)is ||e Je (e|qedidde aiaym) selidde o)l a)Sem aAldeU] ISR ERIEN
(Ajuo|
9a11]) s19yosnop Buiddi] pied aid
%02 500 55T 8€°0 112 052 €0 el'e %002 0v'6 079G or'8  [00°8Y 00°Ly 00 00°0% (auuo} sad) sabieyd
9AOQE JO JUSWIIT XEelL |Iypue]
syueys Aq abieys
-a1 e sjos|yal sy} i djes Jaybiy
e je Jo (pasn abpuqyblom a1aypp)
“siasn abpLquBlem|o%t L 0L°0 02 L L0°} €19 (A 90'} ¥0'9 %E €L 000} 00°58 99'ZL  [veTL 00°GL LIV €8'€9 suuoj sad 3509 |esodsiq a)sem
Aejs| pue [N Joj dn Jos 8q ues wa)sAs Junoooe JuswiAedald;
siiejaq juswiked % @) SSO¥9 | LVA 13N SSO¥9 1VA 13N 01/6002 % 3) SSO¥9 1VA 13N SSOY9 1VA 13N 01/6002 | peOT] pawnssy lesodsiq @)sem
asealdu] | aseasdu] | LL/0LOT Lioroz 01/6002 Xe| ||ypueT | aseasdu| | asealdu| | L1/0L0OZ Loroz 01/6002 Xel ||ypueT pul
19Ul a)sepm xe] ||ypue ajsep Aeuipio
|oul a)sepm aApoeu| |oul aysepm
aAnoeu|

11/010Z STOUVHOI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHIJO

22



Page 109

0102/20/€0 O3 HOOALNO SIXTYNIS L1-0L0Z sebieyd pue sea - yeid - SO

- - %G} GE0 G8'€C GS€ 0€°0Z 05°€2 05°€ 0002 I1e3s Jad-AiLeyd pauelsibay Aq (Ie1s Jo Juay
%0°} 05°0 00'2S 000 05'1S 05°15 000 05°15 218\ feaul Jod - [[EIS JO [ejuay
- - %1'T 00001 000087 [68¥LZ [L1'G80F [00°00L% [00°00Z [00°0007% saweo [emo)
- - AN (93 00052 €ZL€ 11212 00°€2C 1zee 61681 (sBuippam) 1emo sBIEQI JO 8IIH
‘pasn s} 8y} o} ally 8y} " 3
se ||om se s)s09 dn Bules|d ‘aw yeys [oul s)sod uoljesedaid
Ie SI9A00 YoIym junowre ue pabieyo aq pinoys Asyy, - - %E'S 00'0€ 00°009 9€'68 ¥9°0LS 00'04S 68'%8 11'68Y juaA3 Jofe e Joj (Aesayjoy
juane Jofew e Joj pally 8g O} S4e SWNIPe}S du} JO AU UBYAA! pue uoounq ‘p|AYSSO) WNIPeIS Jo alH
%00 000 ED 910 680 EP 91’0 [680 %¥'T S0°0 ST 2€0 €8'} 0Le 10 6.1 Buimog
%9'G o€’} oSy [9°€ G8'0C 0Z'€C or'e [vL6L %1'T 00'} 00'6% 0€L 0Ly 00°8% SLL 98°0v (3des-judy uosesg) jexlL uosess Buimog
- - - - %bT 00'L 00'6% 0€'L 0L'1¥ 00°8% SL'L G8°0% (paiedaid) jo301M 185010
- - - - %S} 0v'0 0022 07 862C 09'92 96°€ ¥92C (pasedaidun) 1ax01M 193010
%0°G 500 S0'L 910 680 00} S0 [98°0 %¥'T S0°0 SLT z€0 €8’} 0Lz €0 6.1 s|leq pue jenboey o a1y
%E'S 00} 000z [86C 201 0061 €8C [LLol %G} 090 00°0% 96'G Y0vE 07'6€ 18°G €G°€€ 19311 Uosess
%0°'G S0°0 S0'L 910 680 00} G0 [58°0 %¥'T S0°0 ST z€0 €8’} 0Lz €0 6.1 UoIssas Jad
sluua)
%0°G 500 S0'L 910 680 00} G0 [58°0 %¥'T S0'0 53 z€0 €8'L 0Lz 1€°0 6L) aufjodwies 1 y09 Azeid\bumnd
Juoy auoy suoy auo9 )npy 3npy )npy unpy
% @) [ssoun 1aN | ssouo 13N % [€) SSOD 13N SSO¥D 13N
asealou||asealoul| 11jgL0z | LVA LL/0L0Z | 01/600Z | LWA | 01/600Z | 3SeaJoul| aseaidul | /0102 L1VA LL/0L0Z | 01/6002 LVA 01/6002 NOILYI¥O3Y ¥00d.LNO

11/0102 SDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHIHO

23



Page 110

0102/20/€0 SANNOYO ANY SA13I4 ONIAV T SIX VNI L1040 sebieyd pue see4 - yeiq - SO

%S'L 00'¢C 00'GEL LL'0¢ |68 FLL 00°€El 1861 61°€LL (Bunuiew yym) yoeu] buiuuny jo aulH
%E'S 0S'0 000} 6L '8 05'6 Lyl 60'8 (Bunpiew Jnoypm) ¥oeuL Buluuny Jo aliH
-:S)oel] sseln
%€'C 00'L 00°Sy 049 0€'8€ 00'v¥ Gs'9 Sy’ LE Buiyiew yum-xoe. | buluuny Jo aliH
%€E€'S 050 000} 6L 168 05’6 (A% 608 Bupiiew inoypm-yoel] buiuuni Jo auiH
INNIAVLS NOONNA
N3AIO 39 ATNOHS SANN43Y ON "3iep d|qe|leAe }xau sy}
0} paLled aq ued juswAed siy) pa|jeoued aie saweb j|
¢ s1 uondo siyj 1o}y L1oBajed | YA aylL
‘lewdou ueyy Apuatayip ybnoyy ob }snw yaiym
juawAed siy} 4o} 9210yd e sapnjoul wasAs Bundiaoey
yseD aoueuld ay] "1 vA Buiked wouy jdwaxs aie
Koy} se Aauow anes |Im Aay] "eoueape ul saweb
01 Jo} Aed pue yo0q 0} pabeinoous aq pjnoys sqniy |- - - - - - - - uoIssaduo)d
adueApy ul saweg () JuswAhed/buijoog [%9'L 00'€ 00061 0€'8¢ [02°191 00°/81 G8'/¢c G165l InpY (pajoL)say dlilgnd) puejspuels
%l SL0 00'6 el 99/ G8'8 ce’l €51 uoissaouo)
aoueApe ul pied aq Jsnw sany IV [% /| 0€0 00'8L 89'¢C 45313 0,11 ¥9'C 90°GlL unpy| (uoisses/eweb Jad) abiey) uonepowwoddy
oeIg BSUB| ‘S0IAISS AJlUBLLY PUE SPEOY WOY Bjqeliene aie swiod [9,/°08  [02°9 00'SL ggz LTl 0e'8 Vel 90/ INpy (uoissag Jad) Bujuies 1o} yolid JO 8iIH
panssi 8q pjnoys sajep Buiwiiuoo Jayi9| e pue spialy %G°06 GZvl 00°0€ vy €662 G/'GL Ge'Z ov'El UoISS82U0)
Buieid Jo a4y oy} Joj apew aq pinoys suoneayddy | [046°06  |0G'8Z 0009 ¥6'8 _ [90'1G 0S'I€ 697 18'92 Inpy (sweb Jsad) yoyd Jo ailH
$7Iv13d LNIWAVd % (3) SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N
9sealou]| aseatdu] L1002 1VA L1/0L02 01/6002 1VA 01/6002 SA7131d ONIAVd

L1/01L0Z2 S3OUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHEIJO

24



Page 111

0102/20/€0 SHIV4 SX VNI L 1-01L0Z sebieyd pue sea4 - yeid - SO

paau paynuap Aq paje[najed
8q 0} aJinbai [|Im S1Y) UOIIIB]|0D BSNBY [eldJWIWO) 10 9B1eyd Aue apnjoul jou op sobieyn asay|

25

%51 00 S9°¢ 000 g9'¢C 19¢ 000 19¢C aljow Jeaul| Jad - sAkep 2 0} dn
punolo jo aliy - suoljesiueblQ ajgeiieyn
suoponyisul 8y} se |jam se peayd|ibyoo| [%E L S0°0 G6'¢ 000 G6'¢ 06°¢ 000 06'¢ aJjpw Jeaul| Jad - (shepy) yoom
‘oelg asuey Je S90IAIeS AJluswy pue speoy Jad punols) Jo allH - s||elS/sue/ poo-
woly a|ge|ieAe si wuioy uoneslddy ayj Jo Adoo Jsjsew
0£°0/23 = 0£'GF X LG = S8419|\ JeaulT |G jo abejuosy apid| [%0°1 S0°0 0e's 000 0€'s sz's 000 sz's aJjow Jeaul| Jad - saljow Jeaul|
o'| allo Jesul Jad 0g g3 16 pabieyd aq pjnoys i SN 61 Jono ‘s|jels/sapll ||e jo abejuol) |e10)
Jeaul] 67 19A0 S ||B)S B J| "Sasd|\ Jeaul g1 0} dn (sAep UM “(sAep 2) yoem | oy punols) jJo aliH
1 0}dn) 0923 s! lleys/apty A1ens o ebieyg olseq ay |
"siojetadQ Jle4 8y} woj paAisdal aq jsnw uoneolidde uy| [%9°L 00t 00°09¢ 000 00°09¢ 009¢¢ |00°0 00'9¢¢ Saljsw Jesul| 6§
uey) ssa| ‘s|jels/sapi |[e jo abejuod) |e10}
UM (sAep 2) daam | 1o} punolb jo aliH
% (3) SSO¥9 1IN | SSo¥o 13N
9Sealou|| asealou| 11/0L02 1VA L1/0L02 | 01L/6002 1VA 01/6002 SHlvd

1110102 SIOUVHI SIDIAYTS TVNOILVYIHO



Page 112

0102/20/€0 D3 VYO SIXTYNIL |L-0L0Z sebiey pue sead - yeid - SO

*anjeA jJuawadejdal je Jaiiy o} pabieys aq [|Im sidulejuod o) abewep 1o ssoO

:9JO0N

aonou Joud ypm aoud 1s09 1y

ao1jou Joud yum aoud 1s09 1y

abiey) Asaalleq

“Jawiwins ayj Jnoybnoiyy %91 0S°0 06°L€ SL'Y Sl'lc or'LE 89'¥Y ¢L'9¢ (ed) Jojowelp 91 JoAo sgn
SJaMo|} 8y} ulejulew o) pajsanbai usaq

sey juswpedsp sy) s1eym qof 1obbiq e jo %t L 0€'0 06'Lc 9C'¢ 79'8l 09'le [44> 8€'8L (e9) Jojowelp 9| 0} sqnL
yed aq Aew suoielo0oap [eJojy jo Alddns ay |

%9'L 0€'0 09'8l 112 £€8'Gl 0e'8l [ 4 1G°SL (e9) BuoT 8.8\ | sybnoa L

%€ L 0c'0 0e'§l 8¢'¢ coel 0l'Sl T4 98¢l (e9) sjedseq yleH Jo punoy 4o alH

% (3 SSOYO 13N SSOYO 13N
9sealou| | asealou| 1110102 1VA L1/0L02 | 01/6002 1VA 01/6002 | Aep Jad aie sebieyds ‘NOILYHO0D3A TVIOTS

26

L1/0L02 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYHEIdO



Page 113

0102/20/€0 STOYVHD TVI¥NE SIXTVYNIH L 1-01.0Z sebieyd pue saad - Yeid - SO

‘RepljoH 21gnd e Jo Aepung ‘Aepinjeg uo 1no paLIed sjuswlsiul 10} sebleyd 8A0qe 0} pappe a4 [|IM 091 3,
AJ3UNOD J1dY} JO 80IAISS BY} Ul paIp sey oym aing g ||ABIy JO Juapisal Jawlioy Jo Juspisal Auy - :g

‘Aioyiny [0 snoiae.d e 1o ‘siy}

10 1s8yaq 9y} Je aJed [e)uapisal Yyons 0} paAowl Sem pue aing B [JABJy jo Juspisal e Ajsnoiaald sem Ing ‘[1ouno) ang % [|ABIy JO Selepunod ay) YIMINo aJed [eluapisal Wwis) Buol ul usag sey uosiad pasesossp ay} §| - i

‘ypeap 40 sieak Q| ulyum sing g ||ABIy ul Ajusuewiad paal pasesdsp jeyy jooud Jes|) - ;|
:suondwaxa Buimo||o} 8y} ypm ang % ||ABIy Jo sjuapisal uou Joy (paap oy} JO Jajsuel) ayy Joj }deoxa) sabieyd Jie|juawiajul 0} pappe aq 0} %00}

:S9JON
%81 1671 00801 000 00801 60901 000 60901 (ATINO @3111) Buo}spesH Jo uopdai]
“uopje.osIp s,1ounoY Je uomisod e ul peoeid oq M| (%67 192 00°0¥%L 000 00°0¥%1 B6E/€1 000 6E°/E1 (saneib paysewun Ajsnoinaid
J0}) anbe|d |eowaw paquosul Jo uonoalg
Kisppwad| [9%G"| 090 0’y 000 0c’Ly 0L 0v 000 0,0 (pajuelb Jussuoo
aing YyuoN be ‘psjuelb jussuoo sseym senbeyd jo uonosie mojje o1 aloym) ssusjewad e senbeid Jo uonoaig
‘unog ayy Aq peyeysul| (%S b 090 0’y 000 0’y 0,0 000 0,0 [eLowsw adA}
ale suojlepunoy auojspeaH (aeig asuel 1e sadIAIag Ajuswy pue )00(Q jJuequndal WS JodJ48 0] uoissiwiad
Speoy WoJj d|qe|ieAe sa1dod Ja)Sey) ‘90O Baly dy} WOl panssi aq
usy) [Im JuswiaalBy Jo JepaT snid 1dieal v pajdale aq ues sucyspeay| |%S L 9C’l 00°€8 000 00°€8 7,18 000 7,18 ubisep Yo suo
e a10jaq uswAed Buisojpus ‘Bunum ul apew aie suonesldde - e 10 |eliows|A piepuels joal8 0} uoissiwiad
J0 aseyaind ayj se awi) swes ay} je siyj Joy apew 3 j}snw juswhed
abieyd uonesisiuiwpe 90| ssa| paseyodind 201d 000 soud soud 000 soud JIeT JO UIN}ay 104 934 uoleljsiuiupy
usym Jie| Jo 8oLid S| papunjal JUNOWY “pasp 8|} oseyoind oseyoind [eseyoind aseyound
Buisojoua 821140 ealy 0} Builum Ul spew aq }snw }sanbay 10 %01 10 %01 10 %01 10 %01
"seig asuel 1e seoinieg Aluswy| (%€ 020 ov'sL 000 (0) 1% 0c'st 000 0c'st Jaysibay yoleag/oelx
pue speoy woJj ajge|ieAe si Adoo Jejsew \y "yoeas ay}
Bunsanbai uosiad Aq paje|dwoo aq 0} wuoy uoneosidde uy
e Jo eseyaind| (%S (0140 00°'2L¢ 000 00°L¢ 09'9¢ 000 09°9¢ speaQ 811 Jo Jajsuel |
10} pablieyo aq pjnoys Asy} uay) (Mojaq suoiIpuoo
Jad se) ayng pue ||AB1y JO JUSpPISaI UOU B 0} paliajsuel)
Buleq si Jie pasnun ue J| ‘aoueApe ul pied aq pjnoys
%0°¢C 00'¢c 00'¥0L 000 00'¥0L 00°¢oL 000 00°col Auo Joxseq Joy Jie,
sjuswBiu| 6| (%P1 00'Le 00°G1SL 000 00'sLslL 00'¥6¥L 000 00'¥6¥L ddueUSJUIEW [DUl “JIET B]q8i] JO 8SBYdINd,
sjuswBiul 9| (%L 00'¥L 00°0l0L 000 oooLol 00966 000 00966 ddueUS)UIBW [dUl JIEBT B|qNO( JO 8Seydind,
Jie| sad sjuswusiul gf (%L 00°L 00°509 000 00°509 00°86¥ 000 00°86¥% @oueusjulew [oul e 9|buls Jo 8seyaind,
JoINodXd| %L 00'L 00'¥L 000 00'¥L 00°¢L 000 00°¢L saysy jo bupispeos,
JO BWeN 0/0 ‘,  9}eT 8y} Jo J0ndex3, 0} passalppe| [%)'Z 00¢c 00°.6 000 00°.6 00°S6 000 00°56 sulewsy psajewsal) jo jeling,
9( p|nNoys s! Jojndsxas Ue 0} panss| s| 80I0AUI Ue J|| (%] (0140 00°0¢ 000 00°0¢ 09'6¢ 000 09'6¢ (e384 AUNOY) S1EYSED JO SuoKEWNYXT
‘pled si Jtej| [%9°L 002 00°8SY 000 00°8SY 00'LGY 000 00'LGY (Juswuayul &1 Bupn|oul Jou) suohewnyx3
10 aseyaind 8y} Jo} a210AUI BY} [RUN JNO UBAIG Jou ale
spaaq 9}l 8yl "uole[dJ B JO J0JNDSaX3 Ue ‘Jayeuapun 000 abieyDd oN (000 abiey) oN [abseyd oN (000 abiey) oN (91 48pun plIyD) Juswiau|
8y} 0} Jay)e panss| Ajjensn aie sedloAu| [ [%t' L 009 00'8¢Yy 000 00'cey 00'cey 000 00'cey JleT buluado ayauswIB)u|,
% (3 SSOYO 13N SSOYO 13N
9sealou| [ aseasou| [ LL/0L0OC 1VA LL/0LOZ | 01/6002 1VA 01/600C SANNOYD TVIRING

L1/0102 STOUVHI STDIAYTS TVNOILVHIdO

27



Page 114

0102/20/€0 WNIYOLYINTHO SIX VNI L1-010Z sebieyd pue sea4 - yeid - SO

%81 0L'0 08'S 980 ¥6'v 0L'S S8°0 S8y auojsqlay Joy uonduosu
%E"L 00'C oo'loL  [8eec  [cozel  ooeSL  [89€e zesel (s1eak 0}) - suOISqISY [ELIOWSIN
%C'L 00'C 0029} 000 00'991 00'991 000 00'991 90I1AI9S [eling € Joj [adeyd wnLokewal) Jo asn
%¥'L 00'} 0002 €vol 196G 0069 820l 21’88 uonduosul [euolippy
%L’} 00'v 00'6€C 09's€ 0t'€0C 00°'5€C 00°5€ 00°00C suonduosul om} Yiim sjgnoq - anbejd
%9°L 00'¢ 0088} 00'8¢ 00°091 0098} §g'/¢ Sv'/S1L suonduosul 8jbuls yjim ajgnoq - enbeid
%9°L 00'C 00'6C} 12’6l 6,601 0022} 1681 60'80} uonduosul yim 8|buls - enbejd
%¥'L 0t'0 09°'8¢ 000 02'8¢ 0C'8¢ 000 02'8¢ 158y Jo |adeyd
%L1 0L'0 08'8 000 0.8 0.8 000 0.'8 Ujuouw Jad - saysy Jo uojualey
%6°L 00'L 00°€S 68 LSy 00CS Y.L 9Cvy 1O\ [eloj4 puE SullY JO Je0)
‘|EUINO BWODU| U UO papIodal st pue %t 050 05°.€ 69 16°1LE 00°.€ 1S5S 67'LE sebpegq
%0°C 00'} 00°0S Sy’ a4 0061 0e’L 0L'Ly (1ona7 [eded/ 10N PapIID) 8oUBIqUIBLISY JO H0Og |[EWS
%S’ 00'¢ 00'¥0Z 8€°0€ c9'ell 00°L0C ¥6'6C 90°'LLL (saul7 g) @ouelIqUIBWSY JO %004 |lewS
%S’} 00'C 00'8¢} §6°0C Sv'LLL 00'9¢} 92°'0¢ 178132 (seur g) eoueiquBaWSY JO 4004 |lews
winuojewal) ay} Je usyey} si swoodul siyy jo Auolew syl (%) 00°L 00'v. 2oLl 86'29 00°¢€L 1801 €129 (seur z) eoueiquiaway Jo oog |lews
%E’L 0€'0 0c'ee Iir'e .61 06'CC Ly'e 6161 (ui| Jod) souEIqWIBWSY 4O HoOg
%81 0€'0 0c'LL 000 0c'LL 0691 000 0691 aseyoind - (Jauued snid) uin
%9°L 09°0 05°.€ 000 0S¢ 06'9€ 000 06'9¢ aseyoind - 19xse)
wnLojewal) je ajqejleAe (%8} 0€'0 0C'LL 000 0c'LL 0691 000 0691 saysy Jo |essadsig
1s1] wouy AB13)2 0} pajoallp staxemapun Ajlensn | (%61 00'L 00°'SS 000 00'9S 00'¥S 000 00'vS JET)
S99IAI3S 19410
FONEEE]
Jo sweN 0/9 ‘,” 8jeT ay} Jo Joyndaxg, 0} passalppe
90 p|NOYS S| J0JndaXa UB 0} PANSSI S| 9DI0AUI UE J|
‘uoijejal e Jo I0jndosx3 ue ‘Isyeuspun (%L 002 0026Y 000 00°'98% 00°'S8Y 000 00°'98% skepljoH d1lgnd pue Aepinjes - J1aA0 pue sieak 9| synpy
ayy 0} Jayye panssi Ajjensn aie sadI0AU| | [%9"| 002 00°'StYy 000 008y 00°'8EY 000 00°'8EYy 1an0 pue sieah 9| synpy
abiey) oN |- ob1ey) oNfebieyd oN|- abieyd oN (91 J8pun) pjyo
(3) SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N
% 8sealou]| asealou| 110102 1VA 11/0L02 | 0L/6002 1VA 01/6002 S334 NOILVINTND

L1/0102 S3OUVHI SAJIAYIS TVNOILVIIHO0

28



Page 115

0L02/20/€0 01'60 STISSIA NO SILVY HBd SIXTVNIL L1-010Z sebieyD pue ssed - yeiq - SO

*ainsea|d 1o uoljealdal Joj asn Joj pajdepe Jou paubisap Jayjlau pue sauuo} G| ueyj ssaj jou jo abeuuo} ssoib
e jo diys Aue se pauyap Ajjebaj si , diys Buihpjenb,, v ,.sdiys Buifjienb,, aie sjassan ayj asaym Aidde AINO [1IM (LVA 104) Bunjel-oi1az ‘sased anoqge ayj Jo v uj

"90IAI8S 8y} Jo uoisiaold ayy 0} Joud pied aq |leys 3s09 siyy papiroid aq |jeys }sod

\/ "80UBApDE Ul SINOY $Z 1Ses) Je S8olAleg [euoiesadQ JO J0joaliq 8y} 0} spew ad 1snw ‘€002
suone|nbay (sanljioe4 uondadsay s)sep) Mod) s|assap bBulysi4 g Buiddiys ueyois|y auy jo
swo) Ul ‘lesodsip a)sem pasijeioads Jo safjijioe) 81sem |euonippe 1o} sjuswalinbas Auy jelo
aInsig| pue [e20] Ag palinbal [aA8] 8y} 0} ‘salI|Ioe 8)SEA\ HOd 9pNn|oul Sanp pue sajel ay] ‘6

‘Aldde jou op sajel esay "uoojuod
oy} e uonesado ul ale sabieyd pasealtoul ‘sinogieH umoyaqdwe) pue Aesayioy I '8

"louno)
[N} 8Y} O} pallajal aq || 8.l Ajlep 8y} WOl JUBIBHIP JI UOISIOap Sjewiyn 8y "S80IAIeS
JeuoneladQ Jo J0joa11q Y} 0} BunLm Ul BpeWw 8q piNOYS 8sn pajiwijun Joj JuswAhed “/

's|ossaA pasaysibaiun 1oy se yjbus| Aq JuswAed wnwiuiw
0] 109[gns aq pjnom asay} ‘Buryenapun [eiolawwod ul pabebus AjpAijoe s|assan | 9

‘paijdde Buiaq sajed ||n} Ul JNSal ||IM OS Op 0} dinjie4 "JaA0d Aay)
yoiym Joj pouiad ayj Jo aoueApe Ul Joj pled g }Snw asn pajiwijun Joj s8jey UOoISSaouod ||y 'G

JoaJay) Jed Jo ‘aAIsn|oul YoJel 0} 18go}00 polad JSjuim yjuow 9
Joalay Jed Jo ‘aaisnjoul Jaquisydeg o} judy polad Jawwns yuow 9 :aJe spolad ‘p
'sAep 7| uey) aiow Joj Aep auo Aue ul sinoy

000Z PUe sinoy 0090 Usamjaq sinoy 9 Uey) SS8| Jou JO poliad SNONURUOD B J0} UoHe|jeisul
ay} sanes| ) JI Buljies Aueinbal, 8g o} pawaap aq ||IM [9ssaA Y “ Buljies Aleinbal, jou ale
INg 9sn pajwijun Jo} JuswAed epew aABY YdIym ‘S[9SSaA 10} palinbai aq [[Im sanp [euonippy
- Buljies Alenbau, sjassan 1oy Ajuo a|gejieAe a4 ||Im @SN Pajiijun o} Sa)ed UOISSaoU0)) ¢

'} 10 ¢‘g AloBaje 1oy a|qibije aie ‘AjiAioe Juens|al sy} ul
pabebua AjoAioe aie yoiym ‘asoyy AluQ "ajey disegq auj Je sanp Joj d|qel| dJe S|9SSaA |l ‘T

‘ays

LeVd ‘peayd|ibyooT ‘eeig asuely ‘|1ounod ayng pue ||ABiy ‘saoialag |euoiiesadQ jo Jojoaliq
:0} Bunum ui epew aq pjnoys sjeaddy "pajoalal

Apusnbasqns si jeadde ay) pue [eadde Buipuad juswAed sAejep Jaumo /i18)sew sy} aiaym
Buipnjour ‘anogJey ul Aep yoes Joj ajey aiseg JISIA Jad, au) Je senp Joj a|gel| JOUMo /isjsew
ay} Japual [m JuswAed yons axew o) ainjie ‘ajeldosdde se Buioioaul uo Jo Buiypag ayy
Jo aw 8y} Je pled aq }snw pabieyd ag 0} sI [9SSaA B YdoIym Japun ajes pue Aiobejes ay] |
SINIWNOD

aljow Jad g1°0F yibus| ui sasdw g JBAO
00°Z81 00281 0L'9¢ S0'S yjbus| ut wog o} dn
00°¢SL 00'¢Sl 08'Le oc'y yibus| ul wgz 0y dn
00701 oo'ecl ov'LL ov'e yibus| uj wpz 0} dn
0062 00°¢6 oL'el 0§¢ yibus| ul wgl 0y dn
0G°¢S 0029 0L'8 0L’} yibus| ur wl 0y dn
(¢ Juswwo 89g) "1Iouno) ang
11AB1y 0} sanp Buipue| ysyy ajeridosdde
BuiAed pue Buiysyy je1djawwod
ul pabebua Aenbal sjassap - ¢
5900 Jald pauuewun
(Z Juswwo) 99g) *auuoy paajsibai
0,00 ssoub 1ad 991A19s aunses|d 4o Auiay
pajnpayas e Bunesado s|assaA ||y - €
auuo) paJajsibal ssoib sad 10" L3] Ajuo Jaid yosippejysinug
anaw Jad 0803 yibus| ul sasppw g J8AQ
00959 00842 00°LLL g9'ce yibus| ul wpg 0y dn
00791 00°8¥9 00°¢€6 098l yibus| uj wgz 0y dn
00°L.L€ 00819 00'v. a8Vl yibua| ul wpz 01 dn
00'8.¢C 00'88¢ 09°'GS SLLL yibus| ur wg 03 dn
00781 00°09¢ 00°.¢ SvL yibus| u wpl 0y dn
00°€6 00'0€l Sv'8l 0L'¢ yibus) ur wg 0} dn
‘uo} passysibal
GZ0 (9 Juswiwoo 98s)
auuo) palte)sibai ssoub Jad -:paisysibal §|
(L
juswwo) 99g) ‘Bulyenapun [e1oIaWwwod
e u] pabebua AjoAjoe sjassap - g
anpw sad /113 yibua| uj sasew Q| JaAQ
00°G9¢€ 00°LLS 00°€L 09t yibus| ul sasew o 0y dn
00'6C¢ 00'6SY 00'99 SL'el yibus| ul sasew g 0} dn
00°26¢ 00°'80% 0065 09°LL yibua)| uj sesew g 0} dn
00°'GG¢C 00°.G€ 0G'LS 0c'0l yibua| ul sesew 2 oy dn
00'8lL¢C 00'90¢ 08'cy GL'8 yibus) ul sasyow g 0} dn
0028l 00°¥SC 0G°9¢ GeL yibua| ul sasew G oy dn
(8 JuBWWOD 88S) SAVINIBS
JleuoiesadQ jo 1030811Q 8y} Aq panosdde
9SIMIBY)O SSajun ajel siy} e pabieyd
97 0} S|9ssaA |IV '31VY JISvE - L
%o8M L | sinoy
 JUSWIWO)) PELETS) yzordn
J9JUIM Jawwing (¢ ® Z sjuswwo) ass) Aiobajen
€ SjusWwWo) 98S
9S() pajiwijun 10} sdjey uoIssaouo) | USIA Jad
01/600Z SanQ 1noqieHq S|9SS9A UO sajey -

29

L1/0102 STOUVHOI SIAJIAYIS TVNOILVYILO



Page 116

010Z/20/€0 L1'0L STASSIA NO SILVY HBd SIXT¥NIL L1-0102 SebieyD pue sea4 - yeia - SO

-ainsea|d Jo uojeaIdal 10} asn 1oy pajdepe Jou paubisap JaYjIdu pue Sauuo} G| uey} ssa| jou

Jo abeuuo) ssoub e jo diys Aue se pauyap Ajjeba) si . diys Buifjijenb,, v -,sdiys Buihjijenb, ate sjassan ayy asaym Ajdde AINO 1M Bujes-oiaz ‘sased anoqe ayj Jo 1V uj

801AI8S BY} Jo uoisinoid 8y} 0} Joud pred aq [jeys }S00 SIY | “8UBAPE Ul SINOY $Z

1SEd)| Je J0j0a1I] 9DIAISS BUY) 0} BPEW 8] ISNW ‘€00z suonenBay (seniioe uondsoay
B1se ) Hod) sjesse Buiysid % Buiddiys jueyolspy 8y jo swus} Ul ‘|esodsip sjsem
pasijeloads 10 sap|ioe) 8)Sem [euolippe Joj sjuswalinbal Auy )jelo 8insis| pue [eoo)
Aq paiinbai [aA8] 8} 0} Sa1}|I0BH BISE A\ MO JO) ®pNjouUl S8np pue sajel aAoge ay] G

‘sebieyd umo Jiayj 03 Joalgns aie
pue ajng pue ||AB1y Aq pabeuew jou aie uoojuod umoyaqdwe) pue Aesayioy I '

'sj@ssaA palta)siBaiun Joy se yjbus| Aq JuswAed wnwiuiw
0} J08[gns aq pjnom asay) ‘Buiyenspun [ejolawwod ul pabeBus AjoAloe s|assan |y '

‘10 'z AiobBaye) Joy 9)qibie aJe ‘AjiAnoe Jueas|al sy} ul pabebus
Aj@AIjoR 81B YoIym ‘9soy) AluQ "aley dlseq ay} Je sanp 1oy s|qel| ale S|aSsaA || '

"sjendoidde se Buidioaul uo 1o Buiyuag sy} Jo swiy
8y} je pied aq jsnw pabieyo aq 0} S| [8SS8A B UoIym Jopun ajes pue AloBsjeo ay] °|
SINIWNOD

. . N EN]
%00 000 Jad @m.ou Ybus| ur wog J8AQ
00689 %S} 0’0 0592 %0°L S0°0 oL'g yibua| ul wopg 0y dn
09V.S %L 0€0 (o] 44 %C'L 500 1A 4 yibusj ur wgz o} dn
0209V %L’} 0€'0 0LLL %S"L S0°0 Sv'e ybus| ur woz 0} dn
08'GVE |%GS'L 0zo oeel %0'C S0°0 k4 yibus| ur wg| oy dn
0L°0EC |%.L'L SL0 G8'8 %6°'C 500 SL'L ybuay ur wpl 0} dn
ebieyo ‘1ouno) ayng % ||1ABay 0} sanp
lenuuy Buipue| ysyy ajeridosdde Buihed pue Buiysy jerdsswwod ul pabebua Ajenbal sjassap - ¢
*auuo} paiaysibal
%E Y €000 0200 sso.b Jad aoiA1as ainseald 1o A1iay
pajnpayas e Bunesado s|assaA ||V - €
auuo} pata)sibai ssoub iad g0' L3 Ajuo Jaid yasippeysinig

%C b 100 aspwl
Jod 1803 yBus| Ul wQg 1A
%8’ 00¢ ooeLl %S’ G€e0 00°'ce yibus| ur wpg oy dn
%'l 00'L 00'¥6 %9'L 0€0 06'8L yibua| ul wgg 0y dn
%L 00'L 0062 %L’ sz0 (o] 1% yibus| ur wpz o3 dn
%81 00'L 0G99 %€l S0 0Ll ybua| ul wgy 0y dn
%G1 gs0 G6G'.E %E’L oL'o 66 L yibus| ur wol oy dn
%V L jerAl] 0,81 %t L S0°0 Ggl'e yibus| ur wg oy dn
uay} paJajsiBbal jou §|
%0°C S000 GS2C0 (9 Juswwod 9s)
auuoy} passysibal ssoib Jad -:palalsibal §|
‘Bupyelapun |ejosawwod e uj pabebua AjaAljoe s|assap - Z

%E’L c00 Slpw
Jod 67°13 ybus| ul senaw Q| JoAQ
%YL 00'L 00'v. %Vl 0z'0 08yl yibus| ur sasdw Q| 0} dn
%S’ L 00} 00°29 %S’ 0Z'0 seel yibus) Ul sesdw 6 0} dn
%L’V 00'L 0009 %Ll 0z'o 08'LL yjbus) ul sanpw g 0} dn
%61 00} 0S¢s %S’ S0 [e1on0] % yibus) ul senew 4 0} dn
%9’ L 040 0S¥y %L’ SL°0 06'8 yibus| ul sanew 9 0} dn
%'l 050 00°L¢€ %Vl (o] 0] Sv'L yibus) ul senpw G 0} dn
(g Juswwod
99s) JojoalIg 92IAI8S a8y} Aq panoidde
% (3) asIMIBU}0 ssajun 9kl siy) Je pabieyo
asealou| | aseasou| 9, aseasou| |(3) aseatou| 9 0} S|9SSoA |IV "ILVY JISvE - |

Apjeap sinoy
vz ordn
(Z Juswwo9 ass) Aiobajen
s pajlwijun Joj sajey uoissaduo) | usip sod

L1/010Z sang inoq.leH

S|9SS9/ UO Ssajey -

LoLoz

S3AOYVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHYIdO

30



Page 117

'9a1} 8q ||eys abebbeq |euosiad siabuassed G
auuo} Jad 99'Z3 - Saseo Jayjo u| -
asjow 2Igno Jad 99°Z3 - PaINSEaW aq UBD YdIym SS|DIE JO 9SeD 8y} Ul -
abeyoed Jad £z'03F - B¥0G 01 dn sabeyoed pue sjaoied -

:smojjo} se pabieyd aq |jeys spoob ‘ygnop

Aue Jo ased ay u| "pa)si| anjeA pue ¥|nq Jejiwis Jo spoob Jayjo o} uoiodoid

ul a|geabieyd aq |leys ssosoe payioads Ajsnoiraid jou sway ||V

Jdwaxa aq |leys papue|
10 paddiys Ajsnoinaid Ji sabesoed pue syoes ‘sjauieq ‘saxoq Aldwa ||V ¢

‘llouno) (N}

8y} 0} JO)Id| BY} J8jal UL} ||IM OYM ‘10joalIg 9DIAI8S By} 0} Bunm ul spew
Bulaq 1sanbai e 0} Joalgns sajes pajunoosip je pabieyo aq Aew sjeusjew
Jo sjuswdiys ¥|nq ‘syonpoud 3ng snoaseb ‘pinbi| Jo swis) Jo SwIs) U] g

‘papnjoul aq |leys spoob Aue Jo siauleluod ay)
1o sybiam ayy ‘sanp Buibieyds jo asodind ayj 1oy syybrem Bujuiwisiap uj “ |

‘S31ON

0102/20/€0 913 SAO0D NO SILYY HBd SIXT¥NIA L L-010Z sebreyD pue sead - yeid - SO

*10}0841Q 99IAI8S BY) Y)im uonenobau
lenpiAipul 0} J08[gns 89 ||eys s}o| J0o S8ses| Yons Jo Swiis) 8y |

99ss9| J0 1a1dn220 8y} Jsuiebe pabieyo aq
JOU [|eys sanp yons |IDunoY aUy} WoJ} 19| JO 8SEd| Japun awi}
0} awlf} wolj paidnaoo spays Jo aSED dU} Ul Jey} PapIAcid

‘Joasay) Led Jo sinoy $zZ yoes Joj pabieyd aq |leys
sanp Jaid |euiblio 8y} Jo %0G ‘sinoy g ueyy Jabuo| pouad

e 10} skenb Jo Jaid sy} uo Jo spays ul Bujuiewsas spoob 1o

abe.o}g 10} sajey -

%L} 100 650 000 6S°0 850 000 850 (on30wi Jad) SBPIYBA [EIDIBWWOD

%0'C 0L'0 oL's 000 00°'S 00°'S 000 00'S (yoea) sesng

%8| 100 850 000 850 150 000 1560 (yoes) (1edapis Buipnjout) s8jok) J0j0N

%C ¥ 100 SZ'0 000 G20 ¥2'0 000 ¥Z'0 (yoea) s8j0kg

%L 200 zrl 000 vl or'L 000 ov'L (yoea) (suo|iel [ersawwWo) }dedxa) sis|lel] 10 SUeABIeD

%L 100 68°0 000 680 880 000 880 (yoea) ("0je “siajies ‘si0joel])

AJauiyoepy |einynolby pue sasleaH ‘sixe] ‘sie) ajeAlld

%l’L 100 G0 000 GL'0 vio 000 1434 (yoes) said woyy Bunyeqws Jo Je Bulpue| siabuassed piyo

%9'€ 100 62°0 000 62°0 820 000 82°0 (yoea) said wouy Bunyequs Jo Je Buipue| sieBuassed JNpy

% (3) SSOY9 13N SSO¥9 13N S3|21YaA puE Jabuassed uo sajey - 9
9sealou] | aseasou] | LL/0LOZ 1VA L1/01L02 01/6002 1VA 01/6002

%05°C 000 %08°C %052 000 %05°C -sBupue|

sJeaA snoinald jo abejuadlad je sanp panWwwod - s}exiew

J8YJ0 Je a|es Jo} paubisuod ysij 0s|e pue saijaLeA [[e ‘Usald

ysyj1oys Buipnioul ‘ysi4

%9} S0°0 SC'¢ 000 T4 0z'e 000 0z'€ (puesnoyj Jad) Jows

%ZC 100 90 000 90 S0 000 S0 (jlewiue Jad) sjewiuy

%C ¥ 100 SZ'0 000 G20 ¥Z'0 000 ¥Z'0 (pa1q 1od) Annod

)90)SaAIT

%9} 06°0 00°25 000 002G 019G 000 0195 (auuo} 1ad) sanisojdx3

%91 60°0 0L°G 000 0L°G 19°G 000 19°G fluo yoippejysinig

- (auuo} 1ad) sjonpoud yjng snoases pue pinbi

%€’ | 200 19') 000 19} [ 000 651 {auuo} 1ad) sjonpoud ying snoaseg pue pinbr]

%¥'C €00 121 000 yra veL 000 YL "0}0 J|eg ‘(sbo Buipnjour) JaquilL ‘sjenaiely

Buipjing pue uswa) ‘aucls paysni) pue sejebaibby ‘sai0

(auuo} Jad) sapipowwo) yng Aiq

%¥'L 200 8yl 000 8Y'L 'L 000 'L "0}@ ‘Ysi4 pain) ‘AIsuoosju0) puE SBHB0IH

|eJauag ‘sjonpold Aiieq ‘yes|y ‘sabeianag ‘)ni4 sapnjou|

(auuoy 1ad) pabeyoed spooo |esauan

anogJeH ay} uiypm Jo dijs A11a4 1o iaid ayy je paddiysun

% ) SSouo 13N | ssouo 13N Jo paddysuei| ‘paddiys spooo o} sajey — g
@seaJou| | aseasou] | 1L1/0L0Z 1VA L1/0L0Z | 0L/6002 1VA 01/6002

11/0102 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYYILO

31



Page 118

0102/20/€0 913 SAO0D NO SILYY HBd SIXT¥NIA L L-010Z sebreyD pue sead - yeid - SO

%€} 00°€ 00°L€C 000 00°L€2 00'82¢2 000 00'82¢ InogieH umojjaqdwe) - uedsyui Jo asn

%299 00°0% 0000} 6817l 11°68 00°09 v6'8 90°1S ddueled|) sHqaQ Jaquill

%L} S0 00' vy 000 00 vy scey 000 T4 Ajejeledss pabieyo

0} ainpedap pue [eALLY o'l Wi} yoes pabieyd oq o

BuipueH adoy

%C'C S0°0 0e'eC €0 9L [ r4 ¥€0 16°L sinoy 4z 0} dn sjoie Jad

) ) abebbn Yo

%61 200 L0°L 000 L0°L S0'L 000 S0'L joaiay} ped 1o suuoy sod

19BN\ Ysalg

%G} 0L'0 S99 000 S99 §S9 000 659 Ml yoes oy

abeuel ajIqo

% (3 SSOY9 13N SSOY9 13N sajey snoaue|@osI\ — 3
asealou] | aseasou] | L1/0L0Z 1VA L1/0L0Z | 0L/6002 1VA 01/6002

11/0102 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYYILO

32



Page 119

0102/20/€0 STOYVHO AYYIL SIXTYNIL L 1-010Z sebieyD pue sead - yeid - SO

%1 00} 0002 000 0002 0069 000 0069 JUBIUPIN JolY
%6 1 00} 00°GS 000 00°GS 00'¥S 000 00'%S JUBIUpIA 0} dn
%2 010 0Ly 000 0L 09 000 09y %008 AouInor 0} - PIYD
AWl 500 S0 000 S0 0,0 000 0,0 3[BuIS - PIYD
%91 510 596 000 596 056 000 056 3009 Aauinol 01, - JINpy
%LE 500 or'L 000 or'L se'l 000 se'l s|BuIS - JINpY
alowsIT

%1 00} 000/ 000 000/ 0069 000 0069 JUBIUPIN JolY
%6 1 00} 005G 000 00'SS 00'%S 000 00'%S 1YBIUPIN 01 dn
%91 00°€ 0088L  |000 0088F  |o0'S8l 000 0058l

pejwiun AJYIUON € — SUBA |[EWS @ SIED JOJO
%2 1 010 058 000 058 or'8 000 or'8 %00g ABUINOF 0}, — B[oAOIOION
%6 1 500 0,2 000 0.2 59°Z 000 S9Z winjay — 8[oAoI0J0N
%91 510 S9'6 000 596 056 000 056 WINJoy — WG'Z < SUBABIED g SI|IEIL
%2 ) 500 SE'v 000 Sev 0E'y 000 0Ey Ui}y — WG'Z> SiojielL
%1 00} 00°€. 1801 €129 0022 ZL 01 82’19

)oog >®C._30—; 0l —1G°¢ < S{I2IYBA |eldlswwo)d
%1 020 IR 6LC 1521 05 v1 91z veT) I}y — 1€ < SAPIYSA [eDJaWWo)
%81 00} 002G 678 158y 009G ve'8 99° 7%

)00g >®C.h30—.. 0l —1G°¢ > SOI2IYaA |eldlswwo)d
%1 510 STLL 89'L 156 0LLL 5oL Sv'6 WINay —1G°€ > SAIYa/\ [BIISLIWOD
%9’} 500 sz'e 000 sz'e 0z'€ 000 0z'€ UIN}oy — JunoosIp AIIGesIA %0G SIeD JOJoN
%1 0£0 00t 000 00t 0,02 000 0,02 3009 AUINOF 0} — SUEA [[BWS g SJED JOJON
%91 010 559 000 559 Sv'9 000 Sv'9 UIN}oy — SUB/\ [[eWS g sie) JOJO\
%0°C 500 09Z 000 092 55T 000 56T %008 UIN9Y § — PIUD
%2 9 500 $8°0 000 S8°0 080 000 080 wnay — pIyd
%61 010 ov'S 000 ov'S 0€'S 000 0£'S %009 WINJSY G - JINPY
%1€ 500 59l 000 5oL 09'} 000 09'} wnay — NPy

uen)
%1 00} 000/ 000 000/ 0069 000 0069 JUBIUPIN JolY
%6 1 00} 00°SS 000 00'SS 00'%S 000 00'%S JUBIUPIN 0} dn
%02 500 09Z 000 092 562 000 55T %008 UINSY G — PIUD
%2 9 500 S8°0 000 S8°0 080 000 080 wnay — piyd
%6 1 010 or's 000 or's 0£'S 000 0£'S %00g UINjoy G — NPy
%L € 500 5oL 000 5oL 09°} 000 09'} wnay - )INpy
ajepse]
% SSou9 13N SSouo 13N

aseasou] | (3) aseasouy | L1010z | LVA | Li0Loz | oL/6002 1VA 01/6002 saed A1iag

L1/010¢ S3OUVHI S3AJIAYES TVNOILVYIHO

33



Page 120

0102/20/€0 STOYVHO AYYIL SIXTYNIL L 1-010Z sebieyD pue sead - yeid - SO

%L 00'L 000 000 0002 00'69 000 00'69 WBIUpIN Jeyy
%L 00} 000 000 000 00'69 00°0 00'69 yblupiy 03 dn
%G’ 0€°0 0002 000 0002 0,6l 00°0 0,6l (1apry 19x3) yoog Asuinor Q| - 8j0A2I0J0 N
%9°L S0°0 GL'E 000 GL'E oL'e 000 oL'¢ (1apry [0x3) 80AdI0}0IN
%G’ GL'0 GL'0l 00°0 GL'0l 00°0L 00°0 000l SueABIED %§ |NG'Z JOAO SID|IB |
%0°'C 010 0Z'S 000 0Z'G 0L'G 00°0 0L'G ING'Z> sioiel
%G’ 0€°0 0¥'0Z ¥0'¢ 9¢g'/) 0102 66'C LL/L (18ALIQ 10X3T) 1G'E JBA0 YSA WWOD
%E’L 0Z°0 0L'9l 0r'e 0L°€l 06'Gl /€T eg'el (18AlIQ 19x3) 1G°¢ 0} dn ysA Wwwo)
ableyn meN|sg'e 00°0 Gg'¢ = 00°0 = uin}ey — Junoasip Ajjigesiq %0gG sJed JOJoN
%9’ 00'v 00'€S2 000 00¢sz  |o06¥2 000 00'6¥2 (18ALQ jou]) Yoog Asuinor 0g
%0°'C 00'L 00°0S 000 00°0S 00'6% 000 00'6% (18ALQ [0x®) Yoog Asuinor )
%L 0Z°0 0gzl 000 0£ZL oLzl 000 oLzl (18ALIQ [0X8) uIndy UoISINOX3
%E’L 010 0L/ 00°0 0L/ 09°/ 000 09'/ wG> slen
%Z'C 010 0Lv 000 0LV 09t 00°0 09'v yoog Asuinor 0} - pIyo
%L/ G0'0 G/°0 000 G/°0 0,0 000 0,70 8|buIS - pPlIYD
%9’ GL'0 G9'6 000 G9'6 05’6 00°0 05’6 yoog Asuinor Q| - }Inpy
%L'E G0'0 oL 000 or'L Ge'L 000 Ge'L 8|buIS - }Inpy
einp
% SSO¥9 13N SSO¥9 13N
aseasou| | (3) aseasou| | 11/010Z 1VA LL/0LOZ | 01/6002 LVA 01/6002 saied Auia4

L1/010¢ S3OUVHI S3AJIAYES TVNOILVYIHO

34



0102/20/€0 STOUVHO AT3IHIV SIXTVYNIL L1-010Z sabieyd pue saa4 - yeiq - SO

G00C ONV

BU} JO G| 901y Yyum aouepiodoe ul by areaud a1 ~eay Buipue| yelolie Jybi| e 10} Se eLIS)I0 SWes 8y} Uo paseq aq ||Im
Janiem Joj Ajjiqibig 1ounod syl Aq V4OV 03 UaAib Buiaq aonjou s,yiuow aa4y} 0} 198lgns awiy Aue je awayos YdoOv 24} Jo
1n0 1do 03 Jybu 8y} SBAIaSal [IDUNOD BY] "dlyel) o) ansawop 0} saldde Ajuo Janiem siy] “Buipue| Aieuoisionlp pajejal-Alajes
[elauab e sayew oym jojid (Y9) uoneiny |esauss) e wolj sabieyd Jo Jaalem 1o} s}sanbal Japisuod 0} pasedald si [Iounod ay |

(awayoss vdovy) Buipue Aleuoisianiq pajejal-A}ajes

JUNO3JSIP %0z - papeo| Jo Aydwg

Jeloly obiues (2

JUNoJsIp %06 - sBulpue| Jusnbesgng

@jel ||ny - Buipue 18114

sybii4 Buiures] uo yesouy Bunisia (q

(9s1n09 Buluiel aply eUOg € UO pash Bulaq usym yeloldie ayeald Jo
Buiuiely Jjojesado podsuely o1gnd o0y ajgesrdde) Junoosip 9,6/ - sybiy Buluiel uo yelsodie J8y10
unoasIp %6/ - sybiyy Buluiesy uo yeodie jooyos BulA|4

m JUNOJSIP 906 - Yelolle ajeAlld

-~ yeloly paseg (e
() :poalbe usaq aney
% saljlj1oe) J1pald paaoidde Jo ainuedap |euls 0} Joud apew si juswAed ||n} JI 8|qejieAe AluQ
o sojeqay abieyn Buipue
pasHoyIny JYBISAA Jo-axe ] wnwixep - VML
joiay) ped Jo B3005 [euonippe 18d]%0°¢ 0€'03 0€0L3 000L3 VML 540006 49A0
abieyd maN([00°2.23 00°/.3 0003 VYMLIN 6400065 0} 6%10G¥
abJeyd MeN|00°293 00293 |00°03 VMLIN 64006+ 01 B31001
abieyd meN|[00°263 00°/S3 0003 VML BX000% 03 B%105E
abieyd meN(se 93 SE9v3 0003 VMLIA 64005€ 03 B%100€
abJeyd MeN|00'9€3 0093|0003 VML 64000€ 03 B3| 052
%0'€ S.'03 G1.'GC3 00°623 VML 640052 0} 631002
%0°€ 0903 09'023  |00°023 VML 640002 03 B%10G1L
%€'€ 0503 05°Sl3 00°Sl3 VML B%00G1 03 641001
%0’€ 0€'03 0€0L3 000L3 VML 640001 03 dn

% @sealou| |(3) aseasou]|[LL/0LOZ (01L/6002

(synauio pue 09 pue yono|, Buipnjoul) uonelado jo sadAy e 01 a|qedijddy
sabieyn Buipue] piepuels

35

‘pale)s 8sSIMIBI0 SSajun ‘| YA JO BAIsnjoul ale sabieyo ||y

sabieyd pjayly

L1/0102 SIDOUVHI S3AJIAYTS TVNOILVIIHO



Page 122

0102/20/€0 STOUVHO AT3IHIV SIXTVYNIL L1-010Z sabieyd pue saa4 - yeiq - SO

PlRIHIY Jad g3 - ayeoye) Ajuwapul
‘'sInoy om) 0} Jus|eAinba abieyd wnuwiuiw e 0} J08lgns ale sajel aAoge ay |

uswebuedle Aq syybiy Aousbiaws 10) 1deoxa a|gejieAe JON BSIojus|D
(Ajuo Janod auly seydooijay) Joasay) Med Jo unoy Jad 0GL3 Aesuojo)
(Ajuo Jan09 auiy Ja1doolay) Joasayy ped Jo unoy Jad 0613 [[eJe)
Joauay) ped Jo unoy Jad 0/€3 ueqo

Juswabuele

Ay} JO awi} 8y} 1e [1Iouno) By} Yim paalbe se sajel yons Jo sajel Buimo|jo) ay) ym asueplodde ul ajqeled aq [im abieyd
SJNOY JO JN0 Ue |IounoD ay} Yyum uswabuelle Aq sinoy asay} JO apiIsino apew ale sjybijy aiaypn “alisgam [1ounoD) ay}

uo pue (d|y) uonesijgnd uoneuw.ou| [BoldNBUOISY MN 8y} ul paysiignd ale spuodlie [1ouno?) Jo Alljige|ieA. JO SINOoY [eWJON

(anosay pue yoieag pue asuejnquy Jiy)
Ajjigejieae jo sinoy jewaou apisino syybij4

sanIAloe gnjo jo 8doos Jo abuel [ewou 8y} 8pISIN0 pJemal Jo aliy Joy apew spybij jou jng Jodlie
ue Je sqn|2 ay} Jo asodind ayj Joj apew syybi} o) sebieyo Buipue| paonpal o) sjuswaalbe ajenobsu Aew [1OUNOD ay |

sqn|9 Buif|4

L1/01L0Z STADUVHI SIAJIAYIAS TYNOILvH3ado

36



Page 123

0102/20/€0 gHed STOUVHO A13IAMIV SIXTVNIL L1-010Z sebieyd pue seed - yeid - SO

abieyo oN

abieys jndybnouy] obiesn

pajey 0187 1VA

%<1 0L0 09'23

05,3 [euoijeussiu| pue ansawod|

% (3) LL/0L02Z
9sealdu| | 9sealdu|

01/600¢

"p|o Ssieak om)

10 abe ay} J4on0 1ybi 4 Lodsued] dlgnd e uo Jabuassed Buialle yoes 1oy sigehed Junowy

(ajqeaijddy y1 abaeyo A3in2ag jo aaisnjoul) Juswajddng peo sabuassed

"anoge umoys se abieyo Bupyied yelodie piepuels ayi snid
Kep Jad 00'0¥3F J0 abieyd |eloads e 0} ajgel| Joyesado sy} Jopuad ||Im }1 Ul palyoads polad
ay} uiyum Japlo ayy yum A|dwod o} aunjieq "Jodiie sy} wody Jl 8Aowal Jo uoljisod Jayjoue

0} yelolie payled e aaow 0} Jayye Jojelsado Jelodie ue Japlo awi) Aue je Aew [1ounoD ay (o

‘pouad juswabuelse s} Bunpyied yelolie ay) Jo 8oUBAPE Ul 8peW 8q }snw JuawAed
pue juswabuely "ajel pajUNooSIp e Je asay} Jo aseyaind ay Jo} Jabeueyy podiy
ay) 0} apew aq Aew suoneoldde - saa{ Bupied yesodly [enuuy pue AJyjuoly ‘Apieapn (q

%0 ¥ 0L 0 Joalay) ued Jo suuoy tad 09'z3| 1osley) ped Jo suuo) Jad 0623 VYMLIN S$8UU0] G JIeAQ
%0’ S0'0 jJoalay) ped Jo BY00s 1ed 0¢'L3| sossey) wed Jo BYOQG Jed GZ' LI VMLIA seuuo] G Buipesox3 JoN
Jayeatay |
%0°0 000 abJeyd oN abJeyd ON sinoy g 1sdi4
% (3) LLI0LOZ 01/600Z
9SkeaJldUu| | 9sealdu|

Joaiay) Wed Jo sinoy g Jo pouad e o4 (e

sabaeyn Bunjied yeioury

S3OUVHI A1V
L1/0102 SIDOUVHI S3AJIAYTS TVNOILVIIHO

37



Page 124

0102/20/€0 gHed STOUVHO A13IAMIV SIXTVNIL L1-010Z sebieyd pue seed - yeid - SO

‘abewep ay} poob axew 0} Alessadsau pawasp 00

swdinba ‘Jamoduew ‘sajoIyaA ‘sjelisiew pool ayew 0} pajwi| Jou SI Ing ‘sapnjoul Siy |
‘IoUN0) ay) Aq palinoul S}S02 9|geuoseal |je pue Aue 1oy Jasn ay) abieyoal o} ybu ay) aney
[leys |1ounod ay} (seousy pue siaLeq Ajunoas ‘sbuipjing ‘Aemuns ayj ‘0} pajiwi| jou si ing
‘SapN|oul 1gnop JO adueploAe ay} yoiym Joy) Ausedolid podie sabewep Jasn uodiie ue alaypn

Ayadoud poday o) abeweq

‘(ysanbau uo sjiejap) [1ounoy ayng pue ||ABIy
Aqg payloads se asueInNsUl JO |9A3] WINWIUIW By} 9ARY }snwi apisiie Buipaadsold sa|o1yaA ||V :9)0N

syuwJiad pabewep

%0°C 00'} 1G3 0G3 Jo ua|0}g }S0| JO Juswade|day

%0°C 00'L 163 0G3 Jwiad 8J0Iys A apisiy
% (3) LL/0LOZ | 01/6002

aseasou| | aseasou|

Jabeuepy podiy ay) wouy uoneoldde uo sjgejieae jwiad jenuuy

STERETLIITEY
L1/0L0Z STDUVHO SIDIAYIS TVYNOILVYILO

38



Page 125

0102/20/€0 ONIMHEY SIXT¥YNI4 L L-010Z sebleyd pue see- - yeid - SO

%L'L 00°L 0088 L€l 6817/, 0028 96°CL 0. pouad [euoseag Sjiwidd - S}ied Jed |euosesg
. Jayealay) . Ja)jealay}
%0°0 000 Jayealsy} Jnoy Jad 08°0 010 Jayealsy) Jnoy Jad 02 0|4noy Jad 080 010 Jnoy sad 020 siy QL 0} ¢
%0°0 000 sulw 09 Jad 08°0 ZLo sulw 09 418d 890 sulw ggtad 08’0 210 sulw 09 4ad 890
%0°0 000 sulw G Jad 09°0 600 sulw gy Jad 1G°0 sulw G 4ad 09°0 {600 sulw gy Jad 1G°Q } ON ueuod
%0°0 000 suiw 0g 49d 0%°0 900 sulw og Jad $€'0 suiw ¢ Jod 0v'0  [90°0 suiw og Jad €0 Sy 010 poyduuoi
%0°0 000 suiwg| 4ed 0Z'0 €00 sulw G| Jad /10 sulwgl Jad 02’0 [€0°0 sulw G| Jad /10
S)led Je) [euoseag
%00 000 Aep sod 00°L €10 Aep sod 80 Aep yod 00’1 €10 Aep sod 180
%00 00°0 noy Jad 00 70°0 Jnoy Jad 920 Jnoy Jad 0€°0 700 noy Jad 9z'0 Z ON pue | ON uiojud|9 Jeyd0.ly/|
%0°0 000 0001 611 168 0001 A" 168 Sy 2 0} 8
ueqQ ‘ejepsbuo] pue yed|
%0°0 000 oLl 9L'0 ¥6°0 oLl 910 ¥6°0 S1y g 010 Je) g ealy Jald ybingsusjeH ‘uljinAeyoo
a13ua) umo] ui Bunjied |e1osawwo)
%00 000 suiw 09 Jad 08°0 ZL0 sulw 09 Jad 89°0 sulw 09J4ad 0g'0 (210 sulw 09 Jad 89°Q
%00 000 sulw Gy Jad 09°0 60°0 sulw gy Jad 1g°0 sulw Gy 12d 09'0 [60°0 sulw gy Jad 1G°Q
%00 000 sulw 0g 48d 0%°0 900 sulw og Jad $€°0 sulw o¢ Jad 00 [90°0 sulw o¢ Jad $€'0 sinoH
¥ wnwixey 199113 JIejouls
%00 000 sulwg| 4od 020 €00 sulw G| Jad £1°0 sulwg| Jad 02’0 [€0°0 suiw G| Jad /170
ybIngsuajoH
%€’ L 00'G 00°00% 1G'65 €7’ 0vE 00'S6€ £8'8G 11'9€€ uoseag |enuuy Aiowsgo |
%€} 00’ 00'90€ 186y €'092 00°20¢ 86 vv 20°.6¢2 uosess Ajyyuow ¢ ssn
%L 00’¢€ 00'¢€le ZLLE 82’18l 00°0LC 8c'Le 2l'8.1 uoseas Ajyyuow 9 Kesesonu
%8’ L 00C 00'GLL eLlL 18'16 00°€lLL €891 1196 uoseag Apepenp ainubies)
%00 000 . Jayealay) ) Joyealay)
Jayealsy} Jnoy Jad 08°0 ¢ro Jayealay} Jnoy Jad g9 0 |J4noy Jad 080 ¢cko Jnoy Jad 890 siy QL 0} ¢ Aesayjoy
%00 000 sulw 09 Jad 08°0 ZL0 suiw 09 Jad 890 sulw 0948d 080 |z1°0 suiw 09 Jed 890 uooung
%00 000 sulw gy Jad 09°0 600 sulw gy Jad 1g0 suw G 4ed 09°0 600 sulw Gy Jad LG sy oo V ealy Jald Buipnjour ybingsusieH
%00 000 sui og 4od 0¥°0 900 sulw og Jod y¢°0 suw 0g 1od 070 {9070 sulw og Jod €0 (1"ON uew09 1deox3) syued Je) ueqQ
%00 000 sulwg| Jad 0Z'0 €00 sulw G| Jod /10 sulwgl J1ad 020 [gg0 sulw G| Jod /10
SSO¥D LVA LAN SSOUO LVA LAN
% 9seatou| (3) aseasou| LL/0L02 LL/0L02 01/6002 01/6002 polad adA) Bunjied

L1/0L02 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYHEIdO

39



Page 126

0102/20/€0 ONIMHEY SIXT¥YNI4 L L-010Z sebleyd pue see- - yeid - SO

%8’ | 050 0682 000 0682 0082 000 0082 abieyo Apspenp
%E | 00’1 008/ 000 00'8/ 0022 000 0022 abieyo |enuuy Jwiad sjuepisey
wnuwixew sinoy
%0°0 000 sulw 0y Jod dog 000 sujw 0y Jod dog sulw oy Jod dog {000 sulw 0y Jod dog 0} pajwiI] auoz Jaino
wnuwixew sinoy
%0°0 000 sulw oy Jod dog 000 sulw oy Jod dopg sulw 0y Jod dog {000 sulw 0y Jod dog Z 0} pajiwi 8u0Z Jauu|
SSOYO LVA LAN SSOYD LVA LAN
% dsealou| (3) aseasou| LLI0LO0Z LL/0L0Z 01/6002 01/6002 13341S NO
%86 00'v 00'GY 000 00'GY 00'L¥ 000 00'LY ab.eyo bupped Jejnbauy|
%86 00'v 00'GY 000 00'GY 00’ LY 000 00'LY aB.1eyd }9Xo1 ON,
%8'El GT'Y 00°'S€ 000 00°G¢ G/ 0€ 000 G/ 0€ sAep / Jajje pied — abieyo sseox3
%022 0L¢C 00°GlL 000 00°Gl oech 000 ogcl sAep 2 uiyum pied — abieyo ssaox3
SSO¥D LVA LAN SSO¥O LVA LAN
% 9sealou| (3) aseasou| LLI0LOZ LLI01L0Z 01/6002 01/6002 poliad sabieyy Ayeuad
ATNO SYHVd dvD 133Y1S 440 — STOAVHD SSI0X3

40

L1/0L02 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYHEIdO



Page 127

0102/20/€0 LNIWIDVNVIN O144VHL B SAVOY SIXTYNIL L1-0L0Z SebieyD pue sea4 - yeid - SO

‘paoe|d aie Aay) yoiym ui uoneolignd ayy uo Buipuadap AleA [IM ‘SHOAPE JO }SOD) - Z
“1obBUB\ JUBWIUOIIAUT pUB YIOM]JSN BaIY JO 1S3Yad Je Sjuana Ajlieyd J0} S8} SAIBM JO 80NpaJ 0} UonaIdsIq - |

:S9JON
481 +31S0Q vV |00°0 9J +1S0D IV - 81 +1s0D IV sulg jes
%S'CL +1S0D IV |00°0 %SG'CL +1S0Q W [%S'CL +1SOQ W |- %S¢l +1800 WV SJUSPIOTY Iaye adueled|] Sls
%SG'CL +1S0Q IV |00°0 %G'CL +1S0Q W [%S'CL +1SOQ WV |- %S¢l +1S0Q IV 2Injiuind }9a.3G JBY)Q 10 s)ybiT Jeass Bunesol-ay
%S'CL +1S0D WV [00°0 %S'CL +3S0D W |%S'CL +1S0D WV |- %S'CL +1S0D WV peoy woJj sjeusiew Jo |eroway
% seaidu] (3) aseasou SSOYO L1/0L0Z | LVA L3N 11/0102 SSO¥O 01/6002 LVA L3N 01/6002 sabJeyd speoy
seolnies [euonesado Aq jes jou sebiey) Aojniels[o,e e 002 0029 000 0029 0009 000 0009 (uonoadsul yoes) suooadsul Jayn4
seoineg [euonesad( Aq 1es jou sebieyd Kioinieis|%,e e 00} 00'1€ 000 00'L€ 00°0€ 000 00°0€ uonoadsu| is|.
(puepoos) @apiwwo) AN pue Ajoyiny speoy Aq jas ale sabieyd asay |
9% @sealou] (3) eseasoul | SSONUD LLIOLOZ |  LVA L3N L1/0L0Z SSOYD 01/6002 LVA L3N 01/6002 sBujuadQ peoy jo jnsai e se suofjoadsu| peoy

“1aBeueyy soedspeoy

SN usw

UOJIAUT pUE YJOMIN

“sKep gz uigim

ay) Aq pauiwis)ap sy ‘Ja)siBay SHIOA 19a11S 8y} uo sBuluado peoi Jo Bulpiodas ay) yoeaiq Aayy ji seluedwiod AN isuteBe paias) Ajuo aie saul

pied J 00083 O} peonpal 8q Ued auy siYL "yoeaiq Jad 0002} 3 JO 1SOD E Je PalAd| ole saul]

saul - 19)s16ay SHIOM 192118

uoneolddy pIEpUBS gNS 10§ S}IS00UQ + SIS0D HElS ab1ey) MoN [1s00 yeis (smainay Jaypnd) Buissadoid 9OY
abieyn meN | (mainay | + uoneoiddy |eniuj) buissedsold D0y
a|qeliene ab1eyd maN 00°0¥ 000 000 (00 Jad) suonoadsul 90Y

29 0} aul] Ul swi| o uoido “anjeA puog peoy 4o 000°L3 Jed 00073
abieyg maN 00°0S Sv'L ElR44 (lemauay) 0}8 9jed Joj ubIS 10818 0} UoISsIwIad
ab.eyy maN 00°0S} [4X44 99'/¢l (1e9 A 3811d) 918 9JeD J0} UBIS 30818 0} UoIssiuIad
“uondaJs pue A|ddns 10N "UOISSIWISH PUE JUSWSSSSE 10} SI SIY] | abieydy maN 00°00€ FrR 424 22652 (syluow g1 03 dn) uswdojanag maN 10} UbIS 10818 0} UoISSIWISg
“uonoela pue A|ddns JON "UOISSIWISH PUE JUBLUSSSSE 10} S SIY L abiey) moN 0009 68 90°1S (syuopy € 0y dn) syuan3g oy subig Aietodwa | 30818 0} UOISSIWISY
ab.eyy meN 0002} 1811 €1°20L (syiuol € 0} dn) speoy uo sjeubls dljel | 0818 0} UoIssILIad
abieyg meN 00°09 76'8 90'LS (yauon 1) speoy uo sjeubis dujel] 10818 0} UoISSIULad
JaBeue\ JusLIUOIIAUT pue }IomaN Juelsissy Aq[o,z | 00} 0098 1821 6L°CL 00°G8 99'ZL ve'ZL |lenuapisay - suonesiuebig Aiojnjeis uou Aq peoy ayy dn uado 0} uoissiwied
“Anusayip pasiApe ssalun( %8| 00°€ 00'CLL 29'se 8E9PL 0069} yANr4 £€8'ehl [EI0JaWWOY - suonesiueBio Aiojnels uou Aq peoy ayy dn uado o) uoissiuwiad

*ajel [erosawwod Je pabieyd aq o] “Buiuado A1ens pue yoes o4
%G°Z) +1S0D0 IV [00°0 %SG'ZL +1SOD W | %S2L +1S00 IV |00°0 %SC) +1S00 W Buipienb pue Buiubis Jo uoisirold
%S°L S20 SL'LL 000 SL'LL 06'9l 000 06'9} £19pISU0D - peoy 8y} uo padeld sdiys siapling
sabieyd snoaue||adsi\ 19Y10
0919y} Led Jo eam Jad 05'ZL3 + 410 9UO|%G'L SE0 00'€Z 000 00'€C §9'2C 000 §9'2C 80U8dI] 8y} 0 UoIsuax3
syeom v 1od[%p| 080 0225 000 0225 0¥'9S 000 0¥'95 80Ud2I7 0} S894
SBUIpJEOH pUE BUIP[OJEDS
%¥’L S0 0.0} 000 0.0} S50l 000 S50l subis papunodui Jo aseajoy
100 W 000 100 v 1800 IV 000 1800 WV subis [eBajil jo [eroway
ulublg pajjoJjuo)
28 | 9J0U 238 , HAAPY JO }S00 SNid[ %t | 00y 00182 000 00’82 00°082 000 00°082 O¥.L @dj0N Aousbiawg Jo uoisiroid
T3 | 3J0U 888 , HAAPY JO 1502 SNid | %t | 00 00782 000 00782 00°082 000 00°082 0¥ Aelodwia] JO UOISUSIXT JO UOISIAOI]
C'3 | 9)0U 935 , HAAPY JO 3500 SNid | %t | 00y 0082 000 0082 00'082 000 00'082 (1ayeasay) pue Jeak pug) sjusaz [enuuy Joj Oy L Aleiodwa] Jo uoisirold
T3 | 3)0U 888 , HBAPY JO 150D SNid | %t | 00'8 00'89S 000 00'89S 00°09S 00°0 00°09S Oy Aiejodws | jo uoisiroid

% ®sealou| (3) eseasou| SSO¥9 L1/0L02 1VA L3N L1/0L02 SSO¥UO 01/6002 LVA L3N 01/6002 sabuey juswabeuep duyel)

11/0102 SIDUVHI SIDIAYTS TVNOILVHILO

41



Page 128

0102/20/€0 IDEVYHO XVIN - STIVH NIVIA SIXT¥NIA L L-010Z sebieyD pue ses4 - yeiq - SO

(spuaxaam) Jnoy Jad 00’213 pue ‘(sAepyaam) Jnoy Jad oG g3 Je Jayealay) pabieyd s awi ss8ox3 "abieyd aiy ulyym papnjoul s| awi dn-}as ,sinoy om |

N0 palled Bulaq Juswssassy Ysiy e Buimojjo} 1ouno) ayy Agq paulwislep pue ‘sjel ajeudoidde ay) je pabieyd aq |im Loddns pasijeroads 1o |ea1uyds) [euolippy
yoea unoy Jad 00"/ L3 1e pabieyd aq ||im 0}8 sueloluyos} ‘splemays ‘6'9) palinbal Jels jeuonippy “LEIS JO JagquIaw auo pue JadiO AINQg e JO S82IAI8S Sapn|oul [BluaY
%02/%08 0} %08/%0. woly ‘pajenobau aq aq ||im Jijds 2010 Xog e ‘s|gissod a1y

%9°L 002 inoy Jad 00°0€1L3 inoy Jad 00’8213 Aepung pue Aepinjeg

%9°L 002 inoy J1ad 00°0€1L3 anoy 1ad 00'8Z1L3 00/ Jeye Aepli - Aepuopy

%lC 00C anoy Jad 00°'863 anoy Jed 00°963 00/l - 0060 Aepud - Aepuopy
(%) aseasu| (3) eseasoy| LLI0LO0Z 01/6002

(s@2u09 pue smoys Bunjew-yyoad Buipnjdul) [eldjowWWo)

sdnoJb Buew jiyoid-uou Jayjo pue sanleyd palslsibal o) sabieyd aA0ge ay) Ul UoI}oNpPal ou Si 818y

(spua - ¥y@am pue sinoy 00’/ Jaye) Jnoy Jad 0013 pue ‘(wdoo’ZL- 00°60 Aepl4 0} Aepuoly) Jnoy Jad 0G'83F e Jayealay) pabieyd s awi) ss8ox3 “abieyd aiy ulyum papnioul s| dwi dn-}as ,sinoy om |
N0 palled Bulaq JuswsSsassy Ysiy e Buimojjo} 1ouno) ayy Aq paulwislep pue ‘sjel ajeudoidde ay) je pabieyd aq |im Joddns pasijeloads 1o |ea1uyda) |euolippy

yoea unoy Jad 00’/ 13 1e pabieyd aq ||im 0}8 sueloluyos} ‘splemays ‘6'9) palinbal Jels jeuonippy “LelS JO JagquIBaW auo pue JadiO AINQ e JO S82IAIBS SapN|oul [BluaY

%6 | 00’} inoy Jad 00'253 inoy J1ad 00153 Aepung pue Aepinjeg

%6’ | 00} Jnoy 4ad 00’253 Jnoy 4ad 0013 00/} wouij Aepli{ - Aepuojy

%S| 0G0 inoy Jad 0G'2€3 inoy Jad 00'2€3 00.Z1 - 0060 Aepli4 - Aepuop
(%) aseaou| (3) eseasoy| LLI0LO0Z 01/6002

(uoniesado ui si Jeq e pue J00p 3y} je pabieys si uoisSIWpPe aIdYM SaoUBW.IONAd BWEIP pUR SJ32U0D ‘smoys Bupjew-pyoid uou Buipnjoul) suooung

sdnoJb Buew jiyoid-uou Jayjo pue sanleyd palslsibal o) sabieyd aA0ge ay) Ul UoI}oNPal Ou Si 818y

1V 10} |gel| 89 Jou [|Im 8dueApe ul suoissas (| BulAed suopnesiuebio Buipodg

(81gepunyal-uou) adueApe ul pied Jauenb |enuue Ue Ul SUOISSSS a1ow JO G 10 Buooq 8ANIBsSU0D sAep alow Jo g o} salidde 9,0z 40 Junodsip bupooq %00|q v

(spuaxoam pue sinoy 00/ Jaye) dnoy Jad 00'ZL3 pue (00 1L-0060 Aepli4 0} Aepuoly) Jnoy Jad 0G'gF e Jayealay) pabieyod si awip ssaoxg ableyd ally uiyym papnjour st swi dn-1os ,sinoy om |
Sjuana AJunwwod Buunp papiaoid si yels Jo Jaquisw auQ

%S| 0S50 Inoy Jad 0G'€€3 Inoy Jad 00'€€3 Aepung pue Aepinjeg
%S 0S°0 inoy Jad 0G'¢e3 inoy Jad 00'¢E3 00/ wouj Aepli{ - Aepuoly
%0°€ 0S°0 Jnoy Jad 00213 Jnoy Jad 0G'9L3 00/l - 0060 Aepu - Aepuoly

(%) @seasou| (3) esea.ou L1010z 01/6002
(s9oualajuon pue sjuang syodg ‘sanued Aepyuig ‘sbunaspy ‘suoniqiyxy Buipnjoul) asn Ajunwwon
lleH uley

sal|dde }1 aiaym sauly ||e 10} pappe 8q PINoyYs | VA “LVA 40 dAISn|oxa ale sabieyo ||y
L1102 HOYVIN ISLE - 01L0Z T1¥dV 1SL :STIDUVHI A3IS0dO¥d S3AILITIOV JOrvin
L1/0L0Z STADYVHI SIDIAYIAS TVNOILVHYILO

42



Page 129

0102/20/€0 IDEVYHO XVIN - STIVH NIVIA SIXT¥NIA L L-010Z sebieyD pue ses4 - yeiq - SO

%V | G1°0 Aep yley sed 6g'0L3| Aepeytad 02013 dHO
%2 | 010 Aep jley sad 013  Aep yey Jad 00°'83 peyo di4
%V | G1°0 Aep jley 1ed 68013 Aepieyted 0,013 jujodiomod
%YL GL'0 Aep jley 1ed 68013 Aepieytad 0,013 09pIA B AL

(95) @seaou| (3) aseasou|

LLoLoc

0L/600C

juswdinba jo any

%9} GZ0 Jnoy Jad 6Z'913 dnoy Jad 00'91 3 Aepung pue Aepinjeg
%9’ G20 inoy 1ed 6Z'913 dnoy Jad 00'91 3 00/} Jeye Aepli{ - Aepuoly
%9’ | 520 Jnoy 4ed GZ'913 Jnoy 4od 00’913 00/} - 0060 Aepl - Aepuoly

(%) eseasou| (3) aseasou| LL/01L0Z 01/6002
(930 s1ayoyep ybiapn B3) sdnoab Bujews-jyoad 1ayjo 1o sajeg
%9'L SL'0 Jnoy Jad G/'63 Jnoy Jad 09'63 Aepung pue Aepinjeg
%9'L SL'0 Jnoy Jad G/'63 Jnoy Jad 09'63 00/ Joye Aeplid - Aepuop
%9’ 1 G0 Jnoy Jad G/'63 Jnoy Jad 09'63 00/ - 0060 Aepu - Aepuoly

(9%) @seasou| (3) aseasou|

LLoLoc

01/6002

2)0 sbunasy

2)0 s9)INg ‘swooy Bunasy

L1/0L02 STDUVHI SIDIAYIS TVNOILYHEIdO

43



Page 130

0102/20/€0 XY - ST00d SIXT¥NI4 L1-0L0Z s961eyd pue s994 - Jeid - SO

"UOISSIIPE SI9A00 Os[e 961eyod siyL "uossaj Jad umoys aie Suossa
s19sN JeinBal Se UMOYS S)USPISal ale SI9qUIB\

JInpe ue Aq paiuedwodoe aq jsnw Ing

FOUVHO 40 3344 PeRIWpe dJe G Jspun usipiyd

:3j0N

*souwll paje}s Buunp oo 1o abe Jo sieak 09 synpe o} Ajuo Ajdde seoud
uolssaou0) ‘abe Jo sieak 9| Jano suosiad o} A|dde seoud euneg

's10]e}oads PUE SI9SN WOJ) SWIODU BY) 1991|000} JauIY B} SMOj|e pue

‘Aluo suonesiuebio pue sqnjo Bunjew Jyoid uou o} sedde eje e 4o aliH |00d

suossa| Jo sasinod 0} Aldde sabieyo uossa

sjood [ENPIAIPUI YA 30840 - 8sn o1ignd o} a|gejiene

si jood ay} uaym wdoo'g 0} sw Buiuado wouy Aepu -Aepuojy wouy salddy

IAJadNS JNPE. JO [9A9] BJES BY) SUILLISIEP
pue £o1j0d UOISSILIPY (NHS| MOJ[O} [IIM [1DUN0O By |

0] JUBWISSASSE XS BYeuapun

"ALITIOVAE OL ALITIOVA NOYH AYVA TTIM SFOHVHO
VNLOV 3HL 'A3INddV 38 NVO LVHL STO¥VHI WNNIXVIN IHL 3dVY 3S3HL

%2z Jooc  Jooce SSEL|Sh6L 0016 XD Sv il %01 Joot 0026 [svvi  Jesce  [oooe  Joewl  [oL1e {inoy 180) €€ qniD - Sl [00d

(1e1801b S1 Jonaydiym uosiad 1ad eouad g 10) |
%0°0 000 00°0€ Ly'y |es'se 00°0€ Aad €962 %9} 050 05CE  |¥8'Y 99'/.¢ |o0'ce (Ll €C'LC (unoy Jad) eje9 - auH [0od
%L'€ 500 0%'L 120 |6L71 mm.v 0z'0 Sl %' |soo 05'L 220 EA S 220 €T’ uawdinb3 Jo any
%Y'€ 500 051 ¢T0 (8271 _mw. l 220 €Tl %9} S0'0 GC'e 8%'0 1.2 02'€ 87’0 54 1amoys
%L 500 0LV 0,0 |00'% SOV 690 96°€ %91 0L°0 059 160 €5°S 079 S6°0 Sv'S (uossa Jad) suossa bulwmg
%9'L 500 GL'E L¥'0 |89C 0L'€ 90 9T %8} 0L°0 G9'S 80 324 GS'S €80 Ly euneg
%S 070 05°9C S6'€ [S5CC 0192 68°€ leee %0°C 00"} 001G |09L oy'ey 000§  [SP'L Eickad PIeD Yound WImMs 02
%¥'€ |soo 0G°L 20 |82'L lsvv 220 €T’ %L} mo.o G0'E S0 09C 00°€ G7'0 x4 (SeInUIW G) WIMS J9qUISINI|
%6'C 500 SL'L 920 |67} 0L} S0 Syl %S} _mo.o E1d3 150 6'C 07'€ 150 68'C wimg
%9 L 500 GL€ L¥'0 |89C 0L°€ 90 9T %2 | 500 0g'y 90 99°¢ Erad €90 29°¢ (awnyy Butpnjour) wimg
%0°0 00°0 050 200 |e¥'0 0S50 100 €70 %0°0 000 00'} SL0 G680 00" GL°0 80 [OEEERE]

% @) SSOUD 13N SSO¥9 13N % (3) |ssous 13N |ssouo 13N
I Q| LVA ! ! 0| 1VA ! Hnpvy 1VA UNpY | 3npy 1VA Hnpvy saipadoud |1ounog uy sebieyn wnwixe
LioLoe 01/6002 LioLoz 01/6002 S700d ONINWIMS

11/010Z STOUVHOI SIDIAYIS TVNOILVHIJO

44



0102/20/€0 IYLNID SLHOdS SIXT¥NI4 L1-0L0Z Sabieyd pue sesd - yeid - SO

~
™
~
)

g *K10Ba3ed uoISSaU0D By} UIYNM S| AjIANOE By} ul Buedionied uosiad Aiane uaym Ajuo saljdde ajel uoissaouo) ay |

a AyAoeAUBAS Yoes 10} pasiHaApe a4 |[IM S|IE}op pue sabieyd asay} 0} [euolippe aJe 0}8 SJUSAS [e1oads ‘sasinod 1o} sabiey)

Dl Jinpe ue Aq paluedwosoe aq }snw jnq abeyd jJo aaly ajejoads 0} Pamoj|e ale G Japun UaIp|iyd

:3JoN

%2 | o010 ov'8 011 0€°L oc'8 80'L 2T L %Z | 010 or'8 ST'L SL°L oe's e 90°2 Bujurei/yoid ssei9

%9°} 520 GIGl G0C 0L°€l o551 20T svEl %91 05°0 o5 1€ 691 18'92 001 29y 8€°92 SAWED/Yold SSEID

%91 520 G.'SL 50°C 0L°€l os°51 20T sv'El %tL 0€°0 0012 €L'e 181 02702 80°¢ 29L) UoNd epIs-e-/

%91 05°0 0g'L€ %% 6€°L2 00" 1€ Y0y 9692 %0 | 090 00z 9z'9 v.Ge ov'1v /19 cz'Ge UoNd Jeylea 11V

%G1 500 ov'e 770 96'C ce'e 770 16T %5} o010 89 201 €8'G 6.9 10'L v.'G (uosiad Jed) olpnis 8ouEQ

%0°0 000 050 100 €70 050 200 €70 %0°0 000 0L 910 680 0L 910 680 (uosied sed) Jemoys

%0} o€0 00’12 v.T 9z'8lL 02702 0L 00°81L %t | 0e0 00’12 €1'e 18°L1 02702 80°€ Z (suoissiwpy + [leH + sinoy Jad) suljodwies

%00 000 B 020 Ge'L 651 020 Ge'L %00 000 gL €20 zeL gL €20 z€eL (way 1ad) Juswdinb3 Jo auy

%L°€ 500 ov'L 810 Tl Ge) 810 1L %070 000 09 6€°0 1ce 09°C 6€°0 1ce (919 11_AeII0A “llEGIRYSE “IIEGISN) AIAIDY 8.3USD SHOdS|

VN VN VN VN %91 500 53 1v°0 89°C O3 9v°0 y9°Z (synouig “Buluuids) Aoy dnoio

%61 500 9°C GE0 0€C 09z vE0 92T %00 000 09z 6€0 %3 09z 6€0 43 (Repli4 - Repuoy wdpQ'G @10508) B)INS SSBUN SEad HO)

%61 s0'0 9T Ge0 0£Z 092 vE0 92T %2 1 500 %% 290 €s'e o1 190 6v°¢ 2)Ing ssaujl4

%v'C 500 %4 820 18°) oLz 120 €8'L %21 500 %% 290 €5°€ OI%% 190 67°¢ (Repiif - RepuoW wdoo's eiojeg) Usenbs ead 4O

%671 500 59°C Ge0 0£'Z 092 X0 92T %61 o010 oe's 620 %2 oz's ) vy (seynui oy Jed) HnoJ ysenbs|

%0°} <00 cz'e 89°0 16 oz's 89°0 [7%2 %1 | 50) og 0L 95°L v6'8 e oL va'L 18'8 wniseuwAo Jo ey

%G1 020 o€l 8LL 18711 v el G.'L 02711 %S| ) A 26°¢ 8e'ce 06°52 98°¢ v0'ze (93° I1eq1004) I1EH BIOUM

%00 000 029 180 €8'S 029 180 €8'G %6} 0z'0 o2€L 0T 99'L1 g€l 10T 6v'11L (030 simog) lIeH JieH

%G1 500 ov'e 750 96'C ce'e 770 16T %S| o010 89 201 €8'G 629 101 v.'G (930 uouiwpeg) |[eH JaLenD

%€} o010 g8, 201 €8°9 G272 10'L vL'9 %9°} 5z 0 5T ceT orEL ogs1 €T 6L€L piEdDUNG UOISSIWPY 0Z

%0°0 000 050 200 0 050 200 €70 %0°0 000 001 G510 80 001 G510 680 UOISSILIPY/i0}e}0ads|

SSOuS 13N SSOu9 13N % 3 SSOUS _ SSOUS _
9%, aseaiou| |(3) aseasou| I o) 1VA uoISsa2uo0) |uoissaduo) 1VA uoissasuo)| aseasou| | aseassu| }npy 1VA 13N Unpy }npy 1VA 13N Unpy paje}s asimiayjo ssajun anoy Jad ase sabieyds Ajanoe ||y
11/010Z 01/6002 11/0102 01/6002 JUINID SLHOdS

L1/0L0Z STOUVHI SIADIAYIS TVNOILYHILO

45



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133

Mo

wnipapy

MO

wnipapy

Mo

wnipapy

(syjuow
Buiwod
pamalnal
aq 03)
Buney sty

VOS/dO 1sa3 +00¢ pajsisse
jo pesH| Buiobup sassauisng Bunsix3 ay013
VYOS/dO
‘sylomjau
pue Sa2IAIaS pajejal ssauisnq
[eul9)X8 pue [BUIBIUI JBYIO UM
AB8)el)S 21WOoU02T JUSWUIBAOL) 0) ajelbajul ‘woddns pue Alaalep g9V ul sessauisng Buimolb
uolNguIuod [ewndo ue ayew jJou Saop pue 99IA9s |ewndo Joy sa2inosal Hoddns o} Japlo ul Aeemaljes)
SjuapISal S}l JOJ UONEdID Y)eam pue qol| 1sa3 ‘GE| pajsisse| [eloueul ysi|ge}Se ‘spasu jodlew ssauisng Jo juswdojanap
o swuay ul sbe| ayng pue ||AB1y zzdO13 jo peay| Buiobup sdn-pejs Jo JaquinN| yim aul| ul 8o1A18s dojaaap Jaypun4 Jaypuny pue Aianjeal eyol3
VvOS/dO 1sa3 LL/0L ‘@ouel|lY
Jo peaH| Ales-pelg| sejgemausy gy usligels3 qe013
YOS/dO
"Jauuew ajgeuleisns
ABajens pue aAlISuUas AjjejusawuolIAuS
O]WOUOD] JUSWUIBAOS) 0} UOHNQLIIUOD ue u| padojanap si ajng pue
Jewndo ayew jou S80p pue sjuapIsal s} 11ABay ulyum ABiaua ajgemausi
10} uoneald yjeam pue qol jo swis} u; sbe| ‘ueld uonoe sajgemaual| jo |enuajod jey} ainsus o} saiped
ajng pue A1y gzdQ 13 "uonoalip pue 1sa3 LL/0L Jo uonejuswa|dwi|  pajsaisiul Yim IO “Ueld UOROY RV Ulym ssjgemausy
diysiapes| Buosys apinoid 0} ainjieq 90HS 10 pesH Hels 9ouswWwod pue da1by| pue ABajels ssjgemausy dojaaa| jo yuswdojaasp sy} ebeinooul| egol3
YOS/dO
‘(panosdde| ‘aAnoex3 pue pieog swwelbold ymoub olwouoos
sjo9foid uonelauabay Juoiusiepn s0g4 €) sald au) Aq peaalbe uondo uo Buipuadap a|qeulejsns sasjwido
ul sAejeg L.zdo13 "ewwelboid QHOHD 1sa3 Ujim aoueploooe ul sposfoud|  sjeudoidde se syosfoid ssaiboid| 1eyy Jsuuew e ul swwelsbold
paaibe juswsa|dwi 0} ainjieq /ZYS jo peaH| Buiobug| AHOHD aus Jo Asaniiep ayl| pue sOg4 @onpoid swes] josfoid ayoHD aurdeneal  zol3
YOS/dO
ymoub
OlWOU0Jd d|geule)sns Jo
AbBajens ue|d uondy juswdojaasg| uoniquie [BJjuad S UBWUIBA0D)
9]WOU0] JUBWUIBAOS) 0} UOIINQLIIUOD ‘paubije Ajgjeudoidde 9jwouod3 jo uonejuswaldwi SA3IYOE pue suolique
Jewndo ayew jou S80p pue sjuapIsal s) $90IN0S8I pue 9ouUsWWOoD ‘saloljod / salbajens VOS pue ue|d Ajunwwo)
10} uoneald yyeam pue qol jo swia} ul sbe| jlouno) ay} Aq panoidde|  |eool pue jeuoneu yum ubije pue ‘ue|d @1eidio) 198w 0}
alng pue ||ABuy gzdO13 "uonoauip pue 1sa3 L L/0L] St ueld uonoy Juswdoaaad| eousnpul ‘sadinosal pue saiuoud|  Jsapio ul uonejuswa|dwi ueld
diysiapes| buouys apiroid 0} ainjie4 90HS ojwouod3 ay)| ssesse ‘siauped Ay yum asier]| uonoy Juswdojaasd dlwouos]

19bpnq pea sajep Aay
0003

" 01/6002

salnseaw Ssaddng

¢dwoono
SIyY} JO 924n0S
ay} s1 jeum

3WO9)N0 dA3IYI. 0} SUOHOY

DWOIIN0 3BDIAISS

Aewwng aainiag [|n4

NOILVLYOdSNVYLl ANV LNJINdOT3AIA DINONOI ¥0d NV1d JIDIAYTS



Page 134

wnipapy

'speol Jno
uo painful A|snoues 1o paj|iy ualp|iyo pue

VOS/dO

‘abelane 80/y002
uo paseq 0z0zZ A9 %0Y Jo
saljjensen jo uononpal ‘69

“Jeak yoes ajng pue
11AB1y Jnoybnoly) sisuped yym

abesn peoJ asealou
A)AOB D1LIOU0D8 paseslou] se
- JUBPIOOE JO YSH BSIWIUIW pue
eale uIylIM sseooe paAoidul

wnipapy

Mo

Mo

Mo

wnipapy

saln(ul ybifs ‘sanjjenses snousas pue |ejey 1sa3 1eah| - 0Z-010Z 404 JuswuIaN09)| saunseaw |euopjowoid pue Buluiely ajowoud 0} ajng pue [|ABry
10 Jaquinu Jayealb Joj [enusjod GLdo13 Jo peaH| yoes 08| Aq padojonsp sjebie} maN ‘uoneonpa Ajajes peol ajeyjioe ul Ayages Asuinof anoudwi| 8013
YOS/dO
‘Buipuny jeula)xa Bulnoas ‘sajousabe Jauped
pue saoineg |euoiesadQ / siojesado aouanyul pue ggy ‘6
yodsuely 6°8 - sapuoud podsuedy 1sa3| 1esh yoes| sjosloud oibsjens anoge Joy
ay} JoAI|ap 0} SJ1aYJ0 uo adueldy v1.d013 10 peaH yosepy| 1uswisanul jeussixa joeiy 9,013
YOS/dO
AB3)elS 21WOU0IT JUSWUIBAOD)
0} uonNqguuod [ewndo ue ayew ‘(anneussye
JOU SB0p pUE S}udpPISal S} 10} uoneald Bunepisuod Ajjuaiind
yjieam pue qol jo swus} ul sbe| ayng pue Sd.1¥ - 09 1098 Aq panss|
1AB1y zzdO 13 Buipuny jeusaixe Bulnoas aq jou |Im aouepinb) g1 ‘AbBajens
pue saoineg |euoiesadQ / siojesado 0) J0SS329NS JaAI[9p pue yodsuel] [e007 8y} Ul paynuapl Awouoos a|qeuleisns
yodsuel 6°s - sapuoud podsuelsy 1sa3| sesA yoes|eing pue ||ABay Joy sanuoud se sanoud podsuel s,jlouno)|  pue payosuuod [|am ‘Buimolb
aY} JOAI|Bp 0} SI18YJ0 Uo douUeldy v1d013 10 peaH yosep| wodsuesy oibajens Ajyusp)| oy Jaalep pue sjowold ‘Ayjusp| e sabeinoous podsuel)| e;z013
VOS/dO
'siauped yum
1sa3 padojansp bBuneyiew pue
10 peaH ajyo.id uo Jaded Buidoog 2913
YOS/dO 1sa3 "Aypuapi |ABLy wouy
10 peaH poo4 asn s1aonpoud oz qol3
VOS/d0 ‘Aemales) auue|y se
lemoD/uooun( pue ‘agie] ymmolib dlwouoos a|qeulelsns
¥ Jeyooly :0) 10adsal pue uonessuabal sjowold
AbBajel}s 91Wou0d] JUBSWUIBA0D) ul VAN Yim Buppiom ‘ue|d uonoy juswdopaaq|  ‘sassauisng Buimolb poddns
0} uoiINqIuoD [ewdo ayew jou saop pue diysieuped dojanap olwouod3 a8y} ul pajenaiue| o} Jepio ul passaiboid siojoas
SjuapIsal S}l 0} uofeald yjeam pue qol| 1sa3 - Yied |euoneN ‘pansind| se pajuswsa|dwi Ajusnbasqgns pue pue sjosfoid juswdojansp
Jo swuay ul sbe| ayng pue ||ABIy gzdO13 jo peay| Buiobup Buipuny N3 - Breysupiy padojanap suonoe ajeudoiddy olWou09d paspuoud| e90l13
vOS/dO
jewndo ue ayew juswAoldwa *SJuaID gRY 0} AlaAlap |ewndo
JOU S90p PUE SjudpISal SY 10} uoneald Jayua syuald pakojdwaun 1o} sjuswabuelie aindas pue
yyeam pue gof jo swia} ui sbe| ajng wusy-Buol jo (paaibe|sdiysuoneal Jouped dojansp ‘leag
pue ||AB1y gzdO13 ‘slemauay joesuod Buleq syjuswabuelie MBN 9|qIxa| J0 uoneuawa|dwi awibal |eag maN 9|qIxal4
61d0L13 ‘syosloid oibsjes)s s,|10UN0Y Jsisse 1sa3 ol |ENjOBIU0D MBU 0} puodsai 0} padojaAap| JO 1X8JU0d Ul AJBAIIP SulejuleWw
0} Buipuny |eula)xa joeljje 0} ainjieq 9ZYS jopeay| uwnmny| uojspuadap - oq)) %Ge g9V Joj [9pow ssauisng ao1nes Ajigefoldw|  go13




Page 135

wnipapy

uoljB)|NSUO0Y / Yoieasay

juawalinbal aane|siba]
uonoadsu] / ypny
M3IADY an|ep }sag

Juswssassy joedw|
J9Y VYOS / ueld djeisodio)
¢,9WO0921N0 SIY} JO 924N0S 8y} SI Jeyp

AB9jelS 21LOoU0DT JUSWUIBAOD)

ABajel)S 21WOU0DT JUBWUISAOS) 0}
uolNguiuod [ewndo ue ayew jou Seop pue
SjuapIsal S}l Joj UONEdID Yjeam pue qol|

10 swudy ul sbe| ayng pue ||ABiy zzdO13
saAI309[qo 2169)el)s S,[10UN0Y ISISSE 0}
Buipuny jeula)xa joeie o} ainjieq ¢1.do13

VYOS/dO

1sa3
0 peay

Bulobup

‘ss@20.d uoneoidde
4Qay3 ey Buunp
juawssasse A)qibie
paiejep 0} 308fans ‘010z
1snbny Aq syjuswanoidw
ainjonujsesyu|
umoyjaqdwies Joj uoljjiw G
-€3 usamiaqg Jo 4ay3 "L 10C
yose Aq w3 Jo Buipuny

aAlleINWIND ¥Y3Av3AT

‘|oA8| |BUOIBU BU} JB POMBIASI
Bulaq a.e jiwai pue saioijod
y3av3ai Apuaung 'sdnoib

ajeudoidde uo uonejuasaidal

spJemo} aAnoeoud si DGV 1eyl
2INSUd pue S$82IN0S Mau Ayuapl
‘Buipuny Jo} sjoafoud a|qibie

10 Jaquunu |ewndo yym MJopn

uonelssusbal pue ymolb
2]WOU02d d|geule}sns ajowoud
0} JopJo u duanpul Aoljod
s,08V pue Buipun} ¥3av31

9 ueadoin3 as|wWixe

6013




Page 136

0 0 0 SBUINBS MBIASY BDIAIBS
€y- e e sBuiAes UIpA JOIND
09 09 09 sainssaid puewa(
0 0 0 geule)sng }assy/sainssald 1S0)
€8¢ 19¢ 6€C aseg ||0JAed 0} Juawisnlpy
1€ Ll 0 uonepu| Aed-uoN
800°C 800°C 800°C 800°C 669°L 19bpng eseq
uoljelj1ouoday Aieyabpng

ainyipuadxy }aN

Gol- 29l- 091~ 091~ 19¢- |woou|
116 Sov'e vev'e 891 §90'¢ aunypuadx3 sso19
0 0 0 0 0 SjuswAed Jojsuel] |

960°} 110°) 290°L 200°} 798 sjuswAhed Aped payL

9 14 14 4%} €3G Jodsuel|
10l 66 86 86 14" s9oIAeg @ salddng
1% [4%" o€l o€l ol sosiwald
€eL’l L) 680'L 188 668 soakojdwiz

sjuswwon

EIE]
€1/1210C

$924no0sal uewnH

314
/1102

EIE]
L0102

0003
€112z

[enden

0003
4213374

0003
LLioLoe

sisAjeuy aA1}23lqng 921AIaS

sjuswwon 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 Arewwng |eroueuly 8dineg
€LZLOZ 2Lz LL0LOZ  19Bpng  [enjoe
0L/600Z  60/8002

SNUBAIY

NVYL DI931VHLS ANV LNJNNHOTIAIA JINONODIT - NV1d IDIANNAS




N
(a9
<
()
(@)
©
(Al

L€ Ll 0
L ]%sz1 Jwosy 1 Jse | 2] | pasnsuoposloididdpuebuzjoqueal _______________________IdJ|

A % % 0003 0003 0003
uopejul  UOHEJUI  UOHERUl  UOHElUI  UOHERUl  uonHejul

€Leioe ZL/Lioec LL/oLoe €Lreroe cL/iioe LLokoe
uonepu] jo uonduosaqg uoneuj Jo adA ]

sysiy
uonejuj Aed-uoN

NOILVLIYOdSNVYL J1931VHLS ANV LNIINdOTIAIA JDINONODIT - NV1d JDIAYTS



Page 138

sysiy

EIE] ENE] 314
€Leoe | 2iiioe LLoLoe
(jeuonippe) saosinosal uewnH

0003
ainssaud

3S02
€11z1oe

0003 0003 0003

ainssaid | aunssaid | ainssaud

3s09 3s02 3s09

clirioc LLoLoe €Lieioe

3a6pnq |epded

0003

3S09

ainssaad

cLiLioe

0003
ainssaad

3s09
LL/0L0Z

jobpng anuaAay

juswwo)

[]%4 8Lz 81z Jajsuely Aemajes) ssauisng aseq ||olAed 0} syjuawisnipy Jayi0
9 9 9 uoijenuueladng Ul 8seaIou|
144 61 €l sjuswalou| |jolked
GE 1114 uoneypu| jjolheq

aseauou| jo adA|
aseg ||oifed 0} Juduwsnipy

OILVL1HOdSNVYL J1931VYlS ANV LN3IINdOT3AIA JDINONODT - NV1d JDIAYIS




Page 139

ABa)eJ)S 21LOU0DT JUBWUIBAOD)

0} uoiNQIU09 [ewndo ue ayew jou saop
pue sjuapisal s} 1o} Uoleald yjeam pue
gol jo swuay ul sbe| ayng pue ||ABiy zzdO13

sassaulsng
G2 14 GZ 0 Bunsixe o} poddng/sjuels ey013

AB9a)el)S 21LOU0DT JUBWUIBAOS)

0} uonNqLIuod [ewndo ue ayew Jou ssop
pue sjuapisal s} 1o} Uoleald yjeam pue
gol jo swuay ul sbe| ayng pue ||ABiy zzdO13

sysIy

ENE] ENE EIE

€LeLoe  cLiiioe LL/oLog
(leuonippe) sa21nosal uewnyH

sdn pejs 0} yoddns/syuels)

0003 0003 0003
ainssaid aunssaid aunssaud 0003

0003 0003 0003 puewsp puewsp  puewsp 3obpnq
€1/12102 47139114 LLoLoe €120 47137114 LLoLoe 01/6002 ou
uwm—usn _Nu_QNU wwm—usn ONUBADY 9WO0J)N0 dA3IYIk 0} SUOoIOYy jal w:c_:D
sainssaid puewoaqg

fdl 21931VvdlS ANV LNINdOTIAIA DINONODT - NV1d JIANIS



Page 140

‘Ajjeuopeu Jejdwiexe
ue se pasiubooal sI gy "Speo. Ino

"saunlul pue uo Aunfur pue yeap asiWwiuiW oM Jey}
seljijeje) Ul suolonpal |eyA ‘syebue) Buipuewsp Ais ‘saunful
10} syeb.e) Buipuewsp JOuIW pue SNOLISS ‘|[e]ey Ul suoionpal 1804 18210 Aejes
198W 0} aInjiey Jo} sjebley [euoneu mau Josw o) ANjiqy| Buiaes 1ebpng peoy jo Buizeai4| Aejes peoy

0003 0003 0003 0003
ENE] ENE] 314 0003 0003 0003 Buines  Buines  Buines  3ebpnq
SL/ZLOZ  TL/LLOZ  LL/0LOZ  €L/ZL0Z  ZL/LLOZ  LLIOLOZ  €L/ZL0Z  ZL/LLOZ  LL/0LOZ 0L/600Z uononpai

sysiy (uononpai) saoinosal uewny }9b6pnqg |epde) j396pnq anuanay uoisinoad 991A19s uo Joedw| 10} uoseay BuiAeg UIM Y2IND BaJe 3JIAIBS
sbuines uim ¥21nd

LVLIOdSNVYL JI931VHLS ANV LNIINdOT3IAIA JINONOD3T - NV1d IOIAN3S



Jabeuey
uswdojaneg
olwouoo] / Jebeuey
uoneyodsuel |
oibajens

<|ldy

aAoge se

dvdd ul pejou sy

$904N0Sal pue s||Iys Buleys

Jabeuey
Juswdojanag
olwouoo] / Jebeuey
uoneuodsuel |
oibajens

<|udy

9AOQe se

dvdd ul pejou sy

Aoeded pjing

Page 141

A4

Jabeue
1uswdojansg
olwouoo] / Jabeuey
uoneuodsuel |
oiba)ens

anoge
se

dVvdd ul pauljap 89 0}

aAoge 983

sanIuNWWoo
JO JUSLWIBA|OAUI 8SEBIOU|

Jebeuey
1uswdojaneg
olwouoo] / Jabeuey
uoneuodsuel |
oibajens

< go4
/Aienuep

dva3 ui sdnoub Bujuued
AINWWNoD A8y ||e JO JUSWSAJOAU|

salnseaw $S92dNg

"dnoig onewsy] pue 94OV
yoea ybnolyj uaye} buieq 4va3

aw092)N0 dA3IYOe 0} SUOIIY

sainonns
Buiuue|d Alunwwo) pusyxgy

SaWodjnQ ON j}joy

juswabebuz Ajjunwwos anbiun
juswoabebuz Ajunwwo)

NOILVLHOdSNVYL JID31VHLS

ANV LNJINdO13dA3d DINONOD3 - NV1d FDIAYTS



Julesisuo)
awi |

Jabeue
juswdojanaQg
2]WOU09]

| Jabeuepy
uonepuodsuel |
olbajens

<|udy

9A0(Qe se

dvd3 u! pajou sy

$904N0Sal pue s||iys buueys

Julesisuo)
awi |

42

Jabeuey
juswdojaraqg
2]WOU09]

| Jabeuepy
uoneuodsues |
olbajens

<|udy

9A0(Qe se

dvdd ul psjou sy

Ayoedeo pjing

Page

SNooy
JO SSO
|AUleJ}SUoD
awi |

Jabeuey
Juswdojans(
2]WOU09]

| Jabeuepy
uoneuodsuel |
oibajens

anoge
se

dvd3 ul psulap aq 0}

anoQe 893

S81}IUNWWOD JO JUSWSAJOAUI 8SEBIOU|

JUIRJSUOD
awi |

Jabeuey
uswdojaas(
2]WOU09]

| Jabeuey
uoneuodsuel |
oibajens

< Qe
/Aenuep

dva3 ui sdnoub bujuueld
Aunwiwos sy || JO JUBWSAJOAU|

sainseaw SS9ddNg

"dnolo dnewsy L pue 94OVl
yoes ybnouy} uaye} buleq 4ya3

aW09}N0 dA3IYIE 0} SUOIOY

saJnjonig Buluue|d Alunwwo) pusixg

ON j3y

sawo92jnQ ABajes}g suonedUNWWO) anbiun
suoneaIuUNWWo?)

NOILVLHOdSNVYL J1931VH1S ANV LNIJINdOT3AIA DINONODT - NV1d 3DIAAI3S




ssao0.d uone)nsuod ue|d

Jabeuely Adljod

$99)|NSU0d

SaIUNWWOD |800| pue

¢,9WO02}N0
SIyj Jo @2unos

ayy st jeum il

jobpng  jebpnq
0003 0003
€LIZL0Z  ZL/ILL0Z

3obpnq
0003
LLI01L0Z

salnseaw ss92dng

B8WO23N0 SABIYOE 0} SUOIIOY

ayj ul Juswabebus jo yoe 1 juswdojanaal 010z bny Aoy Aq pauinjali swioy jo JaquinN|  siadojansp |enusjod jnsuo) e ¢01d
ymoub
O]WIOU0D3 3|geule)sns JaA||ap 0} JopJo
010z ‘Juswialels ul ssao0ud Bujuueld ay jo Aousioie
siapjoyaxels Jabeuely Adljod Bny 0} uopjedioed pue swayds ue|d| a8y} anoidwi djay 0y asodind oy i} pue
Aq snsuasuo9 jo yoeT Tlose 6.€ z.€ juswdojanaq| 010z 1Ay SdQ jo |eaoiddy| juswdojaaaqg pasiaal ysiignd ajep 0} dn s| Aojjod Bujuueld ainsug| e €0 1d
suoneoidde
Jabeuepy eltem Buip|ing jo uoissiwgns
spJepuejs 0102 BUI|-UO 10} MO||E O} SIEMYOS 90InIBS spiepuels Buipjing
Buipjing aunp Jo uonejuswa|dwl |nyssadong| o Asaalep aul -uo juswajdw|
Jabeuepy
SwInJoj Jasn pue SpJepue;s
juswabebus o1ignd Jo oeT 1 BuipiingloLoz Aeny pJe28109g paduejeg ay} JaAleQ
jusyedwod pawaap Buiaq
Jo sAep ¢ ulyIm panss| saouejdasoe
8)eolyilied uone|dwod Jo %08e
sAep ¢ ulyym ajeoiad uona|dwod
e 0} puodsoy e Jusjodwiod
\p) pawaap Buiaq jo sAep 9 uiyum
B *90IAIDS JONIIBP Jabeuepy panss| sjuellem Buip|ing 0 %08e S9)eOILSD
K 0} seoJnosal uo joedwi spJepuejs ‘'skep 0z ulyym oy pJe28109g paouejeqg uofje|dwod pue sjuesrem Buipjing jo
@) Pue dwoou| 884 Jo SSO7 ley- 9G- 0.- Buiping|] 01-Aep| pepuodsal syueriem Buipjing jo % 08e| spiepuels Buipiing Juswajdwi| Buissasoid ssipaads pue jusiolye aioN| ez0 1d
(@) s|jesodoud
© juswdojansp papiwiad
0 [IDUNOD pUE BA[JE)NSUOD
10} INHO4INN uo sia}sibas
oL-Aepy oy10ads aonpouju| | Uoidy|
uolne)Nsuod
-suopeoidde Kiesseosuun Buinowsi o)
Buisseooid ui shejep pue MBIA B Y)IM S93}|NSU0D |BUI)IXD
uoneynsuod Alessadsuun pue [euisiUl Yiim syuswalinbal
0} BuIpEs| SOBYNSUOD oL-Aepy UO[}B}|NSU0D 8SIASY | UOIOY/|
|eulaixa wodj uopelado SYuoW Z Ulym ssuinbua
-00 joyoe1zlL do1d suoneoldde ||e Jo %G9 SS820lde uoneoydde-aid ym mc__mmc
"asodind o} 1} Jou syjuow z uiyym suoneoidde 8.,_ E.Qw>m co_«mbm_mmh. pue
9JBM}JOS pue sain|ie} WajsAs o-Aepy|  “ePIoUSSNOY-UOU JO %pG $S820d@|  pyyi0)-01d dojeraq g UOKOY
€0 dO1d "uonoejsiies syjuow g uiyym suoneoldde
Jawoisnd pue asuewlopad Jap|oyasnoy %06 SS820ide $99)|NSU0D
ul dolp e o} Buipes| pijea Buiaq |euJajul pue |[BUIBIXd UJIM|
‘Juswajdwi 0} $824n0sal Jabeuep 10 sAep g uiyym uoneoidde pijea jo| swibai uoneynsuod Buiuueld suoneo|dde Buiuueld jo
Jamoduew jo 3oe Lo dO1d juswdoaraal oL-AepN| %06 Amou Jnoqybiau pue Jajsiboy e -9 Juswaldw| v| uonoy| Buissaocoud usipaads pue jusioiys alop

awiod}N0 3JIAIBS

ON J3y
anbiun

Aewwng aainIa8 [N

S3IDIAYUTS ONINNV1d - NV1d 3OIAN3S



‘abeys uoneynsuod |eul ye
suonoalqo Aq pasned AejeQg
‘syjed

9100 Ulejuiew pue juswajduw

Jabeuely Aoljod

0] §821n0Sal JO ¥oe 1 juswdojaraq LL-Inp 110z AInr 1dopy|
"abeys uone)nsuod jeul je
suonoalqo Agq pasned AejeQg
‘syjed
2109 ulejulew pue juswsa|dwi Jabeuey Adljod
0} $92JN0Sal JO YoE bl yawdoraa| L 1-Aepy ueld yied 109 uo |1d PIOH
‘abeys uone)nsuod jeul je ‘sjyeuaq
suonoalqo Agq pasned AejaQg olwouods pue yyeay bupealo sjng
‘syjed ‘uoneynsuod algnd yaam pue [|ABly JO sjuapisal pue SIOHSIA
9102 ulejuiew pue juswajdwi Jabeuely Aoljod Z1 ploy pue yeliq pasieuld ysiignd ‘(ss900Y) 8y} JO} S9IN0J SSSOOE [BUONEDIDBI
0} $921N0Sal JO Yoe 1lz81 €81 081 yawdorsa| 0L-Aep ‘uoneyNSuUoo [eul ueld yied 8109 ayeal) JO yJomjau e jo uondope ay| el
S pajeoo|e a)ng pue ||ABiy Jo ainjny
S 1o6pnq Jo} Jueynsuod Jabeuely Aoljod 0IWOU02d 8|geule)sns ayj} 0} aingliuod
Jadeospue| uiodde o3 Ajjiqeu Aoljod ue|d |e20] juswdojaaaq| Bulobup SMBIA8I [BNPIAIPUI JO uold|dwo) jueynsuod juioddy| 03 seausy AjunuoddQ |einy ajgqeus ol | e QL 1d
suoisioap Aaljod
()
(@)) Jabeuely Adljod pue juswabeuew jusawdo|arap ayew
Ayoud yejs juaioynsu| Aoljod ue|d |e207] juswdojanaq| buiobup s|esiesddy jo uonajdwo) AKianijep 109foud jenpinipu)| 0} 8seq uoiewloul Jaaq e ainsud o] | e 60 1d
% 91JUBD UMO}
8y} Jo} aininy B|qEUIE]ISNS B 8IN09S
Jabeuely Adljod 0] Joya ue ul sbuipjing Aay alojsal pue
awayos jo dn aye) Jo yoeT Aai1j0d ueld |20 /QHOHD juswdojanaq| bBuiobup sBuip|ing 1064e) JO uoljeIo)SOY 19010 |H1 ioddy| asn 0} yoeq buuq o} |H1 umoyaqdwe)| e g0 1d
ue|d |e207 8y} ui paspoud
uoioe Joy sanjoud ueld Jabeuely Adljod ue|d| siesodoud pue syosafoid |ejuswuosiAua
|e007 Uo jJuswaaibe Jo yoe Aoljod ue|d [e20] jawdoasg| oL-1dy ue|d UoNoY ue|d [BD0T JO MaIASY| UuoiOY ue|d [ed0T 8jep 0} dn| pue uonessuabal ‘ojwouods jo Alaalddl e 20 1d
suofelado pue|poom pue
slapjoyayels J9beuely Aoljod Anysaloy jo yuswabeuew pue ubisap
AQ snsuasuo9 Jo yoeT 7/dD jawdoreg|  oL-unp Abajeng panoiddy| ABsjens yeiq |eulq aonpoid| Jepeq - Juswebeuew pue| sjqeureisng| e G0 1d
eale 8y} 0} SAHSUSS
S| Jey} JuawdojaAap a|geus 0} pue pue|
slapjoyae)s Jabeuepy Aoljod uejdia)se|y e jo uoiponpoud| asesjal 0} UOISIA JESA Qg - SIHUNWIWOD
Ag snsuasuo9 Jo yoeT /dolsy [ %4 wawdojereq| 0L-bBny ABajeng paroiddy yum mainas adeospue] a|qeuleisns alow Jo uoneasd ayl| e 0 1d

3obpnq
0003
LLI01L0Z

jobpng  jebpnq
0003 0003
€LIZL0Z  ZL/ILL0Z

salnseaw SS9J20Ng dWO0IIN0 dA3IYIe 0} suoljdy awiod}N0 3JIAIBS

¢/wodino

SIyj Jo @2unos
9y} st jeym

Aewwng aainia8 [In4

S3IDIAYUTS ONINNV1d - NV1d 3OIAN3S



uope)NSuo) | Yyoueasay

juawaiinbai aane|siba]
uonoadsul / ypny
M3IADY an|ep }sag

Jjuswssassy joedwy
494 VYOS / ue|d djesodio)
éawooino
<1y} JO 924n0s 3y} SI Jeypn

o
a
I
NS
vi
VOSs/dd

43y

74}

(444

0LL°}

Pape

suonoe Ajuoud juswajdwi
0} $92IN0SaJ JUBIdIYNSU|

o/

suonoe Ayuond juswadwi
0} $92JN0SaJ JUSIOIYNSU|

o/d

suonoe Ayuoud juswajdwi
0} $92JN0SaJ JUSIOIYNSU|

VOS/d0

Jabeuely Aoljod
juswdojaraq

Buiobup

18SN pus JO uoneolusp|

"sBuip|ing

Bunsixs jo uoneloysay

pue wJie swoH Alow|ry 10}
asn [e|olydUag JO UoNedLIIuaP|

Jabeuely Adljod
juswdojaraq

Buiobup

sy08foid |nyssa2ons jo uons|dwo)

peayd|i6yoo
0} 8oueJjug 0} sjuswaroidwi
J0 uonejyuswaldwy

Jabeuely Adljod
juswdojanaq

0l-1eiN

weal}s uo
awo9o Aay} se sjoafold |enpiaipul pue
diysiauped uonelauabay bBieysupiy

AqQ ylom aanoe-oid panuiuo)

ue|diaisel\ uonesauabay
Breysupiy jo uonejuawa|dw|

ue|d [e207 8y} ul pesnioud

s|jesodoud pue s}oafoid [ejuswuoIIAUS
pue uolesauabal ‘OJWou0ds Jo AlaAlldQg

ecl

‘uonoalqo panjosalun
“Jaployayels
Aq snsussuo9 Jo 3oeT

O/d

‘uoijoalqo panjosalun
“Jap|oyaxels
Ag snsuasuod Jo yoeT

O/d

¢,9WO02}N0
SIyj Jo @2unos

=
=
D
-
(7]
-
=3
(]

81

3obpnq
0003

€LeLoe  ciivioe

3abpnq
0003

14
3obpnq
0003

LLoLoz

J9beuely Aoljod
juswdojanaqg

ol-unr

ue|d panosddy

IINA J0 punos
10} uBld Juswabeueyy suoz
|eiseo) pejesbaju| 8onpold

Jabeuely Aoljod
juswdojanaqg

010
0l-unp

ue|d panosddy
ueld yeiq
salnseaw sS329ng

A3 YyooT
10} ue|d Juswabeuey suoz
|e}seo) pajeibaju| 8onpoid

B8WO23N0 SABIYOE 0} SUOIIOY

10 siapjoyayess ||e Aq Juswaaiby/|

seale aulew

aloysul Juepodwi AjjeluswiuoliAue pue
Ajjeaiwouoos Joy sueyd juswdojonsp

pue juswabeuew s|jgeure}sns

awiod}N0 3JIAIBS

ecl

Aewwng aainia8 [In4

S3IDIAYUTS ONINNV1d - NV1d 3OIAN3S




0 0 0 sBuineg MaInay 82IAI8S

9Ll 9Ll 9Ll sbuines uip YOIND

0 0 0 saInssald puewaq

0 0 0 1lgeule}sng }9ssy/sainssald 10D

14474 06€ /€€ asegq ||olJAed 0} Juswisnlpy

% 1- 1- 0 uolepu| Aed-uoN

Jalu 616 616 616 6¥6 9LL'L 19bpng eseq

(@) uoijel|19u029y Aiejabpng
©

DI ainjipuadx3y }aN

828’L- €28'L- 618°L- 618°L- €0V L- awoou|

0L'€ S¥0'e 686'C 89/'C 6LL'E ainypuadx3 sso19

0 0 0 0 8¢ s1s0) |eyde)

0 0 0 0 0 SjuswAed Jojsuel] |

[°r4 ¥ ¥ vz vie sjuswAhed Aped payL

St Sl Sl 601 Sol Hodsuel ||

sie Lz 802 802 6v¢ $8oIAIeg R salddng

8 8 8 8 6 sos|wald

ovL'T 189'C v€9'C 8LY'C vov'e saafojdwz

sisAjeuy aA1}23lqng 921AIaS

sjuswwon aid aid aid 0003 0003 0003 sjuswwon 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 Arewwng |ejoueuly 8d1A108
€1/1210Z /LL0Z  LLI0LOZ SLZLOZ  TLLL0Z  LLI0LOZ €LZLOZ 2Lz LL0LOZ  19Bpng  [enjoe
0L/600Z  60/8002

$921n0Sal uewnH lenden anuaAay

S3DIAYIS ONINNVId - NV1d 3JIAA3S



N
4
<
()
(®)]
©
al

L= - 0
______________________________]%sz1 Jwosy I - [i- ]| | pasnsuoposloididdpueibuzjoyuesl _______________________IdJ|

% % % 0003 0003 0003
uopepur  uone uojeyul  UOBElUI  UOBERUl  uohepul
€Lreioe ZL/Lioec LL/oLoe €LreLoe Loz LL/oLoeg
sysiy uonepuj jo uonduosaq uonepu] jo adA
uonejuj Aed-uoN

S3JIAYIS ONINNVd - NV1d JOIANES



Page 148

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
ainssaid aunssaid aunssaid aunssaid aunssaid | aunssaud

314 314 314 3s02 3S09 3s02 3S09 3s09 3S09

€heoe | 2oz LLoLoe | €L/ieroz | zZiiioz LLoLoZ | €1L/2loz | ZL/kioe LLoLoe
sysiy/| (jeuonippe) sasinosai uewny 3abpnq jeyden j39bpng anuanay

juswwo)

01/6002
G8¢C S8C S8C ul dn jos wes} uojeplieA [ejud) MaN| esegq Jjoihed 0} sjuswisnipy JoYi0
81 8l 81 uonenuueladng Ul 9sealou|
65 4 €€ sjuawalou| |joJAeq
18 34 14 uonepu| |joihed

aseasou] jo adA}
asegq jjoifeq o} yuawysnipy

S3JIAYIS ONINNVd - NV1d 3OIAA3S




Page 149

'sjuswabuele

AJanijep ao1nBs

UHMm uonoeysessip ognd
0} pes| pue suojpeoldde
Jo Buissaooud ayy

ul sAejap o} pes| Aew siyy
suoneoldde ui asealoul
ue o} Buipes| Awouoos
8y} ul uinydn ue si a1ayy §

‘sjoble) souewsopad

Bunesw jo swis} ul ouewsopad

o [9A9] Bunsixa yum Addey si j1ouno)
pUE S|9A3] JUBLIND BU} Je ulewsal
suoneo)ddy jueiepn buipjing pue
Buluue|d se Buo| se uazou} aq ued
pue juedea Ajjuaiind aJe sjsod ay] |

0003 0003 0003 0003
EIE| EIE EIE 0003 0003 0003 Buines  Buines  Buines  3abpnq
€L/ZL0Z  TL/LLOZ  LLI0LOZ  €L/2L0Z  ZL/LLOZ  LL/I0LOZ  €L/2L0Z  ZL/LLOZ  LL/0LOZ  O0L/6002

s)siy (uononpau) sasinosas uewnH 196pnq |eyde)n 39bpnqg anuanay uoisinoad a2iAI8s uo Joedw]

splepuejs buipjing|  spiepueys buipjing
ul | pue sjsod juswabeuep 9 Juswabeuely
juswdojaraq g jo buizeai juswdojaraq

Buineg 1o6png

uolonpal
1o} uoseay Buiaeg uipy ¥21IND eaJe 99IAI9S
sbBuines uim ¥21nd

SIDIAUIS ONINNVd - NV1d 3JIAYTS



Page 150

1ebeuel Aoljod

Sda ul
1N0 188 Se sajep

‘leulaixe pue [eulajul

Ad 4@10 40 s "uoneulwexy
0} paulejulew suonoalqo
Jamay ul Bunnsal ng sseooud

‘AloAnjoeiajul

ue|d Juswdojanaq

saleysg ‘jaulaiul uo

pue apIm-|Iouno) ajqejieAe
apew 4 O SuoIsIaA

d@o 10 1no 8jol mojje 0} pasaAlap Jou Buiuiel] | juswdojaaag|uonelnsuod Aay| daT @Yl Ul JUBWSAJOAUI PaSEaIdU| M3IAJE20T pue 4a10| s@24nosal pue s|iys Bueys eco1d
s|IouUNo0D AjJlunwwio) jabiey
‘s|louno) Ajunwwo) - dd10 10 asn uo uoISSas
Aq @10 Jo dn axe] "uoneuiwexy Buluies] -saUNWWOD
sda ul 0] paulejuiew suonoafgo|  uyim uejd Uo JusWWOoI 0}
Jabeue|y Aoljod| 1no 1os se sajep Jama} ul Bupnsal inq sseooud]  Ayoedeos Buip|ing yum isisse
da0 10 1no 8joJ mojje 0} paJaAlap jou Bujutel]| juswdoaag|uone)nsuod Aay| 4dT By} Ul JUBWSA|OAUL paseadu|||im SJQ Ul IO }8S Se suoloy Ayoedeo pjing eco1d
(sda)
awayos ue|d juswdojaraq
uoljeulwex3 o} paulejuiew| ui no 18s se suondy ‘Buisiel
sda ull  suonoalqo Jamay ul Buynsal ing|  sseuaieme axepapun pue
Juswabebus Ajunwwoo|iebeuely Aoljod| 1no jos se sayep| ssaoolud (daT) ueld uawdoeaag| (dai10) ueld uswdojensqg
paoueyus ayeuspun o} palinbai sjoAs| @ainosal yeig| uswdojersgluoneynsuod Aayj|[B207 8Y} Ul JUBWAAOAUI PASEaIOU| |eoo] aulj-uQ dn 188 eco1d
siabeuel sdnoub pue
juswdojana swinJoy Jasn juswabeuely
'sanss| AI9AI[9p 92IAISS UO YOeqpas) /spiepueis Juswanoidwi 82IAI8S SNONURUOD wswdojaraq/spiepuels SaIUNWWOD ezo1d
10 oe| pue sbBunesw dnolb Japjoyayels e Jno-uin} Mo Buiping Buiobup| 01 Buipes| yoeqpas} Jopjoyaxels Buipjing 10 JUBWIBA|OAUI 8SE8.IOU| pue eL01d

sainseaw $sSaddng

awoo3no
9A31Yoe 0} SUOIOY

salnonis
Buluueld Ajlunwwo) pusixg
Ssawo23nQ

juawabebuz Ajunwwon

ON j9y @nbiun

jJuswabebuz Ayyunwwos

S3JIAUES ONINNV1d - NV1d JOIAN3S




Page 151

@ouepua)e J0od

JO pesH

010¢

0102Z ul sleuiwag ¥ 19b6ie ]

salnseaw ss92dNg

$10J|IoUN0D YIIM Sleulwas Jeinbay

aWO023N0 dA3IYIE 0} SUOIIY

pue paijamodwa ‘panjeA ‘papiuwo)

sawo9)nQ ABajel3g suonesunwwon

S90INIBS sue|d eco1d
asodind [jyn} jou Buiuueq MIOAA pue ue|d Juswanoidw] [enuuy analyoe| ezold
op suonealiqnd Jo peaH| 010z Aeiy sJapjoyayels pawloul Jayag saoIneg Buluueld Jo uoieolignd 0} Buifly a1,om yeym mouy siapjoysyels| eLold
pamalnal eco1d
asodind [jyn} j0u 9oIAI8S s8jou adueping ‘quawdojarsp ez01d
op suonealiqnd Jo peaH| 010z 22Q sJopjoyayels pawloul Jayeg 9)Isgom ‘Ja)}8|sMau Jo uolealignd op am Jeym mouy siapjoysyels| eLold
KJaAI|op 901AIDS
uo oeqpos) spiepuels
JO Yoe| pue Buip|ing sjuawanoidwi suoleoldde
swnJoj Jasn je| pue Jabeuepy 80IAJ8S SnoNUIUO9 0} Buipes) Hwgns oym sjuabe/sjoanyole swanosdwi snonujuod|  ezold
aouepuaye Jood| 1uswdojpnsg| Buiobup )oeqpaa) Jap|oysyels 1snqoy - sJ9p|OYdYeIS YIIM SWnIoy} Jasn Ul SI9p|oyae]s JO JUsWaA|oAul paseasou]| eLod
‘spaau
,Slopjoyayels
Buneswi jou uononpoud
ueld ui Bunnsal Jebeuel ued mau wJojul Jayaq 0} ue|d Juswdojanaq
sdoysyiom je Aoljod pauynuapl AlJesjo sanssi ue|d |eoo|| |e207 UO siapjoysyels yum sdoysyiom slouped jsbuowe mojy uoiewlojul
aouepuaye Jood| 1uswdojensqg| 010z Aen yum poday senss| uiely 1snqoy [9A8] [BO0| pue dibajels pjoH pue Buiiom diysisuped panroidwi| ego1d
yels Ag Buiuien Buluue|d pauiel} yeis 90IAJBS JBWO)SND JUd(|90xa] ©Z01d
Jo @yejdn Jood Jjo peaH| 110z Aen] 1O %GE - 8Jed Jawolsnd paroiduw| aled Jawolsno uo Buluiely 19210 0} papiwwod saakojdwae pue siofiounod| eLo1d
uoneAow
pue ajeJow yels
Jood 0y Buipes) S90IAIBS ssaoo.d s|eoB pue senjeA]l ego1d
uayepnapun Buluue|d JJels saoIAIeS yad 01 sawooino pue sanuoLd paleys yum |1ouno) ay} ‘oy Ayekol pue| ezold
J0U sI ¥ad Jo peaH| 0L0Z AelN Buluue|d Joj uinjal ¥Yad %06| ueld eo1nieg/ueld a1elodio) Bupjui ‘ur apud ypm seakojdws pue siofiounod| eLo1d
ue|d
S90INIBS swdojaaa [Bo0T ‘epusby wiojey
sJeulwag je Buiuued Buiuue|d uo yejs Buluued pue soaAojdwa pue sio||1ouno) pajeanow| ego1d

eL01d
ON J3y
anbiun

suonesIUNWWo)

S3DIAYUTS ONINNV1d - NV1d 3OIAAE3S




Page 152

salnseaw ssa2dNg

aWO023N0 dA3IYIE 0} SUOIIY

sawo9)nQ ABajel3g suonesunwwon

}oeqpaay S90IAIBS sjuswanodwil eco1d
Buyoe| pue ajel Buluue|d Joj ueld uonoe jo Juswdojanap AaAIns uonoejsijes Jawosno [1oUno2 }sauoy pue uado ‘s|gejunodoe| ezo1d
asuodsal 1ood Jjo peaH| 010z 22Q pue ajeJ asuodsai ybiH paseq gap\ ‘adieuuonsanp 1x3 ue Jo aAio9|jal uondsoltad Jawoisn)| eLo1d
‘pJemuoy nd S90INIBS JUBWIUIBAO0D) USI}}00S
0} suoljeulwou Buiuued JUBWUIBA09) ysimoos woldjl  Aq una Buiuue|d ul Ayjenp Joj piemy s9o1nI8s Ajllenb yugjeoxs| e201d
Ajienp o yoe JjopeaH| L10Z AN  Jauum Jo uonepuswiwo) plemy| Ysioos Joj uoneuiwou Jo uoissiwgng|  pue panjea yym pajelioosse si jiouno) ayl| ecold
ssao0.d uononpoud
ue|d Juswdojars( |20 pue
S90INIBS 90I1MI8s Yim uswabebus Jayag eco1d
asodind |jyns Jou Buluue|d ‘sjule|dwod |ewuoy Ul uoponpal joogpueH ezo1d
op suonealignd jo peaH| Buiobup - uonoejsnes Jawolsno Jsjeals| Buiuueld maNuswdoASp B)ISqIAA sh JoBjU09 0} Moy mouy siapjoyayeis| eroid

ON J3y
anbiun

suonesIUNWWo)

S3DIAYUTS ONINNV1d - NV1d 3OIAAE3S




Page 153 Agenda ltem 6

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL COUNCIL
11 FEBRUARY 2010
CORPORATE SERVICES

EXTRACT OF MINUTE OF EXECUTIVE 28 JANUARY 2010

* 10. STRATEGIC HOUSING INVESTMENT PLAN - 2009

A report introducing the Strategic Housing Investment Plan which has to be submitted
to the Scottish Government’s Housing Investment Division on an annual basis as part
of the Local Housing Strategy process was considered. The draft Plan annexed to the
report has already been forwarded to the Housing Investment Division in compliance
with the timescale for submission on the strict understanding that the Plan was still the
subject of approval by the Council.

Decision

Agreed to recommend to the Council approval of the draft Plan subject to the following
amendment:-

The paragraph regarding Islay at section 5.17 of the Plan to be amended to reflect this
being a High Pressure area as highlighted within table 2 at section 5.6 and table 3 at
section 5.12 of the Plan.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services dated 19 November 2009,
Argyll and Bute Strategic Housing Investment Plan dated 2009, submitted)



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 155 Agenda ltem 7

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL COUNCIL
11 FEBRUARY 2010

CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS TO AMEND THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF
CONDUCT

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out comments on the proposals by the Scottish Government to
amend the Councillors Code of Conduct with responses due by 18 February
2010.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 To agree the terms of the response detailed in Appendix A.
3. DETAIL

3.1 The Government has published a consultation paper with proposals to amend
the Councillors Code of Conduct. There consultation paper is at Appendix B
which highlights the areas of proposed change denoted in shaded blocks. The
primary impetus for the review has been the introduction of the Planning
(Scotland) Act 2006 and the impact on decision making in planning matters.
The emphasis of the review is consequently on chapter 7 of the code. The
review addresses, in particular, the changes that needed to be made to chapter
7 and to make such amendments to other parts of the code as are deemed to
be necessary. So there is little substantive change in the Code and in many
cases where changes have been proposed often these are to bring the Code
into line with decisions by the Standards Commission that have been made over
the last number of years since the Code was first introduced. In addition to
seeking to deal with the new planning arrangements the proposals clarify that
the key principles of the Code should be used for guidance and interpretation
only. This is a welcome clarification and reflects Standards Commission
developing thinking over the last few years which has moved away from the
original thinking that a complaint might be that a Councillor had breached a
principle in the code. The clarification is that there must be a breach of a
substantive provision in the Code for a complaint to be sustained in the future.

3.2 The Council is invited to consider the attached commentary at Appendix B as a
basis for a Council response to the Scottish Government. Clearly since the
Code applies to Councillors individually there is nothing to prevent Councillors
submitting their own comments on an individual basis to the Government.



4

Page 156

CONCLUSION

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

In summary, while the adjustments to the Code are generally welcome a
number of concerns are highlighted. One example is around a Councillors right
to engage with the community on planning applications. The protection now
being provided in that part of the Code will be welcomed by Councillors but they
should take care when availing themselves of the protection of that part of the
Code of Conduct by remembering there could also be a scrutiny perhaps by the
Court in the event of a judicial review challenge to assess whether a quasi
judicial decision dealt with a matter objectively and fairly.

An area of the Code considered not to have been addressed in the review is the
role of members appointed by Councils to partnerships or other external bodies
not currently encompassed under the dispensations granted by the Standards
Commission, or who are members of local community bodies. This may be seen
by some as an impediment to local democratic representation, particularly
where elected members are a key part of their own communities and would
therefore be expected to be involved in a broad area of activity which may lead
to their being disqualified from certain decision making processes thus limiting
their effectiveness as involved and committed local representatives.

There appears to an error in regard to the reference under paragraph 7.13
which will be highlighted as will be the omission of the protection of general
exclusion in regard to the section about interests of related parties.

Beyond that Members may simply wish to note the terms of the revisions and
form the opinion that they either codify that which has become the practice or
otherwise take account of newly emerging procedures such as the new planning
legislation.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy

None

Financial None

Legal

The policy is one strand of scrutiny. Members should be mindful also
of the role of the Scottish Public Services Ombudsman and of the
Courts.

Personnel None

Charles Reppke/Nigel Stewart
Corporate Services

26 January 2010



Page 157

APPENDIX A

COMMENTARY ON PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF
CONDUCT

2.1

3.2

3.7

3.9

3.12

3.16

4.1

Key Principles of the Code of Conduct

This adjustment clarifies that the general principles are to be used for guidance and
interpretation only. This alteration is welcomed.

General Conduct

This makes it clear that the requirement to show respect for the Chair, and colleagues,
Council employees, other members of the public applies during meetings and surgeries
where a Member is performing the duties of a Councillor and are not limited simply to
formal council or committee meetings. It may well have always been the case that
such a view would have been taken by the Standards Commission but making it
explicit is welcomed.

The revisal introduces the concept of a real or substantive personal gain and while it
does not alter the overall import of this particular provision is welcomed.

Isolated gifts of a trivial character up to the value of £50 are excluded from the need to
declare. It is helpful to have this clarification. The code might be amplified to make it
clear that if a Councillor chose, notwithstanding, to record a gift of less than £50 the
provisions of the code and potential consequences for the Councillor would apply.

The prohibition on repeated hospitality is extended to repeated gifts from the same
source, which is welcome.

The proper use of council facilities is clarified as the paragraph indicates that such
facilities must only be used in carrying out council duties or for incidental personal use
as authorised by your Council and not related in any way to party political or
campaigning activities. This is welcome and reflects a request for clarification made a
considerable time ago by the Council because it acknowledges that a Council might
provide, say as this Council does, computer equipment under its own acceptable use

policy.
Registration of Interests

This paragraph is adjusted to make it clear that the register should cover the period
since the Member was elected to their current term of office ie for the period from one
ordinary election to the next unless the member was appointed at a by-election in the
interim, which is welcome.



4.4

4.17

4.21

4.22

5.3

5.5

5.6 &
5.7

Page 158

The clarification that a Councillor does not have a registerable interest simply because
they are a Councillor or a Member of Joint Board, Joint Committee or COSLA is
welcome.

The requirement to register a statement of any assistance towards election expenses
received within the current term of office where the value of the donation exceeds £50
will be easier for Councillors to administer.

An additional set of words is added to the end of this sentence to clarify that non
financial interests are those which members of the public might reasonably think could
influence a Councillor's actions, speeches or votes in the Council, which could include
appointments to Committees or memberships of other organisations.

However an area of the Code considered not to have been addressed well enough in
the review is the role of members appointed by Councils to partnerships or other
external bodies not currently encompassed under the dispensations granted by the
Standards Commission, or who are members of local community bodies. This is seen
by some as an impediment to local democratic representation, particularly where
elected members are a key part of their own communities and would therefore be
expected to be involved in a broad area of activity which may lead to their being
disqualified from certain decision making processes thus limiting their effectiveness as
involved and committed local representatives.

This is a new provision which requires that gifts and hospitality received during the
current term of office be recorded and this record should be available for public
inspection. This brings this requirement under “one roof”.

Declarations of Interest

There is further clarification and detail around declarations of interests which makes it
clear that a Councillor must apply the “objective test” which has been redefined as
“‘whether a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably
regard the interest as so significant that is likely to prejudice the discussion or decision
making in your role as a Councillor’. Members have always had to have regard to an
objective test and making the assessment envisaged in the revision in relation to
declaring the interest as distinct from deciding whether the interest requires withdrawal
is welcomed.

The addition of the words “if known to you” which may relate to financial or non
financial interests and is a small but welcome clarification.

These new provisions make it clear that there is no need to declare an interest where a
general exclusion as defined in paragraph 5.18 applies but there must be a declaration
where a specific exclusion applies. This recasting here at and subsequent paragraphs
in the code make for easier understanding. There is a further redefinition from the
word “irrelevant” in the current code to “too remote” so that there is no need to declare
an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not reasonably be taken to
fall within the objective test. There was always difficulty with the word “irrelevant” and
this is welcome.



5.9

5.12

5.18

6.3

Page 159

Similar provision applies in regard to a non financial interest and again the same
savings in regard to the general exclusion or specific exclusions declared as being too
remote or insignificant also apply in the case of non financial interest circumstances.
This makes for more eloquent consistency.

The main change to this paragraph is to make reference to the objective test where a
Member has to judge whether their interest whether taking the form of association or
the holding of office would be seen by members of the public acting reasonably in a
different light because it is in the interests of a person who is a Councillor as opposed
to interests of a person who is an ordinary member of the public. The reference here
and elsewhere to the objective test makes for consistency of interpretation.

The reference to certain classes of person in paragraph 5.10 is a helpful guide, and it is
to be hoped that a Councillor can rely on the objective test in the absence of a
definition of close relative, close friend or close associate, acknowledging there never
has been such a definition. The other categories of persons covered by this paragraph
are as a matter of fact easily determinable.

Interestingly this paragraph does not provide for the Councillor being able to rely on the
general exclusion when it comes to the interests of other persons. For example, it
might have been assumed that at least the general exclusion in 5.18 of being a council
house tenant might have been appropriate to be included in this section because while
the Councillor may enjoy that exclusion in their own right they would not in terms of this
section because the Councillor's spouse is a tenant. It would seem possible that a
Councillor could be a joint tenant with their spouse in a council house and the
Councillor could rely on the benefit of the general exclusion to participate in their own
right but would not have the same benefit to participate in declaring an interest of their
spouse since the general exclusion does not apply. As a matter of pragmatism it would
seem illogical for the Councillor to be able to apply the general exclusion to their
interest but not to the interest of their spouse given that it would in effect be the same
interest.

Non financial interests must also be declared for the categories of persons listed 1 to 6
in this paragraph and the comments as above are relevant.

This is a welcome paragraph. It sets out the general exclusions which are attached at
Appendix A. It is accepted that the exclusions should not apply in respect of any matter
of a quasi judicial or regulatory nature where the body in question is applying to the
local authority for a licence, a consent or an approval or is making an objection or
representation or has a material interest concerning such a licence, consent or
approval or is the subject of a Statutory Order of a regulatory nature made or proposed
to be made by the local authority.

Lobbying and Access to Councillors

This helpful additional sentence reinforces clarity around a Councillor making it clear, if
they are lobbied, that they are not in a position to lend support for or against an
application they will have responsibility for making a decision on in due course, and
indicating to Members that they should simply refer representations to the appropriate
department of the Council.



7.1

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.13

Page 160

It will be important that when Members do this they make it clear that they are acting in
terms of paragraph 6.3 of the Code and forwarding the comments to the department
but are not by doing so necessarily supporting those comments unless within the face
of the communication from the Councillor they indicate such support. If they do so they
would therefore exclude themselves from the decision making process.

Taking Decisions on Quasi Judicial or Regulatory Applications

Simply as an explanation of the nature of quasi judicial or regulatory applications it is
helpful to make it clear this section applies to more than planning.

This new paragraph is the provision that alerts Members to what was referred to earlier
in the Code that if they are a member of an outside body they cannot determine a
quasi judicial or regulatory matter lodged by or concerned with that outside body. This
is accepted practice.

This clarifies that the need to determine individual applications does not limit a
Councillor in the discussion or debating of matters of policy or strategy notwithstanding
that these may provide the framework within which specific applications will in due
course be decided. It has always been asserted by this Council that was the settled
legal situation but clarification in the code is welcomed.

This further clarification of the right of Members to express their views and advocate
proposals on the making or approval or amendment of the development plan without
prejudicing their right to determine individual applications is welcome.

This provision is the most significant of the proposed revisions. It provides an
opportunity for a Councillor in respect of a proposal for a major development to be
involved in a pre application consultation. The Code indicates that as part of any such
request and only as part of the planning authority forming such a provisional view the
Councillor is entitled to express an opinion in advance of the application coming to the
planning authority for determination, and still take part in that determination thereafter.
It remains to be seen whether such a preliminary view process might in a specific case
in effect be challenged in the Court on the basis of a breach of the rules of natural
justice. It seems unlikely that a developer might be prepared to accept that in the
circumstances a Member had not prejudged the matter. Has legal advice been taken
on the possibility of such a process being challenged on the basis of the process failing
to meet the rules of natural justice.

Paragraph 7.9 sets out the circumstances in which a Councillor may have to deal with
a planning application and is self explanatory.

The final sentence does not appear to make complete sense. There seems to be
inconsistency in wording between paragraphs 7.11 and 7.12 and to an extent with
7.15. It may be worth revisiting these in terms of consistency.



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.20

7.24

Page 161

This provides an opportunity for Members more actively to engage in the process and
this has been long sought after by some Councillors and also by members of the public
Despite the wording it may be difficult in practice for Members to negotiate the fine line
between complying with the terms of paragraph 7.14 and not over stepping the mark in
such a way as to give cause for concern that they have sought to lobby or otherwise
promote a particular line and fall foul of paragraph 7.12. The risk remains that where
the Councillor is then in the role of decision maker a challenge may arise from a party
who perceives there has been prejudice notwithstanding the terms of paragraph 7.14.
This will be a matter that Members will need to have a careful eye on in dealing with
such matters.

This is about the need for a Member who wishes to make representation on behalf of
constituents, to declare an interest and take no part in the process, but see comment at
para 7.13 above

These paragraphs set out the circumstances where a planning decision may go
through a number of decision stages. Argyll and Bute Council has always been
satisfied that it was feasible for Members to express an initial opinion on a matter and
then to further participate as long as they demonstrated that they had not closed their
mind to the decision making process. The proposed revision now takes cognisance of
such arrangements and will be of benefit in explaining to interested parties why such
arrangements can arise.

The Code also now makes reference to site visits and requires Councillors to follow
procedures set out for such visits by the local authority. Councillors in this Council
have been well used to dealing with such matters and this should not present any
issues for them.

2004js code of conduct
(reports 2010)



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



AEPENDRLY, 14%.

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COUNCILLORS
CONTENTS
Section 1: Introduction to the Code of Conduct
Guidance on the Code of Conduct
Enforcement
Section 2: Key Principles of the Code of Conduct
Section 3: General Conduct
Conduct at Meetings
Relationship with Council Employees
Remuneration, Allowances and Expenses
Gifts and Hospitality
Confidentiality Requirements
Use of Council Facilities
Appointments to Partner Organisations
Dealings with the Council
Responsibilities to the Council as a Member of the Public
Section 4: Registration of Interests
Category One: Remuneration
Category Two: Related Undertakings
Category Three:  Contracts
Category Four: Election Expenses
Category Five: Houses, Land and Buildings
Category Six: Interest in Shares and Securities
Category Seven:  Non-Financial Interests

Category Eight: Gifts and Hospitality




Page 164

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT
Section 5: Declaration of Interests

Interests which Require Declaration

Your Financial Interests

Your Non-Financial Interests

The Financial Interests of Other Persons

The Non-Financial Interests of Other Persons

Making a Declaration

Frequent Declarations of Interest

Dispensations

Definition of Exclusions
Section 6: Lobbying and Access to Councillors
Section 7: Taking Decisions on Quasi-Judicial or Regulatory Applications

Introduction

Fairness and Impartiality

Decisions on Planning Matters
Annexes
Annex A Sanctions Applied by Standards Commission for Breach of the Code
Annex B Definitions

Annex C Protocol for Relations between Councillors and Employees in Scottish
Councils




Page 165

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

1.1 The Scottish public has a high expectation of councillors and the way in which
they should conduct themselves in undertaking their duties in the Council. You must
meet those expectations by ensuring that your conduct is above reproach.

1.2  The Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000 provides for the
introduction of new codes of conduct for local authority councillors and members of
relevant public bodies; imposes on Councils and relevant public bodies a duty to
help their members to comply with the relevant code; and establishes a Standards
Commission for Scotland to oversee the new framework and deal with alleged
breaches of the codes. The Act requires the issue of a Code of Conduct for
councillors - this Code - which was originally prepared by COSLA at the invitation of
Scottish Ministers and approved by the Scottish Parliament. The Code has since
been reviewed and re-issued, following consultation, by the Scottish Government.

1.3 This Code applies to every member of a local authority in Scotland. As a
councillor, it is your responsibility to make sure that you are familiar with, and that
your actions comply with, its provisions.

1.4  This Code reflects the legal framework of Scottish Councils at the date of the
Code's publication. Councillors and employees should interpret it in the context of
their individual council's decision making structure.

Guidance on the Code of Conduct

1.5  Councillors hold public office under the law and must observe the rules of
conduct stemming from the law, this Code and any guidance from the Standards
Commission and the rules, standing orders and regulations of the Council. It is your
personal responsibility to comply with these and review regularly, and at least
annually, your personal circumstances with this in mind, particularly when your
circumstances change. You must not, at any time, advocate or encourage any action
contrary to the Code of Conduct.

1.6  The sections of the Code which follow have been developed in line with the
key principles listed in Section 2 and provide additional information on how the
principles should be interpreted and applied in practice. No written information can
provide for all circumstances and if you are uncertain about how the rules apply, you
should seek advice from senior Council employees. You may also choose to consult
your own legal advisers, and on detailed financial and commercial matters, to seek
advice from other relevant professionals.

Enforcement
1.7 Part 2 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act sets out the
provisions for dealing with alleged breaches of the Code and for the sanctions that

will be applied if the Standards Commission for Scotland finds that there has been a
breach of the Code. In respect of councillors, those sanctions are set out in Annex A.

10




Page 166

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 2: KEY PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

2.1 The general principles upon which this Code of Conduct is based should be
used for guidance and interpretation only. These general principles are:

Duty

You have a duty to uphold the law and act in accordance with the law and the public
trust placed in you. You have a duty to act in the interests of the Council as a whole
and all the communities served by it and a duty to be accessible to all the people of
the area for which you have been elected to serve, and to represent their interests
conscientiously.

Selflessness

You have a duty to take decisions solely in terms of the public interest. You must not
act in order to gain financial or other material benefit for yourself, family or friends.

Integrity
You must not place yourself under any financial or other obligation to any individual

or organisation that might reasonably be thought to influence you in the performance
of your duties.

Objectivity

You must make decisions solely on merit when carrying out public business
including making appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for
rewards and benefits.

Accountability and Stewardship

You are accountable for your decisions and actions to the public. You have a duty to

consider issues on their merits, taking account of the views of others, and you must
ensure that the Council uses its resources prudently and in accordance with the law.

Openness

You have a duty to be as open as possible about your decisions and actions, giving
reasons for your decisions and restricting information only when the wider public
interest clearly demands.

Honesty

You have a duty to act honestly. You must declare any private interests relating to

your public duties and take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that
protects the public interest.

11




Page 167

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Leadership

You have a duty to promote and support these principles by leadership and example,
and to maintain and strengthen the public's trust and confidence in the integrity of the
Council and its councillors in conducting public business.

Respect

You must respect all other councillors and all Council employees and the role they
play, treating them with courtesy at all times.

2.2 You should apply the principles of this Code to your informal dealings with the

Council's employees, party political groups and others no less scrupulously than at
formal meetings of the Council and its committees and sub-committees.

12




Page 168

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 3: GENERAL CONDUCT

3.1  The rules of good conduct in this section must be observed in all situations
where you act as a councillor, including representing the Council on official business.

Conduct at Meetings [Note: previously focused on conduct in the Chamber or
Committee]

3.2 You must respect the chair, your colleagues, Council employees and any
members of the public present during meetings or surgeries where you are
performing duties as a councillor. When a meeting has a Chairperson, you must
comply with rulings from the chair.

Relationship with Council Employees (Including those employed by
contractors providing services to the Council)

3.3 You must respect all Council employees and the role they play, and treat
them with courtesy at all times. It is expected that employees will show the same
consideration in return.

3.4  Whilst both you and Council employees are servants of the public, you have
separate responsibilities: you are responsible to the electorate but the employee is
responsible to the Council as his or her employer. You must also respect the
different roles that you and an employee play. Your role is to determine policy and to
participate in decisions on matters placed before you, not to engage in direct
operational management of the Council's services; that is the responsibility of the
Council's employees. It is also the responsibility of the Chief Executive and senior
employees to help ensure that the policies of the Council are implemented.

3.5 You must follow the Protocol for Relations between Councillors and
Employees attached at Annex C. A breach of the Protocol will be considered as a
breach of this Code.

Remuneration, Allowances and Expenses

3.6 You must comply with the rules for the payment to councillors of
remuneration, allowances and expenses.

Gifts and Hospitality

3.7 You must not accept any offer by way of gift or hospitality which could give
rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable suspicion of influence on
your part to show favour or disadvantage to any individual or organisation. You
should also consider whether there may be any reasonable perception that any gift
received by your spouse or cohabitee or by any company in which you have a
controlling interest, or by a partnership of which you are a partner, can or would
influence your judgement. The term "gift" includes benefits such as relief from
indebtedness, loan concessions, or provision of services at a cost below that
generally charged to members of the public.

3.8. You must never ask for gifts or hospitality.

13




Page 169

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

39 You are personally responsible for all decisions connected with the
acceptance of gifts or hospitality offered to you and for avoiding the risk of damage
to public confidence in your Council and in local government. As a general guide, it is
usually appropriate to refuse offers except:

(a) isolated gifts of a trivial character, the value of which must not exceed £50.

(b) normal hospitality associated with your duties and which would reasonably
be regarded as appropriate; or

(c) civic gifts received on behalf of the Council.

3.10 You must not accept any offer of a gift or hospitality from any individual or
organisation who is an applicant awaiting a decision from the Council or who is
seeking to do business or to continue to do business with the Council. If you are
making a visit to inspect equipment, vehicles, land or property, then as a general rule
you should ensure that the Council pays for the cost of these visits.

3.11 You must only accept offers to attend social or sporting events where these
are clearly part of the life of the community or where the Council would be expected
to be represented.

3.12 You must not accept repeated hospitality or repeated gifts from the same
source.

3.13 Ifit is the practice of the Council to seek sponsorship for some of its activities
or events, you must ensure that your involvement with the sponsors is limited to the
event in question and does not damage public confidence in the relationship
between the Council and the sponsors.

Confidentiality Requirements

3.14 Council proceedings and printed material are generally open to the pubiic.
This should be the basis on which you normally work but there may be times when
you will be required to treat discussions, documents or other information relating to
the Council in a confidential manner, in which case you must observe such
requirements for confidentiality.

3.15 You will often receive information of a private nature which is not yet public or
which perhaps would not be intended to be public. There are provisions in legislation
on the categories of confidential and exempt information and you must always
respect and comply with the requirement to keep such information private.
Legislation gives you certain rights to obtain information not otherwise available to
the public and you are entitled to exercise these rights where the information is
necessary to carry out Council duties. Such information is, however, for your
individual use as a councillor and must not be disclosed or in anyway used for
personal or party political advantage or in such a way as to discredit the Council.
This will also apply in instances where you hold the personal view that such
information should be publicly available.

14




Page 170

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Use of Council Facilities

3.16 The Council will normally provide facilities to assist councillors in carrying out
their duties as councillors or as holders of a particular office within the Council. This
may involve access to secretarial assistance, stationery and equipment such as
telephones, fax machines and computers. Such facilities must only be used in
carrying out Council duties or for incidental personal use as authorised by your
Council and not related in any way to party political or campaigning activities. Where
the Council recognises party political groups, assistance to such groups is
appropriate in relation to Council matters but must not extend to political parties
more generally and you should be aware of and ensure the Council complies with
the statutory rules governing local authority publicity.

Appointments to Partner Organisations

3.17 You may be appointed or nominated by the Council as a member of another
body or organisation. If so, you will be bound by the rules of conduct of these
organisations and your responsibility for any actions taken by you as a member of
such an organisation will be to the organisation in question. You must also continue
to observe the rules of this Code in carrying out the duties of that body.

3.18 If you become a director of a company as a nominee of the Council you will
assume personal responsibilities under the Companies Acts. It is possible that a
conflict of interest may arise for you as between the company and the Council. In
such cases it is your responsibility to take advice on your responsibilities to the
Council and to the company. This will include questions of declarations of interest.

Dealings with the Council

3.19 You will inevitably have dealings on a personal level with the Council of which
you are a member - for example as a Council taxpayer, ratepayer, tenant, recipient
of a Council service or applicant for a licence or consent granted by the Council. You
must not seek preferential treatment for yourself, your family, friends, colleagues or
employees because of your position as a councillor or as a member of a body to
which you are appointed by the Council and you must avoid any action which could
lead members of the public to believe that preferential treatment is being sought.

Responsibilities to the Council as a Member of the Public

3.20 The law makes specific provision that if a councillor is in two months' arrears
with payment of Council tax that councillor may not participate in certain decisions
concerning Council tax issues, in order to preserve public confidence that councillors
are taking decisions in the general public interest. Similar considerations should
apply in other forms of dealings between you and the Council where indebtedness
may arise. Whilst you are a member of the community, you are also a representative
of that community and of the Council to which you are elected. As there is potential
for public perception of abuse of position and poor leadership, you must seek to
avoid being in debt to the Council.

3.21 If you owe a debt to the Council, for example, in relation to rent due for a
council house or commercial premises where the Council is the landiord, you must

15




Page 171

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

put in place at the earliest opportunity arrangements for repayment. You must avoid
being in a situation which might lead the public to believe that preferential treatment
is being sought. You must not participate in any decision which may create suspicion
of a conflict of interest. For example, where you are in arrears of rent for a council
house, you must not participate in decisions affecting the levels of rent to be paid by
council house tenants.

16




~ SECTION 4: REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

Page 172

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

41 The following paragraphs set out the categories of interests, financial and
otherwise, which you have to register. These are "Registerable Interests", and you
must ensure that they are registered, when you are elected and whenever your
circumstances change. The register should cover the period since you were elected
to your current term of office.

4.2 Regulations made by Scottish Ministers describe the detail and timescale for
registering interests. It is your personal responsibility to comply with these
regulations and you should review regularly and at least once a year your personal
circumstances. Annex B contains key definitions and explanatory notes to help you
decide what is required when registering your interests under any particular
category. The interests which require to be registered are those set out in the
following paragraphs and relate to you. It is not necessary to register the interests of
your spouse, or cohabitee.

Category One: Remuneration

4.3 You have a registerable interest where you receive remuneration by virtue of
being:

employed;

self-employed;

the holder of an office;

a director of an undertaking;

a partner in a firm; or

undertaking a trade, profession or vocation, or any other work.

4.4 You do not have a registerable interest simply because you are a councillor or
a member of a joint board, a joint committee or of COSLA.

4.5 If a position is not remunerated it does not need to be registered under this
category. However, unremunerated directorships may need to be registered under
category two "Related Undertakings".

4.6 If you receive any allowances in relation to membership of any organisation
the fact that you receive such an allowance must be registered.

4.7  When registering employment, you must give the name of the employer, the
nature of its business and the nature of the post held in the organisation.

4.8 When registering self-employment, you must provide the name and give
details of the nature of the business. When registering an interest in a partnership,
you must give the name of the partnership and the nature of its business.

49 Where you otherwise undertake a trade, profession or vocation, or any other
work, the detail to be given is the nature of the work and its regularity. For example,
if you write for a newspaper, you must give the name of the publication and the
frequency of articles for which you are paid.

17




Page 173

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT

4.10 When registering a directorship, it is necessary to provide the registered name
of the undertaking in which the directorship is held and detail the nature of its
business.

4.11 Registration of a pension is not required as this falls outside the scope of the
category.

Category Two: Related Undertakings

412 You must register any directorships held which are themselves not
remunerated but where the company (or other undertaking) in question is a
subsidiary of, or a parent of, a company (or other undertaking) in which you hold a
remunerated directorship.

413 You must register the name of the subsidiary or parent company or other
undertaking and the nature of its business, and its relationship to the company or
other undertaking in which you are a director and from which you receive
remuneration.

4.14 The situations to which the above paragraphs apply are as follows:
e you are a director of a board of an undertaking and receive remuneration -
declared under Category one - and
« Yyou are a director of a parent or subsidiary undertaking but do not receive
remuneration in that capacity.
Category Three: Contracts
415 You have a registerable interest where you (or a firm in which you are a
partner, or an undertaking in which you are a director or in which you have shares of
a value as described in paragraph 4.20 below) have made a contract with the
Council of which you are a member:

(i) under which goods or services are to be provided, or works are to be
executed; and

(ii) which has not been fully discharged.

416 You must register a description of the contract, including its duration, but
excluding the consideration.

Category Four: Election Expenses
4.17 You must register a statement of any assistance towards elections expenses

received within your current term of office where the value of the donation exceeds
£50.

18




Page 174

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Category Five: Houses, Land and Buildings

418 You have a registerable interest where you own or have any other right or
interest in houses, land and buildings, such as being an owner or a tenant, including
council tenant.

419 You are required to give the address of the property, or otherwise give a
description sufficient to identify it.

Category Six: Interest in Shares and Securities

420 You have a registerable interest where you have an interest in shares
comprised in the share capital of a company or other body and the nominal value of
the shares is:

(i) greater than 1% of the issued share capital of the company or other body;
or

(ii) greater than £25,000.
Category Seven: Non-Financial Interests

4.21 Councillors may also have significant non-financial interests and it is equally
important that relevant interests such as membership or holding office in public
bodies, companies, clubs, societies and organisations such as trades unions and
voluntary organisations, are registered and described. In this context, non-financial
interests are those which members of the public might reasonably think could
influence your actions, speeches or votes in the Council which could include
appointments to Committees or memberships of other organisations.

Category Eight: Gifts and Hospitality
422 You must register the details of any gifts or hospitality received within your
current term of office. This record will be available for public inspection. It is not

however necessary to record any gifts or hospitality as described in paragraph 3.9
(a) to (c) of this Code.

19




Page 175

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 5: DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

5.1 The key principles of the Code, especially those which specify integrity,
honesty and openness are given further practical effect by the requirement for you to
declare interests at meetings which you attend. The rules on declaration of interest,
along with the rules which require registration of interests, are intended to produce
transparency in regard to interests which might influence, or be thought to influence,
your actions as a councillor.

5.2 It is your responsibility to make decisions about whether you have to declare
an interest or make a judgement as to whether a declared interest prevents you from
taking part in any discussions or voting. You are in the best position to assess your
personal circumstances and to judge how these circumstances affect your role as a
councillor in regard to a particular matter. You can, of course, seek advice from
appropriate Council officers or from other sources which may be available to you. In
making decisions for which you are personally responsible you are advised to err on
the side of caution.

5.3 You may feel able to state truthfully that an interest would not influence your
role as a councillor in discussion or decision-making. You must, however, always
comply with the objective test (“the objective test)” which is whether a member of the
public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice your discussion or decision making in your
role as a councillor.

5.4  Much of the content of the rules set out in this section of the Code refers to
Council or Committee meetings. The principles relating to declaration of interests are
not confined to such meetings. You must apply these principles no less scrupulously
in your dealings with Council officers, at meetings with other councillors, including
party group meetings, meetings of Joint Boards and Joint Committees and any other
meeting, formal or informal, where you are representing your Council.

Interests which Require Declaration

5.5 Interests which require to be declared (if known to you) may be financial or
non-financial. They may or may not cover interests which are registerable in terms of
this Code. Most of the interests to be declared will be your personal interests but, on
occasion, you will have to consider whether the interests of other persons require
you to make a declaration. The paragraphs which follow deal with (a) your financial
interests, (b) your non-financial interests and (c) the interests, financial and non-
financial, of other persons.

Your Financial Interests
5.6 You must declare, if it is known to you, ANY FINANCIAL INTEREST
(including any financial interest which is registerable under any of the categories

prescribed in Section 4 of this Code and any interest as defined in a specific
exclusion defined in paragraph 5.18 below).

20




Page 176

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

There is no need to declare :-

0] an interest where a general exclusion, as defined in paragraph 5.18
below, applies but an interest where a specific exclusion applies must
be declared; or

(ii) an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

You must withdraw from the meeting room until discussion of and voting on the
relevant item where you have a declarable interest is concluded other than in the
following circumstances.

There is no need to withdraw in the case of:-

(i) an interest covered by a general exclusion or a specific exclusion, or
(ii) an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

Your Non-Financial Interests

5.7 You must declare, if it is known to you, any NON-FINANCIAL INTEREST and
if:

(i) that interest has been registered under category eight of Section 4 of
the Code or
(i)  that interest would fall within the terms of the objective test.

There is no need to declare :

() an interest where a general exclusion applies, but an interest where a
specific exclusion applies must be declared, or

(i) an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

You must withdraw from the meeting room until discussion of and voting on the
relevant item where you have a declarable interest is concluded other than in the
following circumstances.

There is no need to withdraw in the case of:-

(i)  an interest covered by a general exclusion or a specific exclusion, or
(iv) an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

5.8 As a councillor you will serve on other bodies as a result of express
nomination or appointment by your Council or otherwise by virtue of being a
councillor. Your membership of statutory Joint Boards or Joint Committees which are
composed exclusively of Councillors does not raise any issue of declaration of
interest in regard to Council business. In relation to service on the boards and
management committees of limited liability companies, public bodies, societies and
other organisations, you must decide, in the particular circumstances surrounding

21




Page 177

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT

any matter, whether to declare a non-financial interest. Only if you believe that, in the
particular circumstances, the nature of the interest is so remote or without
significance, should it not be declared. You must always remember the public
interest points towards transparency and, in particular, a possible divergence of
interest between the Council and another body. Keep particularly in mind the advice
in paragraph 3.20 of this Code about your legal responsibilities to any limited liability
company of which you are a director.

5.9 You will also have other private and personal interests and may serve, or be
associated with, bodies, societies and organisations as a result of your private and
personal interests and not because of your role as a councillor. In the context of any
particular matter you will have to decide whether to declare a non-financial interest.
You should declare an interest unless you believe that, in the particular
circumstances, the interest is too remote or without significance. In reaching a view
on whether the objective test applies to the interest, you should consider whether
your interest (whether taking the form of association or the holding of office) would
be seen by a member of the public acting reasonably in a different light because it is
the interest of a person who is a councillor as opposed to the interest of an ordinary
member of the public.

The Financial Interests of Other Persons

5.10 The Code requires only your financial interests to be registered. You also,
however, have to consider whether you should declare any financial interest of
certain other persons.

You must declare if it is known to you ANY FINANCIAL INTEREST of:-

(i) a spouse, a civil partner or a co-habitee

(i) a close relative, close friend or close associate

(iii) an employer or a partner in a firm

(iv) a body (or subsidiary or parent of a body) of which you are a
remunerated member or director

(v) a person from whom you have received a registerable gift or
registerable hospitality

(vi) aperson from whom you have received registerable election expenses

There is no need to declare an interest if it is so remote or insignificant that it could
not reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

You must withdraw from the meeting room until discussion of and voting on the
relevant item where you have a declarable interest is concluded other than in the
following circumstances.
There is no need to withdraw in the case of:-

(v) aninterest covered by a specific exclusion, or

(vi) an interest which is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be taken to fall within the objective test.

22




Page 178

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

5.11 This Code does not attempt the task of defining "relative" or "friend" or
“associate”. Not only is such a task one fraught with difficulty but is also unlikely that
such definitions would reflect the intention of this part of the Code. The key principle
is the need for transparency in regard to any interest which might (regardiess of the
precise description of relationship) be objectively regarded by a member of the
public, acting reasonably, as potentially affecting your responsibilities as a councillor
and, as such, would be covered by the objective test.

The Non-Financial interests of other persons

5.12 You must declare if it is known to you ANY NON-FINANCIAL INTEREST of:-

(i) a spouse, a civil partner or a co-habitee

(i) a close relative, close friend or close associate

(i) an employer or a partner in a firm

(iv) a body (or subsidiary or parent of a body) of which you are a
remunerated member or director

(v) a person from whom you have received a registerable gift or
registerable hospitality

(vi) a person from whom you have received registerable election expenses.

There is no need to declare the interest unless it is clear and substantial.

There is only a need to withdraw from the meeting if the interest is clear and
substantial.

Making a Declaration

5.13 You must consider at the earliest stage possible whether you have an interest
to declare in relation to any matter which is to be considered. You should consider
whether agendas for meetings raise any issue of declaration of interest. Your
declaration of interest must be made as soon as practicable at a meeting where that
interest arises. If you do identify the need for a declaration of interest only when a
particular matter is being discussed you must declare the interest as soon as you
realise it is necessary.

5.14 The oral statement of declaration of interest should identify the item or items
of business to which it relates. The statement should begin with the words "l declare
an interest”. The statement must be sufficiently informative to enable those at the
meeting to understand the nature of your interest but need not give a detailed
description of the interest.

Frequent Declarations of Interest

5.15 Public confidence in a local authority is damaged by perception that a
Council's decisions are substantially influenced by factors other than the public
interest. If you would have to declare interests frequently at meetings of a particular
committee or in respect of any role which you are asked to discharge as a councillor,
you should not accept a role or appointment with that attendant consequence.
Similarly, if any Council appointment or nomination to another body would give rise

23




Page 179

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

to objective concern because of your existing personal involvements or affiliations,
you should not accept the appointment or nomination.

Dispensations

5.16 In some very limited circumstances dispensations may be granted by the
Standards Commission in relation to the existence of financial and non-financial
interests which in terms of this Code would otherwise prohibit participation in
discussion and voting.

5.17 Applications for dispensations will be considered by the Standards
Commission which will be able to entertain requests for dispensations which will
apply generally to a class or description of councillors who are all affected by a
particular category of interest. In situations where general or category dispensations
are not granted by the Standards Commission, applications for particular
dispensations should be made as soon as possible in advance of any meetings
where dispensation is sought. You should take no part in consideration of the matter
in question unless, and until, the application for dispensation is granted.

Definition of Exclusions
5.18
(1)  The General Exclusions

The general exclusions referred to in this Section of the Code are in relation to
interests which a councillor may have -

0] as a Council tax payer or rate payer or in relation to the Council’s public
services

(ii)  inrelation to setting the Council tax

(ili)  in relation to matters affecting councillors’ remuneration, allowances,
expenses, support services and pension

(iv) as a Council house tenant.

In relation to (i), a councillor does not have an interest which has to be declared as a
Council tax payer or ratepayer or, in respect of any issue relating to the terms of
services which are offered to the public generally, as a recipient or non-recipient of
those services.

In relation to (ii), a councillor does not have a financial interest which has to be
declared in connection with

(@) the setting of council tax (including the approval of the total estimated
expenses of the authority to be incurred during the year in question) and

(b) the setting of any substitute council tax (including the approval of any
revised total estimated expenses)

notwithstanding that the councillor may have an interest in any item of expenditure.

24




Page 180

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

In relation to (iii), a councillor does not have an interest which has to be declared in
connection with any matter relating to councillors’ remuneration, allowances,
expenses or support services or in relation to councillors’ pension arrangements,
including the investment of superannuation funds.

In relation to (iv), a councillor does not have an interest which has to be declared in
connection with any matter relating to council house matters, notwithstanding that
the councillor has an interest in the tenancy of council housing accommodation
(including any garage), always provided —

(a) this exclusion does not apply in respect of any matter which is
concemed solely or mainly with the particular tenancy from which an
individual councillor’s interest derives.

(b) this exclusion does not apply to any councillor who is in arrears of rent
in respect of his or her council house (or garage as appropriate).

(2) The Specific Exclusions

The specific exclusions referred to in this Section of the Code are in relation to
interests which a councillor may have -

() as a member of an outside body
(iii) as a member of the Caimgomms National Park Authority (“CNPA”).

In relation to (i), the exclusion applies to any councillor who has been nominated or
appointed or whose appointment has been approved by the councillor's local
authority and who has registered an interest under section 4 of the Code as a
member of:

(a) devolved public body as defined in schedule 3 to the Act;

(b) a public body established by enactment or in pursuance of statutory
powers or by the authority of statute or a statutory scheme;

(c) a body with whom there is in force an agreement which has been made
in pursuance of section 19 of the Enterprise and New Towns (Scotland)
Act 1990 by Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands Enterprise for
the discharge by that body of any of the functions of Scottish Enterprise
or, as the case may be, Highlands and Islands Enterprise;

(d) abody being a company —

e established wholly or mainly for the purpose of providing
services to the councillor's local authority; and

e which has entered into a contractual arrangement with that local

authority for the supply of goods and/or services to that local
authority,

25




Page 181

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

so as to enable the councillor to take part in the consideration and discussion
of, and to vote upon, any matter relating to the body in question the councillor
is required to declare his or her interest at all meetings where matters relating
to the body in question are to be discussed, always provided the exclusion
does not apply in respect of any matter of a quasi-judicial or regulatory nature
where the body in question is applying to the local authority for a licence, a
consent or an approval, is making an objection or representation or has a
material interest conceming such a licence, consent or approval or is the
subject of a statutory order of a regulatory nature, made, or proposed to be
made, by the local authority.

In relation to (ii), the exclusion applies to (a) Decisions on Planning Applications
where the CNPA have submitted comments to the Council and (b) Decisions on
Planning Applications where the CNPA have decided not to call-in the Applications,
as follows:-

(a) the exclusion applies to any councillor who is also a member of the
CNPA where the CNPA have submitted comments, representations or
objections to the Council in relation to a planning application so as to
enable the councillor to take part in the consideration and discussion
of, and to vote upon, the determination of the planning application by
the Council, subject to the following:-

() this exclusion only applies where the councillor has not
participated in the decision to make comments, representations
or objections and has not attended during the item of the
relevant CNPA meeting to decide on the comments,
representations or objections to be submitted.

(i) this exclusion applies to meetings of the Council and of any
committee or sub-committee of the Council and to other
meetings as referred to in para *** of the Code to deal with the
planning application.

(b) the exclusion applies to any councillor who is also a member of the
CNPA where the CNPA have decided not to callsin a planning
application so as to enable the councillor to take part in the
consideration and discussion of, and to vote upon, the determination of
the planning application by the Council, subject to the following:-.

0] this exclusion only applies provided the CNPA have, in reaching
their decision not to call-in, confined themselves to the question
whether the application should be called-in and not discussed
the merits of the application in so deciding.

(ii) this exclusion applies to meetings of the Council and of any
committee or sub-committee of the Council and to other
meetings as referred to in para *** of the Code to deal with the
planning application.

26




Page 182

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 6: LOBBYING AND ACCESS TO COUNCILLORS

6.1 In order for the Council to fulfil its commitment to being open, accessible, and
responsive to the needs of the public, it needs to encourage appropriate participation
by organisations and individuals in the decision-making process. Clearly however,
the desire to involve the public and other interest groups in the decision-making
process must take account of the need to ensure transparency and probity in the
way in which the Council conducts its business.

6.2 You will need to be able to consider evidence and arguments advanced by a
wide range of organisations and individuals in order to perform your duties
effectively. Some of these organisations and individuals will make their views known
directly to individual councillors or Council committees. The rules and standards in
this Code set out how you should conduct yourself in your contacts with those who
seek to influence you.

6.3 You may be lobbied by a wide range of people including individuals,
organisations, companies and developers. As a general rule, it is an essential
element of the democratic system that any individual should be able to lobby the
Council or a councillor. However, particular considerations apply when you are
dealing with applications under regulatory powers such as planning and with matters
of a quasi-judicial nature such as the determination of certain licence applications. If
you are lobbied on such matters you should make it clear that you are not in a
position to lend support for or against any such application that you will have a
responsibility for making a decision on in due course. Representations to councillors
on such applications should be directed, by the councillor, to the appropriate
department of the Council

6.4 Political group meetings should not be used to decide how councillors should
vote on such applications, or on individual staffing matters such as the appointment
or discipline of employees. It is a breach of this Code to comply with political group
decisions on such matters where these differ from your own views.

27




Page 183

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

SECTION 7: TAKING DECISIONS ON QUASI-JUDICIAL OR REGULATORY APPLICATIONS

Introduction

7.1 The Code’s provisions relate to the need to ensure a proper and fair hearing
and to avoid any impression of bias in relation to statutory decision making
processes. These decisions apply not only to those made under planning legislation
but to a number of others of a quasi-judicial or regulatory nature which the local
authority may also have to consider. These will include applications for taxi, betting
and gaming, liquor, theatres, cinemas and street trader licences and a range of other
similar applications where the issuing of a statutory approval or consent is invoived.
This also includes where the local authority is acting in an enforcement role.

Fairness and Impartiality

7.2 On questions relating to such matters on which councillors have to make
individual decisions, you may have to take account of different points of view.

7.3 In such cases, it is your duty to ensure that decisions are properly taken and
that parties involved in the process are dealt with fairly. Where you have a
responsibility for making a formal decision, you must not only act fairly but also be
seen as acting fairly. Furthermore, you must not prejudge, or demonstrate bias in
respect of, or be seen to be prejudging or demonstrating bias in respect of, any such
decision before the appropriate Council meeting. In making any decision, you should
only take into account relevant and material considerations and you should discount
any irrelevant or immaterial considerations.

7.4  To reduce the risk of your decisions being legally challenged, you must not
only avoid impropriety, but must at all times avoid any occasion for suspicion and
any appearance of improper conduct.

7.5 Councillors who have been appointed to outside bodies may - in certain
circumstances - be entitled to participate in discussion and voting on matters relating
to these bodies through the benefit of the specific exclusion relating to certain
outside bodies as provided for in paragraph 5.18(2)(i) of section 5 of this Code. It
should be emphasised, however, that the exclusion does not apply in respect of any
matter of a quasi-judicial or regulatory nature where the outside body is applying to
the local authority for a licence, a consent or an approval, is making an objection or
representation or has a material interest conceming such a licence, consent or
approval or is subject of a statutory order of regulatory nature, made, or proposed to
be made, by the local authority.

Decisions on Planning matters
Policy and strategic issues
7.6  The handling of individual applications should not limit you from discussing or

debating matters of policy or strategy, notwithstanding that these may provide the
framework within which individual applications will in due course be decided,

28




Page 184

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

7.7 Therefore in your key role in establishing planning policies for the area, you
are fully entitled to express your views or advocate proposals on the making,
approval or amendment of the development plan.

7.8  You may also be asked to comment on requests to the planning authority for
a provisional view as to whether - in respect of a proposal for a major development -
the authority might be minded, in principle, to consider granting planning
permission. This may occur in cases where developers are seeking such a view in
advance of committing to expensive and lengthy technical appraisals. As a part of
any such request and only as part of the planning authority considering and forming
such a provisional view, you are entitled to express an opinion in advance of the
proposal or application coming to the planning authority formally for determination
and you may still take part in that determination.

General

7.9 As a councillor you may have to deal with planning decisions in a number of
ways. You may:

e become involved in local cases as a ward representative, or
e you may be more actively involved in decision making: _
o as a member of a committee dealing generally with decisions on
planning applications;
o in certain cases, you may be a member of the committee where
applications are subject to a pre-determination hearing;
o as a member dealing with applications referred to the full council for
determination; and
o as a member of the Council's Local Review Body dealing with reviews
where officers acting under delegated authority have refused planning
permission or granted it subject to conditions which the applicant does
not agree with.

7.10 You must never seek to pressure planning officers to provide a particular
recommendation on any planning decision and you should not seek privately to
lobby other councillors who have a responsibility for dealing with the application in
question.

7.11 If you propose to take part in the decision making process you must not give
grounds to doubt your impartiality. You must not make public statements about a
pending decision, to ensure that you are not seen to be prejudging a decision which
will be made at the meeting where all the information required to take a decision will
be available. You must not indicate or imply your support or opposition to a proposal,
or declare your voting intention, before the meeting. Anyone who may be seeking to
influence you must be advised that you will not formulate an opinion on a particular
matter until all available information is to hand and has been duly considered at the
relevant meeting.

7.12 If you have an interest, whether financial, non financial, or personal, in the
outcome of a decision on a planning application, or a planning agreement, or on

29




Page 185

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

taking enforcement action, or in a Local Review Body, you must declare that interest
and refrain from taking part in making the decision.

Representations

7.13 Where you will have a responsibility for the appropriate decision, you should
not organise support for, or opposition to, or lobby other councillors or act as an
advocate to promote a particular recommendation on a planning application, on a
planning agreement, on taking enforcement action, or on a review by the Local
Review Body. If you do so then paragraph 7.11 will apply.

7.14 This should not, however, preclude you from raising issues or concerns on
any of the matters with the planning officers concerned. Indeed, a councillor may
well have an important contribution to make in respect of an individual planning
application or on what the Council should include in a planning agreement. It is
entirely appropriate for councillors who will have a decision making responsibility to
make known what representations they have received on a planning application, to
attend public meetings and to assist constituents in making their views known to the
relevant planning officer, provided that at no time does the councillor express a "for"
or "against" view by advocating a position in advance of the decision making meeting
(other than in respect of the circumstances set out in paragraphs 7.8 and 7.18).

7.15 Where in the decision making process you wish to make representations on
behalf of constituents or other parties you may do so providing (a) you do so in terms
of procedures agreed by the Council which afford equal opportunity to any parties
wishing to make representations to do so (b) you declare your interest in the matter
and (c) after making those representations you then retire from the meeting room.

Full Council decisions

7.16 In the new planning system there are certain planning applications where the
final decision has to be made by the full council. These applications will be those
where there has been the opportunity for a pre-determination hearing. These
procedures apply to major developments which are significantly contrary to the
development plan and for national developments. it will be apparent before the
application is formally submitted to the council which developments are national or
major.

7.17 You should be aware that where the application is for a national development
that you will be involved in the decision making process as a member of the full
Council. Where the application is for a major development, it may not be clear at the
outset whether the development is significantly contrary to the development plan. It
will be for the planning authority to come to such a view.

7.18 You are entitled to take part in the decisions to be made by the full Council

notwithstanding you may have expressed an opinion on the application at a pre-
determination hearing or at the planning committee.

30




Page 186

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Local or Area Planning Committees

7.19 Al local authorities will have their own procedures for dealing with planning
applications. Your council may adopt a system in which most applications are dealt
with by local or area planning committees with the remaining being dealt with by a
central planning committee. Some also have procedures where decisions can be
referred from a planning committee to the full Council for final determination.

7.20 Individual members may make their provisional views known as part of the
discussions at earlier meetings. Councillors who have responsibility for the decision
should only make a final judgement when all the relevant material considerations are
before the meeting that will, in fact, determine the application. These considerations
can quite appropriately include the views of a local or area committee for a central
planning committee, or the views of a planning committee or a pre-determination
hearing in advance of the full Council.

Other interests

7.21 If you have substantial property or other interests which would prevent you
from voting on a regular basis you should not sit on a decision-making committee
that deals with planning applications.

7.22 You must not act on behalf of, or as an agent for, an applicant for planning
permission with the Council other than in the course of your professional role which
you have registered.

7.23 When making a planning application for your own property, you must not take
any further part in the development process following submission of the planning
application, or sit on a Local Review Body relating to such an application.

Site visits

7.24 As a councillor, you may be asked to attend site visits in connection with a
pending planning application or review. If you do so, you should follow the
procedures for such visits set out by your authority - for local reviews there are
details about site visits in the relevant regulations. These procedures should be
consistent with the provisions of this Code.

Unauthorised developments

7.25 As a councillor you may also be the person who is first made aware of
unauthorised development and you might - quite properly - wish to refer the matter to
the Council for possible enforcement action. Once the initial referral has been made
to the appropriate department for investigation and any formal action, you should
advise all subsequent inquirers to deal directly with the relevant officer.

31




Page 187

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

ANNEX A

SANCTIONS APPLIED BY STANDARDS COMMISSION FOR BREACH OF THE

CODE

(@)  Censuring the councillor;

(b)  suspending, for a period not exceeding one year, the councillor's entitiement
to attend one or more but not all of the following:

i) all meetings of the Council,

i) all meetings of one or more committees or sub-committees of the
council;

iii) all meetings of any other body on which that councillor is a
representative or nominee of the council;

(©) suspension, for a period not exceeding one year, of the councillor's
entitlement to attend all meetings of the council, and of any committee or sub-
committee of the council; and

of any other body on which the councillor is a representative or nominee of the
council;

(d)  disqualifying the councillor, for a period not exceeding five years, from being
or being nominated for election as, or from being elected as, a councillor.

A period of suspension under (b) or (c) above which would continue until or beyond
an ordinary election will come to an end at the beginning of the day on which that
election is held.

Disqualification of a councillor has the effect of vacating that councillor's office and
extends to the councillor's membership of any committee or sub-committee of the
council, any joint committee, joint board or other body on which the councillor is a
representative or nominee of the Council.

Where a councillor is a also a member of a devolved public body (as defined in the
Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000), other than as a
representative or nominee of the Council, the Commission may also remove or
disqualify that person in respect of that membership. Full details of the sanctions are
set out in Section 19 of the Act.

32




_DEFNITONS

Page 188

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

ANNEX B

1. "Remuneration” includes any salary, wage, share of profits, fee, expenses,
other monetary benefit or benefit in kind. This would include, for example, the
provision of a company car or travelling expenses by an employer.

2. "Undertaking” means: (a) a body corporate or partnership; or (b) an
unincorporated association carrying on a trade or business, with or without a view to
a profit.

3. "Related Undertaking" is a parent or subsidiary company of a principal
undertaking of which you are also a director. You will receive remuneration for the
principal undertaking though you will not receive remuneration as director of the
related undertaking.

4. "Parent Undertaking" is an undertaking in relation to another undertaking, a
subsidiary undertaking, if (a) it holds a majority of the voting rights in the undertaking;
or (b) it is a member of the undertaking and has the right to appoint or remove a
majority of its board of directors; or (c) it has the right to exercise a dominant
influence over the undertaking (i) by virtue of provisions contained in the
undertaking's memorandum or articles or (ii) by virtue of a control contract; or (d) it is
a councillor of the undertaking and controls alone, pursuant to an agreement with
other shareholders or councillors, a majority of the voting rights in the undertaking .

5. "Election expenses" means expenses incurred, whether before, during or
after the election, on account of, or in respect of, the conduct or management of the
election.

6. "“A person" means a single individual or legal person and includes a group of
companies.
7. "Group of companies™ has the same meaning as "group" in section 262(1)

of the Companies Act 1985. A "group", within s262(1) of the Companies Act 1985,
means a parent undertaking and its subsidiary undertakings.

8. "Any person” includes individuals, incorporated and unincorporated bodies,
trade unions, charities and voluntary organisations.

9. "Spouse” does not include a former spouse or a spouse who is living
separately and apart from you.

10. "Cohabitee" includes a person, whether of the opposite sex or not, who is
living with you in a relationship similar to that of husband and wife.

11.  "Chair" includes Committee Convener or any person discharging similar
functions under alternative decision making structures.

33




Page 189

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS' CODE OF CONDUCT

ANNEX C

~ PROTOCOL FOR RELATIONS BETWEEN COUNCILLORS AND EMPLOYEES I SCOTTISHCOUNCILS

Principles

1. This protocol sets out the way in which Councils and employees of Councils
should behave towards one another. It does not cover all the variety of
circumstances which can arise, but the approach which it adopts will serve as a
guide to dealing with other issues as they come up.

2. Councillors and employees should work in an atmosphere of mutual trust and
respect, with neither party seeking to take unfair advantage of their position.

Scope

3. The most common contacts are between councillors and senior employees at
Chief Executive, Director or Head of Service level, and this protocol is largely about
those contacts. There are also many contacts between councillors and other
employees in their daily business, and the principles of this protocol ailso apply to
them. The particular position of employees who provide direct support services for
councillors is dealt with separately at paragraph 21.

Members' and employees’ roles

4. Within a Council, councillors have a number of different roles, all of which call
for separate consideration. Some councillors are chairs of committees, most belong
to political groups, and all have a local constituency to represent.

5. Legally, employees are employed by the Council and are accountable to it.
Ultimately they serve the Council as a whole and not any particular political group,
combination of groups or any individual member. Nonetheless, political groups exist
in most Councils and employees may properly be called upon to assist the
deliberations of political groups and also to help individual members in their different
roles. Chief Executives and Senior Officers have ultimate responsibility to ensure that
the Council's responsibilities are implemented.

Office bearers

6. It is clearly important that there should be a close professional working
relationship between the Chair of a committee and the director and other senior
employees of any service which reports to that committee. However, such
relationships should never be allowed to become so close, or appear to be so close,
as to bring into question employees' ability to deal impartially with other councillors,
and the ability of Chairs to deal impartially with other employees.

7. The Chair of a committee will often be consulted on the preparation of

agendas and reports. Employees will always be fully responsible for the contents of
any report submitted in their name and have the right to submit reports to members

34




Page 190

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

on their areas of professional competence. While employees will wish to listen to the
views of conveners, they must retain final responsibility for the content of reports.

8. Committee Chairs are recognised as the legitimate elected spokesperson on
their committees' areas of responsibility. Where authority is delegated to employees
they will often wish to consult Chairs of commitiees about the action which they
propose to take but the responsibility for the final decision remains with the employee
who is accountable for it. Chairs should bear this in mind when discussing proposed
action with employees.

9. Committee Chairs will have many dealings with employees. Those employees
should always seek to assist a committee Chair but it must be remembered that they
are ultimately responsible to the Head of the Service.

Political groups

10. Most Councils operate through a system of groups of councillors, many of
them based on political affiliation. All employees must, in their dealings with political
groups and individual members, treat them in a fair and even-handed manner.
Employees must at all times, maintain political neutrality.

11.  The support provided by employees can take many forms, ranging from the
meeting with the Chair and vice-Chair before a committee meeting to a presentation
to a full party group meeting. Whilst in practice such support is likely to be in most
demand from whichever party group is for the time being in control of the Council, it
should be available to all party groups. The advice given by employees to different
party groups should be consistent.

12.  Certain matters must, however, be clearly understood by all those participating
in this type of process, councillors and employees alike. In particular:

« Council rules about groups' access to employees, e.g. all requests being
approved by the Chief Executive, must be followed;

o employee support in these circumstances must not extend beyond providing
information and advice in relation to matters of Council business. The
observance of this distinction will be assisted if employees are not expected to
be present at meetings or parts of meetings, when matters of party business
are to be discussed;

« party group meetings, whilst they form part of the preliminaries to Council
decision-making, are not empowered to make decisions on behalf of the
Council. Conclusions reached at such meetings do not therefore rank as
Council decisions and it is essential that they are not interpreted or acted upon
as such;

e where employees provide information and advice to a party group meeting in
relation to a matter of Council business, this cannot act as a substitute for
providing all necessary information and advice to the relevant committee or
sub-committee when the matter in question is considered;

35




Page 191

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

 political groups need to recognise that information and advice given by
employees should be used to enhance discussion and debate at Council and
committee meetings. If such information is used for political advantage, for
example media briefings beforehand, then the process could become
devalued and place employees in a difficult position in giving information and
advice; and

« the chair of a political group meeting attended by employees has a
responsibility for ensuring that those attending are clear on the status of the
meeting and the basis on which employees are attending.

13.  Special care needs to be exercised whenever employees are involved in
providing information and advice to a meeting of a political group which includes
persons who are not members of the Council. Such persons will not be bound by the
Codes of conduct for councillors and employees (in particular, the provisions
concerning the declaration of interests and confidentiality) and for this and other
reasons employees may not be able to provide the same level of information and
advice as they would to a members only meeting.

14.  Any discussion with a political group or councillor must be treated with strict
confidentiality by the employees concerned and should not be accessible to any
other political group. It is acknowledged, however, that factual information upon
which any advice is based will, if requested, be available to all political groups.

15.  Should any difficulty or uncertainty arise in the area of employee advice to
party groups, this shall be raised with the Chief Executive who should discuss the
matter with the group leader.

Local representative

16.  All councillors represent part of the area of the Council. Within each Council's
rules about consultation and councillor involvement, employees must treat all
councillors fairly and openly in their role as local representatives. When performing
their local representative role, councillors will be seen by the public as representing
the Council and should act in accordance with the principles of the Code of Conduct
for Councillors and this protocol.

Communications

17.  Communications between an individual councillor and an employee should
normally not be copied by the officer to any other councillor. Where it is necessary to
copy the communications to another member, this should be made clear to the
original councillor at the time.

Appointments

18. Where councillors are involved in the appointments of employees they must
act fairly and openly and judge candidates solely on merit.

36




Page 192

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Social relationships

19.  The relationship between councillors and employees depends upon trust and
this will be enhanced by the development of positive, friendly relationships.
Councillors and employees will often be thrown together in social situations within the
community and they have a responsibility to project a positive image of the Council.
Nonetheless, close personal familiarity between individual employees and councillors
can damage the relationship of mutual respect and the belief that employees give
objective and professional advice and commitment to the Council. Councillors and
employees should, therefore, be cautious in developing close personal friendships
while they have an official relationship.

Public comment

20. Councillors should not raise matters relating to the conduct or capability of
employees in public. Employees must accord to councillors the respect and courtesy
due to them in their various roles. There are provisions in the Code of Conduct for
Employees about speaking in public and employees should observe them.

Employees supporting councillors

21.  Where Councils arrange for employees to support members directly in
carrying out their duties, particular considerations apply. Such employees are
normally involved in administrative and practical support of councillors. While such
staff may operate to the requirements of individual councillors in their daily business,
it must be remembered that the employees are accountable to their line managers
and any issues about conflicting priorities, conduct or performance must be referred
to those managers.

37




Page 193

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

APPENDIX A
CONSULTATION QUESTIONS ON THE CODE
1. The consultation questions set out below focus on changes that have been
made to the Code in order make the Code clearer and more easily understood and to
address the legislative changes in the Scottish Planning System.
2. We are specifically seeking your views on the amendments that have been
made to the Code, highlighted in grey; however your views on any aspect of the
revised Code are welcome. When making general comments please specify which
section of the Code you are commenting on. If your response refers to a particular
paragraph, rather than the Section as a whole, please provide a reference to that
paragraph(s) following your response i.e. (paragraph 1.7).
General Questions
Q1. Have you used the Code before? Yes/No
Q2 Ifyes, in what capacity have you/do you use the Code? i.e. as a Councillor
Q3. How often do you use the Code? Very often/Often/Sometimes/Never

Q4. Do you agree that the revised Code achieves the aim of being clearer and
more easily understood? Yes/no

Questions on the Revised Code
Section 2. Key Principles of the Code of Conduct

Q5. Do you agree that the key principles should be used for guidance and
interpretation purposes only? Yes/No (If no, please explain why.)

Section 3. General Conduct

Q6. Do you agree that the information in the Code relating to Conduct at Meetings
is clear and easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

Q7. Do you agree that the information in the Code relating to Gifts and Hospitality
is clear and easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

Q8. Do you agree that the information in the Code relating to the Use of Council
Facilities is clear and easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

Section 4. Registration of Interests

Q9. Do you agree that the information in this section of the Code is clear and
easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

38




Page 194

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

Section 5. Declaration of Interests

Q10. Do you agree that the information in this section of the Code is clear and
easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

Section 6. Lobbying and Access to Councillors

Q11. Do you agree that the information in this section of the Code is clear and
easily understood? Yes/No (If no, please explain why)

Section 7. Taking Decisions on Quasi-Judicial or Regulatory Applications

Q12. Do you agree that the information in this section of the Code is clear and
easily understood? Yes/No (if no, please explain why)

Q13. Do you agree that this section effectively addresses the legislative changes

that have been made to the Scottish Planning System during 20097
Yes/No (if no, please explain why)

39




Page 195

CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

APPENDIX B

v
Pl
The Scottish RESPONDENT INFORMATION FORM

Government
Please Note That This Form Must Be Returned With Your Response To Ensure That We Handle Your Response

Appropriately

1. Name/Organisation
Organisation Name

Title Mr I__—] Ms D Mrs D Miss D Dr D Please tick as appropriate

Surmmame

Forename

2. Postal Address

: Postcode . Phone Email

3. Permissions
| am responding as...

Grou)
Please tick as appropriate

40




Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 CORPORATE AND SERVICE PLANNING/REVENUE BUDGET
	Corp Plan 2010 - draft v11
	B&C
	H&L
	MAKI
	OLI
	REPORT - Fees Charges 2010-11
	Fees and Charges 04-02-10
	DS - Economic Development & Strategic Transportation
	SERVICE PLAN FOR Planning final VER  22-01-10

	6 STRATEGIC HOUSING INVESTMENT PLAN - 2009
	7 REVIEW OF COUNCILLORS CODE OF CONDUCT
	code of conduct Appendix B


